#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Meadowview Behavioral Hospital

Street Address: Immediately NE of the current terminus of Wood Sage Road; Lot 2, Parcel 1302200009

City and Zip Code: Peoria, IL 61615

County:  Peoria Health Service Area: HSA 2 Health Planning Area: HSA 2

Applicant(s) [Provide for each agpplicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]
Exact Legal Name: US HealthVest, LLC
Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor
City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System
Registered Agent Street Address: 208 South LaSalle Street, Suite 814
|_Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60604
Name of Chief Executive Officer: Richard Kresch
CEO Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17* Floor
CEO City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022
CEO Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

Type of Ownership of Applicants

O Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
O For-profit Corporation (| Governmental
X Limited Liability Company d Sole Proprietorship {0 Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address

of each artner seC| ing whether each is a general or limited partner.
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Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)
Name: Ralph Weber

Title: CON Consultant

Company Name: Weber Alliance

Address: 920 Hoffman Lane Riverwoods, IL 60015
Telephone Number: 847-791-0830

E-mail Address: rmweber80@gmail.com

Fax Number: -

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
“Name: Martina Sze

Title: Chief Development Officer

Company Name: US HealthVest

Address: 32 E. 57" Street, 177" Floor  New York, NY 10022

Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

E-mail Address: msze@ushealthvest.com

Fax Number: 212-243-1099
Additional Contact {Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: Mark Hohulin
Title: Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics
Company Name: OSF Healthcare System
Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street  Peoria, IL 61602
Telephone Number: 309-308-9656
E-mail Address: mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org
Fax Number: 309-308-0530




#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Meadowview Behaviorat Hospital

Street Address: Immediately NE of the current terminus of Wood Sage Road; Lot 2, Parcel 1302200009

City and Zip Code: Peoria, IL 60615

County:  Peoria Health Service Area: HSA 2 Health Planning Area: HSA 2

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220))

Exact Legal Name: 12 Health, LLC

Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor

City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022

Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Registered Agent Street Address: 208 South LaSalle Street, Suite 814

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago, It. 60604

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Richard Kresch

CEOQ Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor

CEO City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022

CEO Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

Type of Ownership of Applicants

(| Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
O For-profit Corporation (| Governmental
X Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietership [C] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o  Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address
of each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited artner

ITACHMENT 1 IN | NUMERIC LLt r'rm

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)

Name: Ralph Weber

Title: CON Consultant

Company Name: Weber Alliance

Address: 920 Hoffman Lane Riverwoods, IL. 60015
Telephone Number: 847-791-0830

E-mail Address: rmweber80@gmail.com

Fax Number: -

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Martina Sze

Title: Chief Development Officer

Comgpany Name: US HealthVest

Address: 32 E. 57" Street, 17 Floor New York, NY 10022
Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

E-mail Address: msze@usheaithvest com

Fax Number: 212-243-1099

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Mark Hohulin

Title: Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics
Company Name: OSF Healthcare System
Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street  Peoria, IL 61602

Telephone Number:  309-308-9656

E-mail Address: mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org

Fax Number: 309-308-0530




#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFIiCATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Meadowview Behavioral Hospital

Street Address: Immediately NE of the current terminus of Wood Sage Road; Lot 2, Parcel 1302200009

City and Zip Code: Peoria, IL 61615

County:  Peoria Health Service Area: HSA 2 Health Planning Area: HSA 2

Applicant(s] [Provide for each applicant {refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: |12 Health Opco, LLC d/b/a Meadowview Behavioral Health
Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor

City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022

Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Registered Agent Street Address: 208 South LaSalle Street, Suite 814
| _Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60604

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Richard Kresch

CEO Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor

CEO City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022

CEOQ Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

Type of Ownership of Applicants

(| Non-profit Corporation [l Partnership
O For-profit Corparation | Governmental
& Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address
of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

HMENT 1 IN NUMEF AC S

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inguiries]
Name: Ralph Weber

Title: CON Consultant

Company Name: Weber Alliance

Address: 920 Hoffman Lane Riverwoods, IL 60015
Telephone Number: 847-791-0830

E-mail Address: rmweberg0@gmail.com

Fax Number: ———--

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name:  Martina Sze

Title: Chief Development Officer

Company Name: US HealthVest

Address: 32 E. 57™ Street, 17" Floor  New York, NY 10022

Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

E-mail Address: msze@ushealthvest.com

Fax Number: 212-243-1099

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: Mark Hohulin

Title: Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics

Company Name: OSF Healthcare System

Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street  Peoria, IL 61602

Telephone Number: 309-308-9656

| E-mail Address: mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org
Fax Number: 309-308-0530




#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Meadowview Behavioral Hospital

Street Address: Immediately NE of the current terminus of Wood Sage Road; Lot2, Parcel 1302200009

City and Zip Code: Peoria, IL 61615

County:  Peocria Heaith Service Area: HSA 2 Health Planning Area: HSA 2

Applicant{s) [Provide for each applicant {refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: 12 Health Realty, LLC

Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor

City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022

Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Registered Agent Street Address: 208 South LaSalle Street, Suite 814

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Chicago, IL 60604

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Richard Kresch

CEO Street Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor

CEO City and Zip Code: New York, NY 10022

CEO Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

Type of Ownership of Applicants

] Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
| For-profit Carporation O Governmental
(| Limited Liability Company {1 Sole Proprietorship [0 Other

o  Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Hlinois certificate of good standing.
o  Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address
of each partner specifying whether each is a eneral orllmlled artner
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Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Ralph Weber

Title: CON Consultant

Company Name: Weber Alliance

Address: 920 Hoffman Lane  Riverwoods, IL 60015
Telephone Number: 847-791-0830

E-mail Address: rmweber90@gmail. com

Fax Number: --—en

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Martina Sze

Title: Chief Development Officer

Company Name: US HealthVest

Address: 32 E. 57" Street, 17" Floor New York, NY 10022

Telephone Number:. 212-243-5565

E-mail Address: msze@ushealthvest.com

Fax Number: 212-243-1099

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Mark Hohulin

Title: Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics
Company Name: OSF Healthcare System
Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street  Peoria, IL 61602

Telephone Number: 309-308-9656

E-mail Address: mark e hohulin@osfhealthcare.org

Fax Number: 309-308-0530




#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION t. IDENTIFICATICN, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Meadowview Behavioral Hospital

Street Address. Immediately NE of the current terminus of Wood Sage Road; Lot 2, Parcel 1302200009

City and Zip Code: Peoria 61615

County. Peoria Health Service Area: HSA 2 Health Planning Area: HSA 2

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: OSF Healthcare System

Street Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street

City and Zip Code: Peoria 61602

Name of Registered Agent: Danielle McNear

Registered Agent Street Address: 124 S W. Adams Street

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Peoria 61602

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Robert C. Sehring

CEO Street Address: 124 S\W. Adams Street

CEO City and Zip Code: Peoria 61602

CEOQ Telephone Number: 309-655-2850

Type of Ownership of Applicants

X Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
O For-profit Corporation | Governmental
O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Itlinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Ralph Weber

Titte:  CON Consultant

Company Name:  Weber Alliance

Address: 920 Hoffman Lane  Riverwoods, L 60015

Telephong Number: 847-791-0830

E-mail Address: rmweberS0@gamail.com

Fax Number: —

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Mark Hohulin

Title: Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics

Company Name: OSF Healthcare System

Address: 124 S W. Adams Street Peoria 61602

Telephone Number; 309-308-9656

E-mail Address: mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org

Fax Number: 309-308-0530

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence after permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY THE
LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: Martina Sze

Title:  Chief Development Officer

Company Name: US HealthVest

Address: 32 E. 57" Street, 17" Floor New York, NY 10022

Telephone Number; 212-243-5565

E-mail Address: msze@ushealthvest.com

Fax Number: 212-243-1099




#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTICN I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Meadowview Behavioral Hospital

Street Address:  Immediately NE of the current terminus of Wood Sage Road; Lot 2, Parcel 1302200009

City and Zip Code: Peoria 61615

County: Peoria Health Service Area: HSA 2 Health Planning Area: HSA 2

Applicant{s} [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Pointcore, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System

Sireet Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street

City and Zip Code: Peoria 61602

Name of Registered Agent: Danielle McNear

Registered Agent Street Address: 124 5.W. Adams Street
Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Peoria 61602

Name of Chief Executive Officer. Robert C. Sehring

CEO Street Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street

CEO City and Zip Code: Peoria 61602

CEO Telephone Number; 309-655-2850

_Type of Ownership of Applicants

(| Non-profit Corporation | Pattnership
(| For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

YOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

PLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person fo receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Ralph Weber

Title: CON Consultant

Company Name: Weber Alliance

Address: 920 Hoffman Lane Riverwoods, IL 60015
Telephone Number:  847-791-0830

E-mail Address: rmweberg0@gmail.com

Fax Number: —-m

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Mark Hohulin

Title: Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics

Company Name: OSF Healthcare System

Address: 124 S.W. Adams Street Peoria 61602

Telephone Number: 309-308-9656

E-mail Address: mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org

Fax Number: 309-308-0530

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence after permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY THE
LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: Marlina Sze

Title:  Chief Development Officer

Company Name:  US HealthVest

Address: 32 E. 57" Street 17" Floor New York, NY 10022
Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

E-mail Address: msze@ushealthvest.com

Fax Number: 212-243-1099




#23-008

Post Permit Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence after permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY
THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: Martina Sze

Title: Chief Development Officer

Company Name: US HealthVest

Address: 32 E. 57" Street 17" Floor

Telephone Number: 212-243-5565

E-mail Address: msze@ushealthvest.com

Fax Number: 212-243-1099

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: |12 Health Realty, LLC *

Address of Site Owner: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor, New York, NY 10022

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of
ownership are property tax statements, tax assessor’'s documentation, deed, notarized statement of the

rshlp, an option to Iease, a Ietter of Intent to Iease, ora Iease

DCUMEN > :
[ZARPRLICATION FORM. : i R R T T
* OSF Healthcare System is the current owner of the property and upon approval w:II convey

the property through its wholly owned subsidiary Pointcore, Inc to 12 Health Realty, LLC.

Operating ldentity/Licensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]
Exact Legal Name: 12 Health Opco, LLC d/b/a Meadowview Behavioral Hospital
Address: 32 E57th Street, 17" Floor, New York, NY 10022

0O Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership

O For-profit Corporation O Governmental

X Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O
Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Hlinois Certificate of Good
Standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.
o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the %
of ownershl p.
Aie

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person
or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in
the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution,




#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.orq. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http:/iwww.hfsrb.illinois.gov). NOTE: A
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION

FORM has been added at the conclusion of this Application for Permit that must be

completed to deem a pro;ect complete

...... L rf

*APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS mg_ﬁugm,g, N mmemc SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE 0F THE' d
ki ICATION FORM,

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

H‘pﬁ"lﬁi sﬂql"F'h LIRS b R T o e r ST o
APPEND, DOCUMENTAT*ON AS A! [ﬂ _f'_!ﬂ ! §. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTlAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE et
..APPLlCATlON FORM, ki Ghrd i

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b}]

Part 1110 Classification :

B Substantive

O Non-substantive

—— — e —— — Page3 - - . S
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2. Narrative Description

in the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Expiain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's
classification as substantive or non-substantive.

US HealthVest, an innovative behavioral health care company with a strong record of expanding
access to care in underserved communities and OSF HealthCare, an integrated health system
owned and operated by The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, headquartered in Peoria,
[llinois, are partnering to build a new behavioral health hospital to serve residents across central
[llinois.

12 Health Opco, LLC d/b/a Meadowview Behavioral Hospital, US HealthVest, OSF Healthcare
System (“OSF”) and Pointcore, Inc, a wholly owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System are
coming together to form a joint venture to develop and operate a 100-bed behavioral hospital in
Peoria, Iilinois. Other entities that are subsidiaries of US HealthVest and are part of the
transaction are I Health Development, LLC, whose sole corporate member is US HealthVest; [2
Health, LLC (a holding company to enable US HealthVest and Pointcore, Inc to jointly own the
12 Health Opco, LLC, with 80% and 20% interests, respectively); and 12 Health Realty, LLC,
which will construct and own the building and property, and lease the property and facility
(through an intercompany lease) to the proposed behavioral hospital.

The hospital will be constructed on property now owned by OSF between Rte. 91 and Interstate
6 in northern Peoria. OSF will convey the property for the proposed hospital to Pointcore, Inc,
which will convey the property to [2 Health Realty, LLC.

The new hospital will occupy approximately 64,000 sq. ft. of space and contain 100 Acute
Mental Illness (AMI) beds. The 64,000 sq ft of space will include approximately 48,400 sq. ft. of
clinical space, and 15,600 sq. ft. of non-clinical space. Total capital cost of the project is
$34,333,404.

The hospital will provide a full continuum of inpatient and outpatient behavioral health care,
primarily for adults, organized into units delivering specialized behavioral health services,
including care not available in the region. The services build upon the expertise of US
HealthVest’s existing programs nationally and in Illinois at Chicago Behavioral Hospital (Des
Plaines), Lake Behavioral Hospital (Waukegan) and Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital (New
Lenox). 12 Health Opco, LLC d/b/a Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will hold the hospital
license. Like the other three US HealthVest hospitals in Illinois, the proposed hospital will treat
all patients regardless of ability to pay, including Medicare, Medicaid and charity care patients.

The anticipated completion date for the project is December 31, 2025.

The project is considered Substantive because it involves the establishment of a new facility and
category of service.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be
equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation
Off Site Work
New Construction Contracts

Modemization Contracts

Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees
Consulting and Other Fees

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction
contracts}

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction {project
related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs to Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Building or Other Property {excluding
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities
Pledges

Gifts and Bequests

Bond issues (project related)
Mortgages

Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations
Grants

Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

At
I - = Page 5
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Related Project Costs
Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that will
be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project O Yes No
Purchase Price: §$
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

B4 Yes ] No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the
target utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ 6,000,000 .

Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[[] None or not applicable (] Preliminary
[X] Schematics [] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140). _ December 31, 2025

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer
to Part 1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been
executed.

[ Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language
related to CON Contingencies

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)]

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable?

] Cancer Registry

APORS

All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports
been submitted

D4 All reports regarding outstanding permits

Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for
permit being deemed incomplete.

i
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The fype of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the
departments or area's portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated
space.

Not Reviewable Space [i.e., non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the patients, visitors, staff, or employees of a health
care facility and not directly related lo the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons receiving services from the health care
facility. "Non-clinical service areas” include, but are not limited to, chapels; gift shops, newsstands; computer systems; tunnels,
waltkways, and elevalors, telephone systems; projects to comply with life safety codes; educational facilities; student housing;
patient, employee, slaff, and visifor dining areas; administration and voluntesr offices; modemization of structural components (such
as roof replacement and masonry work); boilar repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities, parking facilities;
mechanical systems for heating, ventilation, and air conditioning; Ipading docks; and repair or replacement of campeting, tile, wall
covetings, window coverings or treatments, or fumiture. Solely for the purpose of this definition, "nion-chnical service area” does not
include health and fitness centers. [20 ILCS 3960/3)

Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square Feet

Gross Square Feet That Is:

NeW | modemnized | Asls | Vacated

Dept./ Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON-
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

la

PaQGT M e




Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

#23-008

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of the
project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day totals
for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the application being

deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: Meadowview Behavioral CITY: Peoria
Hospital
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: January 1, 2023  to: December 31, 2023
Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed

Beds Changes Beds

0 0 0 0 0
Medical/Surgical I

0 0 0 0 Q
Obstetrics

0 0 0 0 0
Pediatrics

0 0 0 0 0
Intensive Care
Comprehensive Physical 0 o 0 0 0
Rehabilitation | |

0 0 0 +100 100
Acute/Chronic Mental liiness i R |

0 10 0 0 Q
Neonatal Intensive Care |

0 ) 0 0 0
General Long-Term Care | ~

0 0 0 0 0
Specialized Long-Term Care

0 0 0 0 0
Long Term Acute Care

0 0 0 0 0
Other (identify)

0 0 0 +100 100
TOTALS:
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist}).

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
imore beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

e

This Application is filed on the behalf of US HealthVest, LLC *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his
or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

7z Ut 7%g

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE ¥
fkfj Cle W ('én\,p\, S 2L
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
I
Mek. M abet
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED leLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscnb d and sworn to before me
this 6™ day of Decosleey 0252 this day of_kLML?Ar A2

00 A

Slgnan' ure of Notary i Signature of Notary

Aleria ! Lizisos P Liat
Sea ATE OF NE Seal Alexia P Liatsos
| NOTARY PUBLIC. STATE OF NEW YORK. OTARY P SATE OF NEW YORK

Registration No, 01116435282 A
ificd i ] : Registration No. 01L16435282
S Qualified in New York Couaty

L ission Expircs 06121 2026 .
*Insert the & licant Compission Expires 06/21/2026




#23-008

CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist}).

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of 12 Health, LLC ¥

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his
or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

D |

SIGN URE IGN TURE
m € O\& -41. fb Y/

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

M‘ naody™ .
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn o before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this T Aday of W% this _& ‘  day of De (ouidpey, RO 22

AN Qi

*Insert the

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
Lintsos Alexia P Li
oenl . RS Seal exia 1ats0s
NOTAKY 1 Lo 2, 520318 OF NEW YORK NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORE
loegintration Mo, G1L16435282 Regisiration No. 01L164352R2
Ounllluu in M:\h York County I Qualified in New York County

Comniission Expires 06/21:2026




CERTIFICATION
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representatives are:

more beneficiaries do not exist); and

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist).

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of 12 Health Opco, LLC d/b/a Meadowview Behavioral

Hospital *

Z L

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his
or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

N Aﬁ/f an _

Notarization:
Subscri

and sworn to beforg me
this _{ - day ofwg—'q

Signature of

Alexia P Liatsos
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK
Registration No. 01L16435282
Qualified in New York County
Commission Expires 06/21/2026

*Insert the EXACT legal name of the applicant

Seal

SIGNATURE SIGWATURE
Jopes  Che Marbing Sz,u
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
ce/” A rAR
PRINTED TITE PRINTED TIT{E

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this day of

0.0 A

Signature of Notary

Alexia P Liatsos
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK
Registration No. 01016435282
Qualified in New York County
Commission Expires 06/21/2026

Seal
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist).

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of 12 Health Realty, LLC *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his
or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

A oA

<1 SIGNATURE GNATURE
0 A9z Cl\,c. vt SZ 2
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
MI‘ P el [\m KM/
PRINTED TITE PRINTED TITLZ
Notarization; Notarization:
Subscr and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 671 "day of “D€ Coatibey, ROV L this 64 dayof Decosubey, 2022
Signature of Nofary Signature of‘ﬁotary
Alexiz P Liatsos - -
Seal NOTARY PUBLIC. STATE OF NEW YORK Seal Alexia P Liatsos
Regisiration No. 01116435282 NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK
Qualificd in New York County Registration No. 01016435282
Commissiou Expires 06/21/2026 Qlll-llﬁed in N:\y York County
*Insert the EXACT legal nhame of the applicant Commission Expires 0672112026
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist).

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of OSF Healthcare System *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his
or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

WW

SIGNATURE = SIGNATU

Robert Sehring Robert Anderson

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer, Central Region
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization; Notarization:

Subscribed and swogn to befare me Subscribed and sworn to before me
s 500" day of JIEMBEN, 2022 wis 30U way o Z]ipemien 2022

b Mt Jopdasy Mt

L i

gignature of Notary Signature of Notary
e | STE b seal ' A L. STEWART
TONDA L. STEWART TONDAL.
OFFICIALSEAL OFFICIALSEAL |
Notary Pubilic - State of Wlinois ; ) Notary Public - Sltate of "hnoé%24 :
*Insert e XAG Titstal Repiesiand bopicant {Mmy Commission Expires Sep 1822
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two
or more general partners do not exist).

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or
more beneficiaries do not exist);, and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of Pointcore, Inc *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this
Application on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his

or her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this
application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request. 7
WI\

SIGNATURE 4 d uUrRe [ 7°

Robert Sehring Mike Cruz, MD

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME -~
Chief Executive Officer Chief Operating Officer, Central Region
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

MNotarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscrihed and s to beforg me
this 30‘“‘Lday of Maa thisat}%'day of i IWNLQA.Z 09.3

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
Seal : ' Seal et
WART
TONDA L SEAL TONDA L. STEWART
State of Iinois OFFIC|Als'tSFAI} linois
* g 2004 ic - State of lllino
Insert th axprosfane Hht Notary Public - 8 8. 2024
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SECTION Il. DISCONTINUATION No discontinuation is included in this project.

This Section is applicable to the discontinuation of a health care facility or the discentinuation of more than

one category of service in a 6-month period,

If the project is solely for a discontinuation of a health care

facility the Background of the Applicant(s) and Purpose of Project MUST be addressed. A copy of the
Notices listed in tem 7 below MUST be submitted with this Application for Discontinuation
hitps:/iwww.ilga.gov/leqgisiation/ilcs/documents/002039600K8.7.htm

Criterion 1110.290 — Discontinuation

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

1.
2.

GENERAL INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

Identify the categories of service and the number of beds, if any that are to be discontinued.
Identify all the other clinical services that are to be discontinued.

Provide the anticipated date of discontinuation for each identified service or for the entire facility.
Provide the anticipated use of the physical plant and equipment after the discontinuation occurs.

Provide the anticipated disposition and location of all medical records pertaining to the services
being discontinued and the length of time the records will be maintained.

Provide copies of the notices that were provided to the local media that would routinely be
notified about facility events.

For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, provide copies of the
notices that were sent to the municipality in which the facility is located, the State
Representative and State Senator of the district in which the health care facility is located,
the Director of Public Health, and the Director of Healthcare and Family Services. These
notices shall have been made at least 30 days prior to filing of the application.

For applications involving the discontinuation of an entire facility, certification by an authorized
representative that all questionnaires and data required by HFSRB or DPH (e.g., annual
questionnaires, capital expenditures surveys, etc.) will be provided through the date of
discontinuation, and that the required information will be submitted no later than 90 days following
the date of discontinuation.

REASONS FOR DISCONTINUATION

The applicant shall state the reasons for the discontinuation and provide data that verifies the need for
the proposed action. See criterion 1110.290({b} for examples.

1.

IMPACT ON ACCESS

Document whether the discontinuation of each service or of the entire facility will have an
adverse effect upon access to care for residents of the facility’s market area.

Document that a written request for an impact statement was received by all existing or approved
health care facilities (that provide the same services as those being discontinued) located within
the geographic service area.

APPEND DOCUMENTATEON AS ATTACHMENI 1 , IN NUNIERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
_APPLICATION FORM. ;

ol O



#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition
SECTION lll. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A listing of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in illinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, pariners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility
is considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A cerlified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned andfor operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the conviction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matters
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmental agency.

4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other Slate agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

ETFER T ey |.-- 1 TETE =T -s T

e e e o
FAPPEND DOCUHE]‘TATION AS ATTACHMEN? 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTFAL ORDEH AFTER THE LAST i
_PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT. 1. LY

alt

Page 11 E—




#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population's
health status and weli-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

0.7 i ...| -\...:;.- d’_-i-‘."};-".l.-'. i et ".| "* A S
QF:EE&D]DOCUMENTATION AS TTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE-'FASTJ'.L o
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1.6 'MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 4 250 R

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or mere providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes.

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve ail or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality, and financial benefits in
both the short-term (within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE
PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

'EAP&- EWNQ:DOCUMENTATION AS TTACﬂQEﬂT 13, |N1 NUMEREC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE U\STI il
PAGE'OE‘_THE%:PPLICATION FORM. b HS hry ) i i o i
o .---'..| P wr-"\-""r'h. T ".......‘t! 4 -'"'." i i
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

SECTION V. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE

Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and
the methodology applied.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and cerlified by the facility’s Medical Director.

b. The existing facility’s physical configuration has constrainls or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project invalves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

B ' Ml e e R A R ]
APPEND DQQUMEN?A“ON AS TTACI_’jMEEI 14, iN NUMER!C SEQUENTML ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE 'DF THE '- £
gucmou FORMIFIS &7 0 paesy A i : e o R

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions, or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lIl. Adm, Code 1100,

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION

DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET

SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?

(PATIENT DAYS)

(TREATMENTS)
ETC.

YEAR 1
YEAR 2

A e e e Py o e R
'Appano nocumeum'non AS Amcumsm 15, N NUMER!C seausmm. ORDER AFI'ER THE LAST PAGE oF THE
APPLlclfﬂou FORM kil S : S PR !

1 i-:-.:..__,
.u|¢ "1I.- N e T T
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UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: No shell space is included in this project.
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area, or function.

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of
future utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be
placed into operation.

T

T T Y SRR S R e s 2,
END DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHME ERTHE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION EC

ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:
1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shall space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

'PEND DOCUMENTATION A€

TION FORM.

a4
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C. Criterion 1110.210 - Acute Mental lliness and Chronic Mental lilness

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize the Acute Mental lliness and
Chronic Mental lliness categories of service must submit the following information:
2, Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of heds changed by action(s):
# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Beds Beds
X Acute Mental lliness 0 100
[l Chronic Mental lliness
3! READ the applicable review criteria outiined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.210(b)(1) - Planning Area Need - 77 Ill. Adm. Code 1100 X
{(Formula calculation)
1110.210(b){2) - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.210(b)(3) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Establishment of Category of Service
1110.210(b){(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Expansion
of Existing Category of Service
1110.210(b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.210{c)(1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110.210{c)(2) - Maldistribution X
1110.210{c)(3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X
1110.210(d){1}, (2), and (3) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.210(d){4) - Occupancy X
1110.210(e){1) - Staffing Availability X X
1110.210(f) - Performance Requirements X X X
1110.210(g) - Assurances X X

ENTS rﬁ«ﬁi"{» -'rmmm

N FORM,

LS
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

¢ Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds — Review Criteria
+  Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
» Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

VII. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document those financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

$34,333,404 | a) Cash and Securities - statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and
availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission
through project completion.

b} Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts.

d) Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt
time, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time, and the
anticipated repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent
financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, procf of passage of the
required referendum or evidence that the governmental unit
has the authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the
dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anticipated.

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate.

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting
to the expectation of making the foan in the amount and time
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms
and conditions, including any purchase options, any capital

&b
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improvements to the property and provision of capital
equipment.

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including ail
terms and conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations - a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance
accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the
governmental unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a
copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent.

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in
terms of the amount and time of receipt.

0) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any
other funds that will be used for the project.

$34,333,404

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

RAFTER THE LASTPAGE OF

27
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

SECTION VIil. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding, or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if.

1.  “A" Bond rating or better

2. All the project's capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or perfoermance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

~APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
§ APPLICATIOH FORIVI e

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shail
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant's facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is @ member of a health care system that has combined or consclidated financial statements, the I
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the .
| system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Projscted 1 i
ﬂ;.;ﬁv?‘i:-. .

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another
organization, public or private, shail assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default. I

g CUEH?A'E;!EON .hS &TTACHMEN [rg_B_, iN NUMERI L ORDER AFTER -T HE LAST PAEE OF THE APPI.,ICAT
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY '

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available.

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors.

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following;

1.

ldentify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).

27
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

Department
(List below)

A B C D E F G H
Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. §
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* (AxC) {(BxE)

Total
Cost
(G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circuiation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no
moere than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully aliocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
followmg prolect completlon

L

APPEND
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DQCUMENT ATION AS Al !A [;[MENT 37: IN NUMERIC SEQUEN‘!’IAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OFJ-THE r
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

SECTION X. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE
PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the
impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in each
community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital

applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid
patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent
with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and "Inpatient and Qutpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source”
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity {# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Charity {(cost in dollars)
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Medicaid {revenue) -
Inpatient
34
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OQutpatient

Total

LY
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ILLINCIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition

SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue,

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in lllinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consoclidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as o the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided hy a health care facility for which the provider does not expect

to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE
Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges}
Cost of Charity Care

33
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 06/2022 - Edition
SECTION Xt -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2008-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EQ 5, is in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood Hazard
Area} or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is
planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance with
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

1. Applicant;
{Name) {Address)
(City) ' {State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
2. Project Location:
{Address) (City) (State)
(County) (Township) (Section) -

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map Service
Center website (https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home) by entering the address for the property in the Search bar. If
a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can print a
|
copy of the floodplain map by selecting the icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon | 9
and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. You will
then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a FIRMette tool
to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes___ No ?

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped flocdplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county or the
local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official: Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) {Telephone Number)
Signature: Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-year
floodplain as designated on the map noted above. it does not constitute a guarantee that the property will or will not be
flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.

If you need additional help, contact the lllinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428
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The image below is an example of the floodplain mapping required as part of the IDPH swimming facility construction
permit showing that the swimming pool, to undergo a major alteration, is outside the mapped floodplain.
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the
included attachments:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
L Appllcant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing | 37-42 |
| 2 & Slte Ownership | 43-45 1
3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be [
| l identified with the % of ownership. 46-47 |
Organizational Relatlonshlps (Organizational Chart) Certificate of T
L | Good Standing Etc. | 48-54
[ 5 | Flood Plain Requirements 1 55-57
| 6 Historic Preservation Act Reguirements | 58-59 |
[ 7 Project and Sources of Funds Itemization | 60-62
L 8 | L Financial Commitment Document if required 1=
' 9| Cost Space Requirements | 63
[ 10 I Discontinuation | NA
L 11 I Background of the Applicant | 64-74
{ 12 | Purpose of the Prolect 175121
I: 13 ! Alternatives 1o the Project 1122124
L 14 | Slze of the Prolect ] ] 1.'_25-128 ]
| 15 I Project Service Utilization i 129-130
; 16 | Unfinished or Shell Space T NA
[ _ 17 1-_A§surances for Unfinished/Shell Space | NA
[ i Service Specific: 1 .
L 18 8 Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU i -
L + Comprehenswe Phxsucal Rehabilitation -
‘ 20 | Acute Mental lliness_ 1 131-230
[ Open Heart Surgery -
I 2| Cardlac Catheterization -- a
I 23 24 In-Center Hemodialysis {-
I + Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery |-
I 25 | Selected Organ Transplantation --
L 26 | Kidney Transplantation_ I
| 27 | Subacute Care Hospital Model = |
I 28 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center i -
I 29 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital L=
I , 30 Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service -
I + FreestandlngEmeLclenc! Center Medical Services -
| Birth Center - |
|
B ] + Financial and Economic Feasibility:
33 | Availability of Funds | 231-260
34 | Financial Waiver Jr -
'35 | Financial Viability | 261-269
36 Economic Feasibility | 270-275 |
37 | Safety Net Impact Statement i 276-286 |
38 | Charity Care Informatlon Il 287-289
39 | Flood Plain Information | 290-292
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File Number 1229013-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

I HEALTH DEVELOPMENT, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON OCTOBER 14, 2022,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A
FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TC TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE

STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 2ND

day of NOVEMBER A.D. 2022

{ \:-‘ G ¥ (!
U= DN
3 #
Authentication #: 2230603650 verifiable until 11/02/2023 M

Authenticate at: hitps.’www.ilsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE Attachment 1
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File Number 1229010-1

l= — .

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

12 HEALTH, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING OBTAINED
ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOCIS ON OCTOBER 14, 2022, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A FOREIGN LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 2ND

day of NOVEMBER A.D, 2022

> ORI 11 )
X ’
Authentication #: 2230603674 verifiable until 11/02/2023 M

Authenticate at: https:iwww.ilsos.gov
SECRETARY OF STATE Attachment 1
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File Number 1229007-1

L

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

12 HEALTH OPCO, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON OCTOBER 14, 2022,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A
FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 nereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 2ND
day of NOVEMBER A.D. 2022

2 2 3
S
4 ay Y]
v ’,
Authentication #: 2230604160 verifiable until 11/02/2023 M W

Authenticate at: https://mww ilsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE Attachment 1
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File Number 1229015-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

12 HEALTH REALTY, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON OCTOBER 14, 2022,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A
FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE

STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 2ND

day of NOVEMBER A.D. 2022

.1 - 4ty s
I d
Authentication #: 2230603696 verifiable unti 11/02/2023 M

Authenticate at: https:/iwww.ilsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE Attachment 1

Ho
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File Number 0107-414-8

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeling:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

OSF HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JANUARY 02, 1880, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH
ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT OF THIS
STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION
IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 28TH
day of SEPTEMBER A.D. 2022

; \L T
Qe
< s BN v
% ’
Authentication #: 2227102514 verifiable until 09/28/2023 Me/

Authenticate at: https:/f'www ilsos.gov
SECRETARY OF STATE Attachment 1

H |
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File Number 5449-032-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

POINTCORE, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF
THIS STATE ON DECEMBER 23, 1986, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE
PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS
DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF
[LLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 nereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 16TH

day of NOVEMBER A.D. 2022

'll LR ‘;:i' e
¥ | R LT ‘%
0 ,
Authentication #: 2232002722 verifiable until 11/16/2023 M W

Authentlicate at: hitps:/fwww.ilsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE Attachment 1

Ha
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Site Ownership

OSF Healthcare System (“OSF”) owns the vacant property on which the proposed Meadowview
Behavioral Hospital will be built. OSF will convey the property to Pointcore, Inc, which will then convey
the property to US HealthVest’s 12 Health Realty, which will develop and own the property. 12 Health
Realty will lease the property to the joint venture entity, 12 Health Opco, which will hold the license and
operate the facility. An address will be selected in collaboration with the City of Peoria.

Attachment 2

t3
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HEALTHCARE SYSTEM

November 30, 2022

Ms. Debra Savage, Chair

IHlinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Site Ownership
Property for the Peoria Behavioral Hospital
Peoria, lllinois

Dear Chair Savage:

I affirm that OSF Healthcare System is the current owner of real property on which a joint venture entity of US
Healthvest and Pointcore, Inc. {a wholly-owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System), intend to build and
operate a 100 bed Acute Mental Itiness Hospital. OSF Healthcare System intends to convey such real property
to Pointcore, Inc., which will thereafter convey the property to the joint venture entity. The property is vacant
land, without a currently assigned road address. The site of the proposed hospital is Lot 2, located within the
larger parcel identified as 1302200009. The site of the proposed hospital is located northeast of the current
terminus of Wood Sage Road. See the attached map showing the Parcel labeled 1302200009. This larger
parcel has the address of 8630 N. State Route 91. That address is assigned to the western part of Parcel
1302200009, but will not be the address of the proposed behavioral hospital.

As referenced on the map, OSF Healthcare System is the recorded owner of the entire Parcel 1302200009.

If you have any questions, please contact Mark Hohulin, Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics, at 309-
308-9656 or at mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org.

Sincerely,

Robert C. Sehring, Chief ExecutivéOfficer Notarization:

OSF Healthcare System
124 S.W. Adams Street Subscribed and sworn to before me

Peoria, IL 61602
this SO day off'\_)wwi

Slgnature of Notary

seal TONDA L. STEWART
QFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of Winois

i My Comrmssnon Explres Sep 18, 2024 7

4y

800 N.E. Glen Oak Avemue, Peoria, lllinois 61603-3200 Phone (309) 655-2850 www.osfhealthcare.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
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Operating Identity / Licensee

The licensee is 12 Health Opco, LLC d/b/a Meadowview Behavioral Hospital. The Certificate of Good
Standing is included on the next page. US HealthVest will own an 80% interest through its subsidiary |
Health Development, LLC; Pointcore, Inc, a wholly-owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System, will own
a 20% interest,

Attachment 3
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File Number 1229007-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

12 HEALTH OPCO, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON OCTOBER 14, 2022,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A
FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 2ND

day of NOVEMBER A.D. 2022

i, ‘k_/ -"I:’."‘ 1 "‘-
AT
q o .‘.
% ’,
Authentication #: 2230604160 verifiable until 11/02/2023 M

Authenticate at: hitps:./www.ilsos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE
Attachment 3
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Organization Chart

| Health Development, LLC
{a wholly-owned subsidiary

Pointcere, Inc,
{awholly-owned
subsidiary of OSF

of US HealthVest) Healthcare System}
80% 20%
12 Health, LLC
100% 100%
12 Health Opco, LLC 12 Health Realty, LLC
WV OpCo JV PropCo

Yo
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US HealthVest

Frivileged and Confidential
Jamuary 23, 2023

Ms. Michelle Conger

Chief Strategy Officer and CEO OSF OnCall Digital
Health OSF Healthcare System

124 SW Adams Street

Pearia, Illinois 61602

Re: Letter of Intent- Behavioral Health Joint Venture

Dear Ms. Conger:

The non-binding letter of intent ("LOI™) sets forth the intentions of US HealthVest, LLC,
with a principal place of business at 32 East 57th Street, 17th Floor, New York, New York
("USHYV"), and Pointcore, Inc., with a principal place of business at 124 SW Adams Street, Peoria,
Illincis ("Pointeore™), an affiliate of OSF Healthcare System (“OSF Healthcare™), to work
together with diligence regarding the establishment of a behavioral health joint venture ("JV"),
which would own and operate a behavioral health facility in Peoria, flinois and potentially other
markets (each such facility referred to as & "Facility" or collectively as "Facilities"), and may
manage existing psychiatric units at existing OSF Healthcare hospitals (referred to as
"Management Services”), USHV and Pointcore are together referred to herein as the "Parties.”
The transactions contemplated herein are referred to as the “Project”.

This LOI is a statement of our intentions to work together in good faith to establish a
mutually agreeable framework and prepare mutually agreeable documents (the "Definitive
Agreements"), but this LO! is not to be legally binding, except as provided in paragraphs 3, 15,
16, 17 and 18 below.

1. Purpose. USHV and Pointcore, and their applicable subsidiaries and affiliates,
desire to improve access 1o psychiatric health care in Illinois by collaborating with respect to the
establishment by the JV of one or more Facilities, specifically including Peoria, Illinois, with
additional markets to be determined. The Facility or Facilities will provide a full continuum of
behavioral health and addiction services, including inpatient and outpatient services. In addition,

the parties will explore the potential for the JV to provide Management Services to existing OSF
Healthcare hospitals.

2. Location, The Parties will mutually agree on the real property at which the Facility
or Facilities will be located (the "Property”) and will mutually agree on any Management Services

to be provided by the JV to OSF Healthcare.

32 East 57th Streel
17th Floor
New York, New York 10022
T212.2435585 - F212.243.1089 10342871302) 83 666.1
www.ushealthvest.com
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3. Exclusivity, From the date of this LOI through the termination of this LOI,
Pointcore and OSF Healthcare will not, directly or indirectly, (a) solicit, initiate, encourage or
accept any other inquiries, proposals or offers from any person relating to partnering (whether by
purchase or equity or debt securities, purchase of assets, merger, consolidation, reorganization or
otherwise) with another healthcare provider to develop a behavioral health or addiction services
facility in Central Itlinois (defined as within a 100 mile radius of Peoria, [llinois); or (b) participate
in any discussions, conversations, negotiations or other communications with any other person
regarding, or furnish to any other person any information, with respect to, or otherwise cooperate
in any way, assist or participate in, facilitate or encourage any effort or attempi by any other person
to seek 1o do any of the foregoing. From the date of this LOI through the termination of this LOI,
USHV will not, directly or indirectly, (a) solicit, initiate, encourage or accept any other inquiries,
proposals or offers from any person relating to partnering (whether by purchase or equity or debt
securities, purchase of assets, merger, consolidation, reorganization or otherwise) with another
healthcare provider to develop a behavioral health or addiction services facility in Central Illinois
(as defined); or (b) participate in any discussions, conversations, negotiations or other
communications with any other person regarding, or furnish to any other person any information,
with respect to, or otherwise cooperate in any way, assist or participate in, facilitate or encourage
any effort or attempt by any other person to seek to do any of the foregoing. For purposes of clarity,
any existing behavioral hospital in operation shall be excluded from this requirement.

4. Ownership: Capital. Allocations: Distributions. The Parties will jointly establish
the JV as a Delaware limited liability company (the "Company") that will own and operate the
Facility or Facilities, and may, if agreed upon, provide Management Services. The Company will
be owned as follows: USHV with 80% interest / Pointcore with 20% interest. Capital contributions
(including renovation/ working capital/ other startup costs), allocations and distributions will be in
accordance with the Parties” ownership percentages. The Parties may also collaborate to form a
limited liability company for the purpose of owning or Jeasing real estate for the Project.

5. Govemance, The Company shall be governed by a Board of Managers (the
"Board"). Board composition shall be proportional to ownership with each Party represented by
at least one (1) manager. The Board shall have responsibility for the overall direction of the
Business, including, but not limited to, marketing, branding, preferred providers (subject to Section
10 below), internal marketing, and education. The Board shall hold regular meetings at least
quarterly, Fundamental Company decisions (such as incurring debt, changes to the Definitive
Agreements, decisions contrary to the terms of the Definitive Agreements, dissolution of the
Company, and such other decisions as set forth in the Operating Agreement of Company), unless
required for regulatory compliance, shall not be made by the Board and will require a unanimous
vote of USHV and Pointcore. There will be a procedure for attempting to resolve deadlacks on
fundamental decisions.

6. Capital Funding, Funding will be provided to the Company in accordance with
capital calls determined by the Parties and based on periodic financial reporting and the terms of
the Operating Agreement of the Company.

105488213121 82666.¢1
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7. Mmmmnmm The Company will enter into agreements with each
of the Parties for certain services related to the management and operation of the Company.
General management will be performed by USHYV in a manner, to be mutually agreed, but at a
minimum consistent with operation of other USHV hospitals, in accordance with USHV policies,
procedures, protocols, and operational standards. Management fees under the agreement shall be
mutually agreed.

8. Ethical and Religious Directives, The Company shall abide by the Ethical and
Religious Directives for Catholic Health Care Services, as promulgated by the United States
Conference of Catholic Bishops, as interpreted and applied by Pointcore.

9. Staffing.

a. Physician staffing will be provided by the Company. All physicians
staffing the Facility shall meet USHV's hiring and credentialing standards. The
physician staff (either directly or through their physician practice group) will be
compensated 2 rates consistent with staff at other USHYV locations and fair market
value.

b. Non-physician staffing shall be employed by the Company, with the
Company paying the actual costs of such staffing.

10, Marketing and Branding, The Parties will agree on the branding that will be used
for the Facility.

i1, Licensing and Accreditation. The Parties will take all necessary action to ensure
the Facility is licensed and operated in accordance with all regulatory requirements.

12. No Public Announcements. Neither Poinicore nor USHV will make any public
announcement regarding this LOI or the subject matter hereof without the prior written consent of
the other.

13, Tem of Definitive Agreements, The Company shall have a perpetual existence.
The operating agreement will provide for the expulsion of a Member for its failure to make
required contributions and dissolution of the Company upon a Member's bankruptcy. The
agreements, including the management services agreement and development agreement, will have
terms to be agreed to by the Parties.

14, Term of this LQJ. The LOI shall terminate on the first to occur oft (i) the expiration
of a period of one hundred and eighty (180) days from the Effective Date of this LOI unless both
parties mutually agree to extend or (ii) the execution of Definitive Agreements by both parties.
Upon termination of this LOI, the Parties shall have no further obligations hereunder, except as set
forth in paragraph 15,

15. Confidentiality. The Parties continue to be bound by the Confidentiality
Agreement dated June 10, 2020. Further, each Party agrees that it will not disclose to anyone, other

1054B82\312182666.v

Attachment 4
51



#23-008

than the persons described in the Confidentiality Agreement, the terms of this LOI, the fact that
discussions or negotiations are taking place concerning the Definitive Agreements, or any of the
terms, conditions or other facts related to the development of the Definitive Agreements.

16. Post-Termination Obligations, The Parties undersiand and agree that no contract
or agreement shall be deemed to exist between the Parties regarding any arrangement that is
contemplated by thizs LO! unless and until the relevant parties execute Definitive Agreements or
other documents with respect thereto. Unless and until Definitive Agreements have been executed
and delivered, neither Party has any legal obligation of any kind whatsoever with respeet to the
creation of the Company or any other collaboration or arrangement by virtue of this LOI, except
as related to the provisions of the paragraphs numbered 15, 16, 17 and 18.

17.  Project Planning.

a. In the interest of time, the Parties agree in good faith to commence
the planning phase of the Project. USHYV shall, in consultation with and with the
approval of OSF, lead such efforts, which shall include site due diligence,
regulatory filings (including a Certificate of Need filing with the Illinois Health
Facilities and Services Review Board), reimbursement review with the Illinois
Department of Healthcare and Family Services and other operational planning
matters. OSF shall provide local knowledge and experience with regulatory and
government affairs matters, with agencies, and with clinical services and other
resources to support project planning.

b. As described in paragraph ¢ below, the Parties will share the costs
of certain mutually approved third party advisors who will assist with the planning
phase of the Project.

<. The Company will serve as the vehicle 1o facilitate project planning
and regulatory review. The Company, once formed in accordance with the
Definitive Agreements, will open a bank account in its name, which the Parties will
fund with an opening balance of $250,000, with contribution based on pro rata
ownership—namely, $200,000 will be contributed by USHV proportional to its
80% ownership interest, and $50,000 will be contributed by OSF proportional to
its 20% ownership interest. 1f the Project is not consummated, or if the LOI is
terminated, any remaining funds in the account will be returned to the Parties based
on contribution percentage. No Party will use any funds from the initial
contribution to pay for services of their staff, attorneys or consultants, except as
may be specifically approved by the other Party.

18.  Miscellaneous.
a. Waiver, It is understood and agreed that no failure or delay by either
Party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver

thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further
exercise thereof or the exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder.

10542821312182666 v1
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b. Govemning Law. This LOI shal! be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois applicable to agreements exccuted
in and to be performed entirely in the State.

c. No Assignment, This LOI shatl not be assigned by operation of law
or otherwise; provided, however, that each Party may assign its rights and
obligations hereunder to its wholly owned affiliate.

d. Amendments, No amendments or modifications of this LOI or
waiver of the terms and conditions hereof shall be binding upon cither Party unless
in a document signed by each of the Parties.

e. Prior Commmunications. This LOI supersedes in its entirety any prior
written or oral communications between the Parties relating to the subject matter

hereof, except that any confidentiality obligations set forth in prior agreements shail
continue according to their terms.

f. Counterparts: Signatures. This LOI may be executed in
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but together shall constitute
one and the same instrument. Facsimile signatures and electronic signatures via
portable document format (.pdf) shall be deemed acceptable and binding.

g Transaction Costs and Other Expenses, Each Party shall bear its own
legal, accounting and administrative expenses in connection with the investigation,
negotiation, and consummation of this LOI and the Definitive Agreements.

[signatures follow]

105488203121 82666 w1
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If the foregoing correctly sets forth our understanding, please sign and return to me the duplicate
original of this LOI, exccuted on behalf of Pointcore.

Very truly yours,
US HealthVest, LLC

‘Meezz&k
By:

7 Richard A. Kresch, M.D.
President and CEO

Acknowledged and agreed to the foregoing terms of this LOI.

Pointco;”c.
Name:_Eeobey- (L(&g‘bﬂ]% i
Tite__ O

Date: 737 _/:749«-3

1054882\312082666.v1
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Flood Plain Requirements

Evidence that the site is not located in a floodpiain is shown on the maps on the following two pages.
The map shows the area of the proposed hospital at the indicator, near the terminus of Wood Sage
Road. The area is located in panel section 17053301258, effective 06/01/1983.

The map is obtained from the FEMA Flood Map Service Center. FEMA Flood Map Service Center is the
official public service for flood hazard information produced in support of the National Flood Insurance
Program (NFIP). The legend on the map indicates that No Digital Data Available to indicate flood hazard
status.

To obtain more information, contact was made with the Planning Department, City of Peoria,

The office provided a second map, confirming that the site of the proposed area is an area of minimal
flood hazard. The site of the proposed hospital is currently undeveloped vacant property, located in 1D
Parcel 130220009 immediately north of the existing cancer center and its associated parking. The
representative from the City of Peoria signed the 500-Year Floodplain Determination Form and
confirmed that the project site is not in a floodplain.

As a result, the project complies with the requirements of Hlinois Executive Order #2006-5.

See also Section XI - Special Flood Hazard Area and 500-Year Floodplain Determination Form,
Attachment 39, at the end of the Attachments section of this permit application.
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10/9/22, 10:05 AM FEMA Flood Map Service Center | Search By Address

@ FEMA FEMA Flood Map Service Center: Search By
Address

Navigation Enter an address place or coordinates 2]
000 Wood Sage Rd Peoria, IL 61615
Search - T

Whether you are in a high risk zone or net, you may rleed ﬂngmsyun;gjhnu_{[_mfgma, mmamna.l_
flood-insurance-program) because most homeovmers msurance doesn’t cover flood damage Ifyou live in an
Lan gua ges area with low or moderate flood risk, you are 5 ties more likely to expenence fiood than a fire m your home
over the next 30 years. For many, a National Flood nsurance Program's flocd insurance policy could cost bess
than $400 per year. Call your insurance agent today and protect what you'e built

MSC Home (/portal/) Learn more about sleps you ¢an take (s /fwww ferma goyiwhat mitigation) to reduce fiood risk damage
MSC Search by Address
{/portal/search)
Search Results—Products for PEORIA, CITY OF
MSC Search All Products — s e
{/portal/advanceSearch) Show ALL Products » (htips://msc.fema. gov/portallavallabllltySearch?addcommunlty =1 70536&commun|tyNarne PEOF

~ MSC Products and Tools
Vportalfresources/productsandtools)  The flaag map for the selected area is number 17053301258, effective on 06/01/1983 @
Hazus

{/portaliresourcesthazus) MAP IMAGE
LOMC Batch Fifes

Uporaliresourcesiiome) Jmmgmmmwmmsﬁ) gﬁé

I P RINT DOWNLOAD
Product Availability i 7 ARMFANEL

{(/portaliproductAvailabilitys (httpss/ f 20v/ /d loadPraduct?
MSC Frequently Asked = = -
Cuestions (FAQs) .

[/porta¥resources/fag) Changes to this FIRM ©
Revisions (8)

Amendments {95}

Revalidations (0}

MSC Email Subsceriptions
(fportalfsubscriptionHome]

Contact MSC Help

[/portalfresources/contact)
You can choose a new flood map or move the locotion pin by selecting o different location on the locotor map below ar by
entering @ new locotion i the seorch field above. it may toke o minute or mare during peck hours to generate a dyrcmic
FiRMette

£6

htips:ifmsc.fema.gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=9000 Wood Sage Rd Peoria%2C IL 61615#searchresultsanchor 1/2
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Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

The letter on the next page states that the lllinois State Historic Preservation Office has reviewed
information regarding the location of the proposed behavioral hospital, and has determined that “no
significant historic, architectural or archeological resources are located within the proposed project
area.”

Attachment 6
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ILLINOIS

[llinois Department of
Natural Resources JB Pritzker, Governor

v B | (ne Natural Resources Way  Springfield, Illinois 62702-1271 Collcen Callahan, Dircctor

NATURAL www.dneillinois.gov
RESOURCES

i

Peoria County PLEASE REFER TO: SHPO LOG #022111422
Peoria

8600 Block of North State Route 91

IHFSRB

*New construction, medical facility - Peoria Behavioral Hospital

January 3, 2023

Ralph Weber

Weber Alliance

920 Hoffman Lane
Riverwoods, II. 60015

Dear Mr. Weber:

The Hlinois State Historic Preservation Office is required by the lllinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 1LCS 3420, as
amended, 17 IAC 4180) to review all state funded, permitted or licensed undertakings for their effect on cultural resources. Pursuant to this,
we have received information regarding the referenced project for our comment.

Our staff has reviewed the specifications under the state law and assessed the impact of the project as submitted by your office. We have
determined, based on the available information, that no significant historic, architectural or archaeological resources are located within the
proposed project area.

According to the information you have provided concerning your proposed project, apparently there is no federal involvement in your
project. However, please note that the state law is less restrictive than the federal cultural resource laws concerning archaeology. If your
project will use federal loans or grants, need federal agency permits, use federal property, or involve assistance from a federal agency, then
your project must be reviewed under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended. Please notify us immediately if such is the
case.

This clearance remains in effect for two (2) years from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a
clearance for purposes of the IL Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act.

It further assistance is needed please contact Jeff Kruchten, Chief Archaeologist at 217/785-1279 or Jeffery kruchien@illinois.gov.

Sincerely,

CﬂhﬂL.Ma&far

Carey L. Mayer, AIA
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

#23-008

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a
project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated

project cost.

If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of

health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be

equal.
Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $297,580 $71,020 $368.600
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $22,661 $7.339 $30,000
Site Preparation $377,687 $122,313 $500,000
Off Site Work $679,837 $220,163 $900,000
New Construction Contracts $19,838,670 $6,268,000 $26,106,670
Modernization Contracts
Contingencies $1,983,867 $626,800 $2,610,667
Architectural/Engineering Fees $1,388,707 $438,760 $1,827,467
Consulting and Other Fees $264,381 $85,619 $350,000
Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction contracts) $642,068 $207,932 e
Bond Issuance Expense {project related)
Net Interest Expense During Construction {project related)
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs to Be Capitalized

-7 $225,000 $525,000 $750,000

- artwork $12,500 12,500 $25,000

- signage $11,331 $3,669 $15,000
Acquisition of Building or Other Property {excluding land)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $25,744,288 $8,589,116 $34,333,404

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $25,744,288 $8,589,116 $34,333,404
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issues (project related)
Mortgages
Leases {fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $25,744,288 $8 589 116 $34,333,404
EMZATION rju EAGH LINE TEN - | =
1 PAC i-:n

w’.ifw mm T’l,

&a
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Narrative Descriptions of Line Items

Item 1. Preplanning Costs - $368,600

Market analyses, feasibility studies and background work, real estate analysis and site selection; Phase 1
cultural and environmental assessments; initial traffic and parking studies; legal and zoning
investigation.

Preplanning costs assigned to clinical uses total $297,580. This amount is 1.3% of $22,464,605, the total
of $19,838,670 for clinical construction plus $1,983,867 clinical contingency plus $642,068 clinical
equipment. As a result, it meets the State standard, under 1.8%.

Item 2. Site survey and soil investigation - $30,000

Soil testing and geotechnical work; property survey.

Item 3. Site Preparation - $500,000

Site work includes earthwork and grade leveling, utility infrastructure installation, irrigation and
drainage systems, retention pond configuration, asphalt paving, and landscaping; access road
construction,

Item 4. Off-site work - $900,000

This budget includes the project’s contribution to public improvements including new roadways on the
parcel of which Lot 2 {the project site) is part, including turn lanes, sighage and signalization.

The total site related work items 2, 3 and 4 is $1,430,000, of which $1,080,185 is assigned to clinical.
$1,080,185 is 4.9% of the total $21,822,537, the sum of clinical construction ($19,838,670) plus clinical
contingency {$1,983,867). It meets the State standard, under 5.0%.

item 5. New Construction Contracts - $26,106,670

Construction of a two story building of approximately 64,000 sq ft is $26,106,670. Cost includes
foundation and slab, core and shell, TPO roofing, doors and windows, thermal and moisture protection,
fixed equipment (other than medical equipment referenced below), interior buildout and finishings, and

contractor’s overhead. Electrical, plumbing and heating and air conditioning systems are included.

Of the total construction cost, $19,838,670 is allocated to clinical uses.
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Item 7. Contingencies - $2,610,667

Contingencies are allowances for unforeseen circumstances, such as delays in shipping and receipt of
materials and supplies that affect the construction schedule, escalation above anticipated pricing of
materials and labor, or site conditions resulting in plan modification.

The total construction contingency is 10% of the total construction cost. The clinical construction
contingency of $1,983,867 is 10% of clinical construction costs.

Item 8. Architectural and Engineering Fees - $1,827,467

A/E fees include the functional program and space plan, preliminary design, schematic design, design
development, construction document services, bidding and negotiation, and construction administration
services. Site related architectural services are also included in this amount. The costs of A/E services
are 51,827,467, of which $1,388,707 is allocated to clinical uses.

For clinical construction, A/E services of $1,388,707 amounts to 6.4% of the totat $21,822,537 for clinical
construction plus clinical contingency. This amount is consistent with the State standard’s range of 5.52
to 8.28% for hospital facility projects with construction and contingency totaling under $25,000,000.
Item 9. Consulting and Other Fees - $350,000

This work includes legal fees related to the joint venture, utilities during construction, and builder’s risk
insurance policy premiums. It also includes regulatory and permit fees, including Certificate of Need
consulting and IDPH fees, as well as commissioning fees.

Item 10. Moveable Equipment not in construction contracts - $850,000

The total amount for equipment and furnishings is $850,000, of which 5642,068 is associated with
clinical services.

Clinical area furnishings include patient room beds and wardrobes, seclusion room beds, tables, chairs
and sofas, loveseats and side tables for therapy spaces, consult rooms and day rooms. Equipment for
patient areas include TV sets with protective enclosures, and washers and dryers for patient clothing.
Furnishings include tables and chairs for waiting areas, conference rooms, and administrative and staff

areas, desks and work stations.

Item 14. Other Costs to be Capitalized - $790,000

Information technology includes computers, switches, cabling $750,000

Artwork for lobby and public areas, waiting, exam rooms $25,000

Directional signage and signs for functional areas $15,000
Attachment 7
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Cost Space Requirements
{departmental gross sq ft)

Department/Area Cost Gross Square Feet | Amount of Proposed Total Gross Sq Ft That Is:
Existing | Proposed | New Const | Modernized| Asls Vacated
Construction Costs Clinical Non-¢linical Cost/fsf Total
CLINICAL/REVIEWABLE

AMI beds $16,878,060 $410 [ $16,878,060 41166 41166

Intake $590,810 5410 $590,810 1441 1441

Physical Therapy $258,300 5410 $258,300 630 630

QOutpatient Program $728,980 5410 $728,980 1778 1778

Pharmacy $178,350 $410 5178,350 435 435

Medical Records $188,600 $410 $188,600 460 460

Dining $1,015,570 $410 | 51,015,570 2477 2477

Subtotal Clinical $19,838,670 $19,838,670 43387 43387

NON-REVIEWABLE

Lobby, reception, waiting $362,000 5400 $362,000 205 905
Public toilets 544,300 5400 544,800 112 112
Administration, conference room 52,632,800 $400 | 52,632,800 6582 6582
Lockers and lounge $119,200 $400 $119,200 298 298
Storage $450,800 5400 $490,800 1227 1227
Kitchen $966,800 5400 5966,800 2417 2417
Mech, bldg syst, houseskeep $500,400 5400 $500,400 1251 1251
Circulation $1,151,200 S400 | 51,151,200 2878 2878
Subtotal Non-Clinical $6,268,000 $6,268,000 15670 15670
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION $19,838,670 | $6,268,000 $26,106,670 64057 64057

Other Proj Costs

Preplanning Costs $297,580 $71,020 $368,600
Site Survey / Soil $22,661 $7,339 $30,000
Site Preparation $377,687 $122,313 $500,000
Off Site Work $679,837 $220,163 $900,000
Contingenties 51,983,867 %626,800 52,610,667
AJE fees $1,388,707 $438,760 $1,827,467
Consulting, fees $264,381 $85,619 $350,000
Moveable Equipt, Furniture 5642,068 $207,932 $850,000

Bond Issuance Expense

Net Int Exp Dur Constr

Other Capital Costs

-IT $225,000 $525,000 $750,000
- artwork $12,500 $12,500 $25,000
- signage $11,331 53,669 $15,000
Subtotal $5,905,618 [ $2,321,116 $8,226,734
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $25,744,288 | 58,589,116 $401.90 | 534,333,404

Attachment 9
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US HealthVest Facilities in Mlinois

Chicago Behavioral Hospital
555 Wilson Lane
Des Plaines, IL 60016

Lake Behavioral Hospital
2615 Washington Street
Waukegan, IL 60085

Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital
1004 Pawlak Parkway
New Lenox, IL 60451

64
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OSF Healthcare System List of Facilities in lllinois

OSF HealthCare Holy Family Medical Genter

1000 W. Harlem Avenue

Monmouth, lllinois 61462

License #: 0005439, Expiration 4/11/23

Joint Commission: Critical Access Hospital-no Joint Commission Certificate

OSF HealthCare Saint Francis Medical Center
530 NE Glen Oak Avenue

Pecria, lllinois 61637

License #: 0002394, Expiration 12/31/23

Joint Commission: 2/1/20, 36 months

OSF HealthCare Saint Anthony’s Health Center
One Saint Anthony's Way

Alton, lllinois 62002-0340

License #: 0005942, Expiration 10/31/23

Joint Commission: 5/7/21, 36 months

OSF HealthCare Saint James-John W. Albrecht Medical Center
2500 W. Reynolds Street

Pontiac, Itlinois 61764

License #: 0005264, Expiration 3/2/23

Joint Commission: 12/20/2019, 36 months (has not been surveyed yet)

OSF HealthCare St. Joseph Medical Center

2200 E. Washington Street

Bloomington, ltlinois 61701

License #: 0002535, Expiration 12/31/23

Joint Commission: 12/14/19, 36 maonths (has not been surveyed yet)

OSF HealthCare Saint Anthony Medical Center

5666 E. State Street

Rockford, lllinois 61108-2472

License #: 0002253, Expiration 12/31/23

Joint Commission: 11/23/19, 36 months (has not been surveyed yet)

OSF HealthCare Saint Luke Medical Center

1051 West South Street

Kewanee, lllinois 61443

License #: 0005926, Expiration 3/31/23

Joint Commission: Critical Access Hospital-no Joint Commission Certificate

OSF HealthCare Saint Elizabeth Medical Center
1100 E. Norris Drive

Ottawa, lllinois 61350

License #:; 0005520, Expiration 5/14/23

Joint Commission: 7/17/20, 36 months

OSF HealthCare St. Mary Medical Center

3333 N. Seminary Street

Galesburg, lllinois 61401

License #: 0002675, Expiration 12/31/23

Joint Commission: 11/1/2019, 36 months (has not been surveyed yet)

OSF HealthCare Saint Paul Medical Center

1401 E. 12th Street

Mendota, lllinois 61342

License #: 0005819, Expiration 12/6/23

Joint Commission: Critical Access Hospital-no Joint Commission Certificate

5
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OSF Healthcare Sacred Heart Medical Center
812 N. Logan Avenue

Danville, lllinois 61832

License #: 0006072, Expiration 2/1/24

Joint Commission: 2/28/20, 36 months

OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center
1400 W. Park Street

Urbana, lllincis 61801

License #: 0006080, Expiration 2/1/24

Joint Commission: 2/11/21, 36 months:

QOSF Saint Elizabeth Medical Center Freestanding Emergency Center

111 Spring Street

Streator, lilinois 61364

License #: 22006, Expiration 8/8/23

Joint Commission: 7/17/20, 36 manths (included with Saint Elizabeth Medical Center)

OSF Little Company of Mary Medical Center
2800 W, 95" Street

Eveargreen Park, lllinois 60805

License #: 0006163, Expiration 1/31/24

Joint Commission: 5/6/22, 36 months

OSF Saint Clare Medical Center

530 Park Avenue East

Princeton, IL 61356

License #: 006254, Expiration 6/30/23

Joint Commission: Critical Access Hospital-no Joint Commission Certificate

OSF Healthcare Transitional Care Hospital
500 W. Romeo B. Garrelt Avenue

Peoria, IL 61605

License #: 006262, Expiration 9/30/23

Joint Commission: 5/6/22, 36 months
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V Covington, LLC
Waukegan, 1L

has been Accredited by

The Joint Commission

Which has surveyed this organization and found it to mect the requirements for the

Behavioral Health Care and Human Services Accreditation Program

October 1, 2020

Accreditation is customarily valid for up 1o 36 months.

Qﬂ/lk,p H . [2’/\/\'—0’&’ 1D #7441 /%M 5%@/2 2

David Perratt, MD, DD5, MBA, FACS Priut/Reprini Date: 10V972020 Mark R. Chasin, MDD, FACE, MPP, MPH
Ciwtir, Bound of Commissioners Prosident

The Joinl Comnission is an independem, not-for-profit national body that oversees the safety and quality of health care and
ather services provided in accredited organizations. Fnforrmation about accrediled organizations may be provided ditectly to
The Jofnt Commission at 1-800-994-6610. Information regarding accreditation and the sccreditation performance of
individun! organizations ¢an be oblained through The Jnint Commission's web site at www.jointcommaission.org.

Attachment 11
LB



#23-008

BGEOE & OO & £ gy e .
‘h’: m‘:ﬁ?’ VR "‘":i' L"*S%’A‘r q"’t Q?;'l ,\& ﬁ"}‘ \'{1 "‘f{-ﬁ"}a L35 "" '}

- DISPLAY THIS PART IN A
CONSPICUOUS PLACE

amwmmwwnwnmwmmhmm.p a’ T U gl L LS

Ngozi 0. Ecke, MD. %W

| oo | L ooostiar. - |4 * Exp. Date 112212023
3 | Psychlatlic Hoapihl S [ RS e T
2 X }

ML
SO

Eﬁem @112312022 e o Date Printed 12!2125_21

3 E % g

2 B
£ 5 5 T b | * o
el . v . ol e S
? ‘Silver Qaks Behavorial Hospital SR R
T ‘-‘ 1] il %

1004 Pawiek Parkway R .
PR i ; LAy : ialH "
New Lenox, IL 80451 : g . :fi} Silver Oaks Behavorial Hospital ;
S .. $&8 . 1004 Pawlak Parkway
: 23; New Lenox, Il 80451

A‘ o T IO A UL S w« \‘:»*\’:;”L;&J’e%} FEE RECEIPTNO, =

Attachment 11
&9



#23-008

SilVCI" Oaks Behavioral, LLC
New Lenox, IL

has been Accredited by

The Joint Commission

Which has surveyed this organization and found it to meet the requirements for the
Behavioral Health Care and Human Services Accreditation Program

March 1, 2022

Accreditation is customarily valid for up to 36 months

Q;(ML, { ﬂ i ‘.\du‘/ ID #629023 Wm
funathan B. in, MD, F-I'ID. MSH.:A. MACP, FACMI

Englcbright, PhD RN, CENPIBAAN Print/Reprm Date: 05/04/2022
President and Chief Exceutive Officer

Chair, Board of Commissioners

The Joint Commission is an independent, not-for-profit national body that oversees the safety and quality of health care and
other services provided in accredited organizations. Information about accredited organizations may be provided directly to
The Joint Commission at 1-800-994-6610. Information regarding accreditation and the accreditation performance of
individual organizations can be obtained through The Joint Commission's web site at www jointcommission.org.
n"}':‘-'._!-n.'._'
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2014 Health, LLC
Des Plaines, IL

has been Accredited by

ey Tl

o The Joint Commission

Which: haﬂ surveyed this organization and found it to meet the requirements for ihe

ok e - Hospital Accreditation Program

A : February 12, 2022

A'gc_;re'rlllatiiﬂn is cusT['omari]y valid for up to 36 months.

. P, MSHA, MACP, FACMIT
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HealthVest

December 6, 2022

Ms, Debra Savage, Chairwoman
Minois Health Facilities and

Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street - 7nd Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: No Adverse Actions / Authorized Access to Information
Dear Chairwoman Savage:

I hereby certify that no adverse action has been taken against any facility owned or operated in lllinois
by US Healthvest, directly or indirectly, within three years prior to the filing of this application. For the
purpose of this letter, the term “adverse action” has the meaning given to it in the lllinois Administrative
Code, Title 77, Section 1130.

I hereby authorize the Health Facilities and Services Review Board {“Board”) and the Nlinois Department
of Public Heaith {“IDPH”) to access any documentation they find necessary to verify any documentation
or information submitted, including but not limited to official records of IDPH or other State agencies

If you have any questions, please contact Martina Sze, Chief Development Officer, Us HealthVest at 212-
243-5565, or at msze @ushealthvest.com.

Sincerely,

i

James Chg
Chief Financial Officer
US Healthvest

NOTARY

Subsathd and gunw o ["t_?'“ve—
e <hudy 6™ day of De ke,

202
Q/uﬁ 32 East 57th Street Attachment 11
Alevis P Liatsos 17th Floor
NOTARY FE11LIC, STATE OF NEW YORK New York, New York 10022
Re; iizaninn No. 01116435282 T212.243.5565 - F 212.243.1099 73
Cualified in New York County WWW.UShea“hVE‘St.COI’T'I

Coriniission Expires 06/21/2026




#23-008

November 30, 2022

Ms. Debra Savage, Chairwoman

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: No Adverse Actions / Authorized Access to Information
Dear Chair Savage:

I hereby certify that no adverse action has been taken against OSF Healthcare System (“OSF”) or any
facility owned or operated by OSF, directly or indirectly, within three years prior to the filing of this
application. For the purpose of this letter, the term “adverse action” has the meaning given to it in the
ltinois Administrative Code, Title 77, Section 1130.

I hereby authorize the Health Facilities and Services Review Board (“Board”} and the Illinois Department
of Public Health {“IDPH") to access any documentation they find necessary to verify any documentation
or information submitted, including but not limited to official records of IDPH or other State agencies
and the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations. | further authorize the Board and
IDPH to obtain any additional documentation or information that the Board or IDPH deems necessary to
process the application.

If you have any questions, please contact Mark Hohulin, Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics, at

309-308-9656 or at mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org.

Sincerely,

Srde 6./&514«{
Robert C. Sehring, Chief Executive Officer Notarization:

OSF Healthcare System
124 S.W. Adams Street Subscribed and sworn to before me

Peocria, IL 61602
this 20 day oflUsember 2022
Honde . Mowat

Signature of Notary

Seal ; :
TONDA L. STEWART
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of illinocis
My Commission Expires Sep 18, 2024
bt o casid

Attachment 11

800 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue, Peotia, Illinois 61603-3200 Phone (309) 655-2850 www.osfhealtheare.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis 7 4
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PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health care services that improve the health care or well-being
of the market population to be served.

The 2022 Community Health Needs Assessment for Peoria, Tazewell and Woodford Counties in central
lllinois has identified mental health as the number one health concern of area residents. Mental health
issues outrank obesity, viruses, cancer, aging issues, diabetes and heart disease. Addressing the
community concerns requires high priority attention and coordinated efforts by health care providers
and agencies in the region.

US HealthVest, a nationally significant provider of behavioral health care, and Pointcore, Inc., a wholly
owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System, based in Peoria, and are coming together in a joint venture
to address the need for expanded mental health care in the area. Together, they have planned a 100-
bed hospital specializing in Acute Mental illness {AMI) primarily for adult patients and offering a
comprehensive range of behavioral health outpatient services. The hospital will be located immediately
northeast of the current terminus of Wood Sage Road, on property owned by OSF and housing other
clinical buildings and services near lllinois 91 close to the northern Peoria city limits. An address is
expected to be assigned in December, 2022,

Last year, more than 600 patients at OSF Saint Francis Medical Center’s emergency department had to
leave the region for inpatient AMI care, part of approximately 1,900 adult residents of HSA 2 who left
the HSA for AMI care last year. This access issue is attributed to a lack of sufficient AMI beds at area
hospitals. OSF Saint Elizabeth Medical Center, located in Ottawa in HSA 2, has 26 AM| beds, and is one
of three hospitals in the HSA offering AMI services, along with UnityPoint Health - Methodist Hospital
and UnityPoint - Proctor Hospital. During the past 3 years, two hospitals discontinued their AMI services
(Galesburg Cottage Hospital and McDonough District Hospital), resulting in the combined reduction of
28 AMI beds. In june, 2022, UnityPoint Health - Methodist Hospital reduced its adult AMI service by 9
beds, as part of the establishment of a 44-bed service at the Young Minds Institute in West Peoria.
While there is a current calculated excess of 41 AMI beds in HSA 2 (based on the formula of 11 beds per
100,000 persons) the exodus of patients is experiential evidence that the need is much greater than this
standard.

The proposed 100 bed hospital will offer primarily adult specialized inpatient and outpatient behavioral
health services, including programs for drug abuse, dual diagnosis (mental health and substance abuse),
women’s trauma, veterans and seniors. It is a tremendous burden for families with members struggling
with these conditions who are admitted at facilities more than 100 miles distant. Many of these people
elect to forego needed inpatient care rather than travel to the Chicago area or other distant locations.
The proposed facility will allow for these individuals and their families to receive high quality care
locally.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant’s definition.

OSF Saint Francis Medical Center in Peoria does not have an inpatient Acute Mental lliness service on
which to base its selection of a planning area for the proposed new hospital. As a result, the planning

Attachment 12
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team selected HSA 2 as the planning area, since HSAs are the State’s planning areas in downstate Illinois
for AMI services. The assumption is made that the geographic distribution of patients receiving AMI care
at the new hospital will be similar to the overall distribution of OSF Saint Francis Medical Center
patients, but encompassing a larger number of patients coming from outside the area due to the
specialized behavioral health services offered.

The attached table shows the patient origin data by zip code of patient residents for all services at OSF
Saint Francis Medical Center. 84.2 percent of patients at OSF Saint Francis Medical Center reside in

HSA 2. Because AMI is a specialized service with fewer locations than medical/surgical services, it is
likely that a higher percentage of AMI patients will be from outside the HSA. It is estimated that 60% of
patients at the proposed new AMI hospital will reside in HSA 2.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for
the project.

According to the American Hospital Association, one in four Americans suffer from mentat illness or
substance abuse disorder each year, and the majority also have a comorbid physical condition.
{Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Community, “Conversations about Mental
Health,” American Hospital Association.} In addition, the entire nation is struggling with opiate
addiction, heroin addiction and lack of sufficient service availability for individuals who are chemically
dependent.

More mental health providers are needed nationally, and that is the case in central Illinois. As to
inpatient bed capacity, experts in the field of behavioral health recommend a range of 40 — 50 AMI beds
per 100,000 residents. For example, in an article published by the Pew Charitable Trusts in August,
2016, Pew suggested that at least 40 AMI beds were needed per 100,000 residents. And an article
published in November, 2013 in Modern Healthcare, the Treatment Advisory Center recommended a
minimum of 50 AMI beds per 100,000 residents.

According to Statewide data for lllinois, there are, on average, only 32 beds per 100,000 residents in
IMinois. For the 21 designated planning areas in the State, the ratios range from about 129 in Chicago to
under 10 in five suburban and downstate planning areas. HSA 2 has a ratio of 23 beds per 100,000
population, below the median ratio for the State’s 21 planning areas. There are three inpatient AMI
services in HSA 2, with a 2024 estimated population of 627,900: the 18 beds at UnityPoint Health -
Proctor Hospital, 26 beds at OSF Saint Elizabeth Medical Center in Ottawa, and 103 beds at UnityPoint
Health - Methodist Hospital, when child and adolescent AMI beds recently approved in Project 22-017
are brought online. {147 AMI beds / 627,900 residents estimated in 2024 = 23 beds per 100,000). The
fact that approximately 2,000 adults left HSA 2 for inpatient psychiatric care last year indicates the State
standard of 11 beds per 100,000 is no longer the accurate planning metric that it may have been when it
was adopted in the 70s or 80s. The addition of 100 beds at the proposed hospital, if approved, will raise
the bed count to 247 in HSA 2, or 39 beds per 100,000. This ratio improves the availability of needed
beds, but is still at the low end of the range for AMI beds recommended at 40 — 50 per 100,000 persons.

The lack of adequate AMI beds has required residents of HSA 2 to either go without treatment or travel
outside the planning area for treatment, sometimes at distances of over 100 miles. The table below

Attachment 12
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OSF Saint Francis Medical Center
FY22 Inpatient & Observation patients

All Ages
Patient Zig Patient City Patient County Patient State Ares Cases % of Total Cum %
61604 PECRIA PECRIA 1L HSA2 3,094 7.90% 7.90%
61614 PEORIA PEGRIA IL HSA2 2,152 5.50% 13.40%
61611 EAST PEORIA TAZEWELL IL H542 2,142 5.50%  18.80%
61605 PEORIA PEORIA L H5A2 1,959 5.00%  23.80%
61554 PEKIN TAZEWELL L H5A2 1,835 4.70%  28.50%
61571 WASHINGTON  TAZEWELL I HSA2 1,814 4.60%  33.10%
61603 PEORIA PEORIA IL HSAZ 1,674 430%  37.40%
61615 PEORIA PEORIA I HSA2 1,614 410% 41.50%
61550 MORTON TAZEWELL I HSA2 1,370 3.50%  45.00%
61401 GALESBURG KNOX fiL HSA2 1,163 3.00%  48.00%
61607 PEORIA PECRIA IL HSA2 860 2.20%  50.20%
61548 METAMORA WOODFORD 1L HSA2 784 2.00% 52.20%
61523 CHILLICOTHE PEORIA L H5A2 720 1.80% 54.00%
61525 DUNLAP PEORIA IL HSA2 606 1.50%  55.50%
61520 CANTON FULTON IL HSAZ 573 1.50%  57.00%
61616 PEORIA HEIGHTS PEQRIA L HSA2 511 1.30% 58.30%
61364 STREATOR LA SALLE L HSA2 510 1.30%  59.60%
61462 MONMOUTH WARREN iL HSA2 406 1.00%  60.60%
61610 CREVE COEUR  TAZEWELL IL HS5A2 402 1008  61.70%
61350 OTTAWA LA SALLE I HSA2 344 0.90%  62.50%
61605 PEORIA PEORIA IL HSA2 295 0.80%  63.30%
61530 EUREKA WOODFORD 1L H5A2 293 070%  64.00%
61356 PRINCETON BUREAU IL HSA2 292 0.70%  64.80%
61568 TREMONT TAZEWELL IL HSA2 267 0.70%  B65.50%
61536 HANNA CITY PECRIA It HSAZ 254 0.60%  66.10%
61755 MACKINAW TAZEWELL IL HSA2 234 0.60% 66.70%
61540 LACON MARSHALL L HSA2 224 0.60% 67.30%
51301 LA SALLE LA SALLE IL H35A2 203 050% 67.830%
61528 EDWARDS PEORIA iL HSA2 203 0.50% 68.30%
61455 MACOMB MCDONOUGH 1L H3AZ 191 0.50%  68.80%
61354 PERU LA SALLE I HSA2 187 0.50% 69.30%
61517 BRIMFIELD PEQRIA I HSA2 181 0.50%  69.70%
651547 MAPLETON PEORIA IL HSA2 181 0.50%  70.20%
61602 PEORIA PECRIA 1L H5A2 175 0.40%  70.70%
61559 PRINCEVILLE PEORIA L H5A2 171 0.40%  71.10%
61531 FARMINGTON  FULTON IL HSA2 169 0.40%  71.50%
61561 ROANOKE WOODFORD  IL HSA2 163 0.40%  71.90%
51529 ELMWOOD PECRIA L HS5A2 1562 0.40%  72.40%
61537 HENRY MARSHALL L HSA2 141 0.40%  72.70%
61362 SPRING VALLEY BUREAL iL HSAZ 133 0.30%  73.10%
61410 ABINGDON KNOX I HSAZ 124 0.30%  73.40%
651448 KNOXVILLE KNOX IL HSA2 123 0.30% 73.70%
61433 TOULON STARK It HSA2 123 0.30%  74.00%
61491 WYOMING STARK L HSA2 114 0.30%  74.30%
61542 LEWISTOWN FULTON IL H5A2 106 030%  74.60%
61342 MENDOTA LA SALLE L HSA2 104 0.30%  74.80%
61533 GLASFORD PEORIA IL HSA2 104 0.30%  75.10%
61570 WASHBURN MARSHALL 18 HS5A2 103 0.30%  75.30%
All other HSA2 Zip Codes 3,480 B90%  B84.20%
Total H5A2 Zip Codes 33,033 B84.20%
61443 KEWANEE HENRY IL Non HSA2 637 1.60%  85.80%
61701 BLOOMINGTON MCLEAN L Non HSA2 331 0.80%  85.70%
61764 PONTIAC LIVINGSTON  IL Non H5A2 254 0.60%  87.30%
61704 BLOOMINGTON MCLEAN IL Non H5A2 244 0.60%  88.00%
51761 NORMAL MCLEAN iL Non H5A2 235 0.60%  B8.60%
61265 MOLINE ROCK ISLAND 1L Non H5A2 207 0.50%  89.10%
61545 MANITO MASON I Non HSA2 192 0.50%  89.60%
61201 ROCK ISLAND ROCK ISLAND  IL Non HSA2 182 0.50%  590.00%
61244 EAST MOLINE ROCK ISLAND 1L Non H5A2 147 0.40%  90.40%
61434 GALVA HENRY fiL Non HSA2 123 030% 90.70%
61832 DANVILLE VERMILION L Non H5A2 121 0.30%  91.00%
All other Non HSA2 Zip Codes 3,516 9.00% 100.00%
Total Non HSA2 Zip Codes 6,189 15.80%
Total HSAZ & Non HSA2 Combined 39,222 100.00% Attachment 12
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shows the locations of inpatient AMI care for adult residents of HSA 2 who were hospitalized last year,
according to COMPdata. Of the 4,935 aduit residents hospitalized for inpatient behavioral health care in
2021, 2203 (45%) were either hospitalized at AMI units outside of the HSA (1,898) or in medical/surgical
units at hospitals without AMI beds (305). Of the 1,898 patients who left the area, 1,253 (66%) went to
an AMI facility in the Chicago area (A-01 to 14). In other words, two thirds of the people who could not
get care locally because of lack of an AMI bed traveled to different parts of Chicago to be hospitalized.
This situation reflects a difficult access to care condition, and a hardship for patients and their families.

2021 Adult Behavioral Health Admissions

of HSA 02 residents
Source: COMPdata based on BH
MS DRGs

Lacation of AMi # Patients Location of AMI # Patients Location of AMI # Patients
Admissions Admissions Admissions
HSA 02 2,732 HSA 11 93 Out of State 38
A-07 405 A-01 88 A-14 22
A-02 372 HSA 10 70 A-12 9
HSA 04 323 HS5A 03 66 A-04 6
Non AMI unit 305 HSA 01 55 A-03 3
A-09 143 A-13 47 A-11 3
A-06 109 A-05 43 A-10 2
A-08 1

Total Admissions 4,935

less patients seen in HSA 02 AMI units 2,732
Total adult patients leaving HSA 02 or receiving care in non-AMI unit 2,203

A table later in this permit application {pages 153-155} lists the facilities where residents of HSA 2 were
hospitalized for their behavioral health needs. One would expect that their care was concentrated in a
relatively small number of hospitals. The opposite is the case. According to COMPdata, over the past
four years, HSA 2 residents, including 4,935 residents in 2021, received care for their behavioral health
needs in over 150 facilities:

73 hospital AMI units throughout lllinois

38 hospital AMI units outside of lllinois

48 non-AMI units in lllineis (ie medical units)
This data is evidence of a lack of available capacity and services in the area. Finding places to hospitalize
people in need is a challenge and time-consuming activity for social workers and staff at agencies and
admitting and discharge staff at hospitals responsible for coordinating access to needed service. More
importantly, it is an extreme hardship for patients and their families when care is available only at
significant distances from home. This condition reflects that more than 11 beds per 100,000 persons are
needed to accommodate the behavioral health needs of residents of the area.

Attachment 12
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Thousands of patients in the service area are forced to travel long distances to access behavioral health
services due to lack of bed capacity. US HealthVest is especially attuned to this problem, with more than
1,000 patients this year coming from downstate Illinois to the three US HealthVest hospitals in the
Chicago area, ranging from 139 to 197 miles from Peoria. This condition creates an undue burden on
family members who need to travel long distances to support their family members hospitalized
elsewhere. Long travel times leads to separation and less beneficial support by family members,
increasing anxiety for both patients and their families. The lack of access to care leaves patients with
two options: (1) travel far from home or (2) forego care, which is inhumane and undignified. Forcing
patients to travel long distances adds stress, complication and cost to patients seeking mental health
services and can exacerbate and worsen. Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will provide access to care to
all patients regardless of ability to pay and regardless of race, economic or social status. This new
hospital will provide patients with safe and high-quality behavioral health services closer to home.

Equally important is that accessing programs outside the planning area presents obstacles for
coordination of care, since continuity of care for patients with familiar local physicians and support staff
is important to bringing patients to stable status.

It is worth noting that in the past 9 years, 13 AMI units in community hospitals in Illinois closed. (See the
following table.) Nine of these were outside of metropolitan Chicago in downstate (llinois. A total of 252
authorized AMI beds in these 13 hospitals were closed. Two of these units (McDonough District Hospital
and Galesburg Cottage Hospital) were in HSA 2. While several other hospitals in the State added beds to
their AMI units during the same period, many communities in downstate Illinois saw their access to
necessary inpatient behavioral health services restricted due to these closures.

Closures of AMI units in Hlinois

2013 - 2022
Facility # AMI Beds Date approved HSA [/ Area
or reported
HSHS St. Elizabeth - Belleview 35 9/24/2013 11
McDonough District Hospital 20 9/17/2019 2
HSHS 5t. John's - Springfield 32 9/17/2019 3
AMITA Alexian Brothers Medical Center 25 10/22/2019 7
Metro South Medical Center 14 10/22/2019 A-04
Passavant Area Hospital 10 5/4/2020 3
Alton Memorial Hospital 20 8/31/2020 11
OSF Little Company of Mary Medical Ctr 24 9/12/2020 A-04
Javon Bea Hospital - Rockton Campus 20 9/22/2020 1
Holy Family Hospital - Greenville 10 3/22/2021 5
Galesburg Cottage Hospital 16 4/26/2022 2
{llini Community Hospital 10 7/25/2022 3
Richland Memorial Hospital - Olney 16 | NA 5
Total 252

Source: Monthly Reports, HFSRB
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As stated in the introduction to this section, the 2022 Community Health Needs Assessment for Peoria,
Tazewell and Woodford Counties in central Illinois has identified mental health as the number one
health concern of area residents. Mental health issues outrank obesity, viruses, cancer, aging issues,
diabetes and heart disease. The table on the next page displays this information. An accompanying
table lists unhealthy behaviors, the majority of which are related to mental health conditions: drug
abuse (illegal), drug abuse (legal), anger/violence, alcohol abuse, domestic violence and child abuse.

These conditions are especially significant in several sections of Peoria and West Peoria that are
impoverished and measure high (unfavorable) on the CDC’s vulnerability assessment. (This information
is presented in the Safety Net Impact section of this permit application.) A major purpose of the project
is to address the disparities that exist for populations in special need of behavioral health services.

Few would argue that this decade, young as it is, is different and much less comfortable than previous
eras. The stress and anxiety caused by the worldwide pandemic in the past two and a half years has
directly or indirectly touched everyone. COVID-19 has affected our lives in every way — how our families
function, how we work, how children and adults go to school, how we shop, our religious observances,
our socialization with friends and neighbors ... virtually every facet of our lives and society. Increasing
levels of violence in our communities is a significant threat to feelings of safety and security, causing
increased stress and anxiety. The list of stressors continues with the highest levels of inflation in 40
years, the expectation of recession, dilemmas related to supply chain causing delays in production,
construction, and not being able to access things previously taken for granted. Demand for
appointments with counselors, psychologists, psychiatrists has increased dramatically, with people
looking for consolation and advice on how to cope with increasingly complex life events. The
extensiveness of stress and anxiety has led the US Preventive Services Task Force to recommend that
primary care visits include anxiety screening for all persons under 65 (New York Times, September 11,
2022.)

For those whose needs escalate to the level of inpatient care, access to an insufficient supply of local
AMI beds is an especially important health issue.

Major burdens during these trying times are borne by populations with health care and racial disparities.
Families and individuals with lesser resources are least capable of coping with social, economic and
health issues. Very often their needs go unaddressed, due to their limited resources, lack of time and
inability to access needed outpatient and inpatient behavioral health care. Parts of the Peoria area are
rated in the highest category of the CDC’s Social Vulnerability Index.

A significant number of providers, agencies, citizens and elected officials support the need to add beds
in the region, in part to address the exodus of patients who travel out of HSA 2 for care. Their concerns
mirror the findings of the 2022 Community Health Needs Assessment and reflect the daily struggles of
individuals and their families facing limited resources for needed inpatient behavioral health care.

Finally, psychiatric care covers a range of conditions, with increasingly specialized expertise required for
treatment. Generalist approaches are ineffective at addressing the range of issues from substance
abuse, spouse abuse, women’s trauma, schizophrenia, PTSD and other veteran’s conditions, geriatric
issues including dementias, to depression and other disorders.
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5.2 Perceptions of Unhealthy Behaviors

Respondents were asked to select the three most important unhealthy behaviors in the community out of
a total of 10 choices. The three unhealthy behaviors that rated highest were drug abuse (illegal) at 30%,
drug abuse (legal) at 15% and anger/violence at 14% (Figure 81).

Figure 81

Perceptions of Unhealthy Behaviors
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4. Cite the sources of documentation.

- COMPdata, 2021, lilinois Hospital Association

- OSF Saint Francis Medical Center, emergency department records

- HFSRB Hospital Profiles, Inventory of Health Facilities and Services and Need Determinations,
Monthly Updates to the Inventory of Health Facilities and Services

- Community Health Needs Assessment, - Peoria County, Tazewell County, Woodford County, OSF
Saint Francis Medical Center, UnityPoint Health — Central lllinois

- “A human-centered vision for improving the mental health ecosystem. Five basis shifts in the care
ecosystem could change how those who need it most can access timely, affordable, effective and
equitable mental health care.” by the Deloitte Center for Government Insights.

- “Behavioral Health Equity for All Communities: Policy Solutions to Advance Equity Across the Crisis
Continuum” National Governors Association, August 2, 2022

- “Estimating Psychiatric Bed Shortages in the US,” Ryan K. Bain, PhD, MPH, Jonathan Cantor, PhD,
Nicole K. Eberhart, PhD, JAMA Psychiatry, 2022, February 16, 2022

- “National Guidelines for Behavioral Health Crisis Care — Best Practice Toolkit,” Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Services Administration, February, 2020

- “Amid Shortages of Psychiatric Beds, Mentally Il Face Long Wait Times for Treatment,” Ollove,
Michael, Pew Charitable Trusts/Research Analysis/Stateline, August 2, 2016

- “Bedding, Not Boarding: Psychiatric Patients Boarded in Hospital EDs Create Crisis for Patient Care
and Hospital Finances,” Kutscher, Beth, Modern Healthcare, November, 2013

- U.S. Psychiatric Patients Face Long Waits in Hospital ERs,” Thompson, Dennis, Healthday, Oct, 2016

- “Health Panel Recommends Anxiety Screening for All Adults under 65,” Emily Baumgaertner,
September 20, 2022, New York Times

- “Marijuana and Public Health,” Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Qctober 19, 2020

Attachments 12A — 12G include several of these articles for reference.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the
population status and well-being.

The proposed hospital addresses all the above-referenced shortcomings in Acute Mental Iliness in
Planning Area HSA 2. By creating a program of greater scale, psychiatric services can be expanded and
enriched. Based on the national experience of US HealthVest, and its local experience at Chicago
Behavioral Hospital, Lake Behavioral Hospital and Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital as proof of approach,
the scale of the program achieves a critical mass that enables specialized services that are difficult to
provide within the smaller units of community hospitals — specialized services such as dual diagnosis
{mental health and drug and alcohol abuse), women only services, spousal abuse, treatment of veterans
with PTSD, and the special needs of seniors. There are no HSA 2 specialized units dedicated for
chemically dependent patients, no units for veterans, and no specialized units treating women that have
been abused or traumatized. The proposed hospital, focusing primarily on the needs of adults, will have
the capacity to treat these gaps in service and ensure that these marginalized populations will have the
high quality of care that they require and deserve.

Acute Mental Illness is far from a uniform illness. Services in place at the other US Healthvest
behavioral health hospitals are specialized and responsive to the vast range of needs of patients. Based
on US HealthVest’s national experience, the following specialized programs will be in place at the new
hospital:
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Adult psychiatric

The adult program offers treatment for adults who have moderate to severe psychiatric and behavioral
problems. Our programs are tailored to each patient’s needs enabling them to more effectively cope
with their emotions and behaviors. The program purpose is to promote the maximum cognitive, social,
physical, behavioral and emotional development in each of our patients. Methods of treatment include
medication management, group and individual therapy, and discharge planning,

Senior Adult

Older adults often have unique and complex needs and experience physical and lifestyle changes that
can negatively impact their emotional wellbeing. Psychiatric and behavioral concerns, combined with
medical issues, complicate the diagnosis, care and treatment of seniors. Age sensitive treatment and
discharge planning is provided to assist our geriatric patients to achieve or regain the highest level of
independence possible and help preserve their quality of life.

Women Only

The Women'’s Program addresses the unique mental health and chemical dependency needs of women
in crisis through evidence-based therapeutic approaches. The program addresses such issues as trauma,
depression related to reproductive issues, loss of pregnancy, post-partum depression, anxiety and
obsessive disorders, relationship issues, eating disorders, and other serious disorders women may
encounter. Only women attend the specialized therapy and educational groups. The gender-specific
approach enhances the effectiveness of therapy by providing a safe environment to process sensitive
issues,

Extra Mile Veteran Care

The Extra Mile Veteran Care Program provides treatment for PTSD, substance dependence and mental
health issues, such as depression and anxiety in an environment designed with the veteran in mind. We
understand teamwork and veterans. OQur specially trained therapists and technicians will work together
with veterans to help them overcome barriers and restore balance to their lives.

Faith Based Mental Health

The proposed Faith Based specialty group program provides unique inpatient and outpatient care where
patients include personal religious beliefs and their faith in God throughout the treatment process. The
program merges sound professional counseling with Biblical principles to provide a Christian
atmosphere for recovery from serious mental health and chemical dependency problems.

Dual-diagnosis

The dual-diagnosis program is an integrated therapy program that focuses on adults who face multiple
mental heaith disorders or a combination of mental iliness and drug or alcohol dependency, also known
as co-occurring disorders. Patients receive motivational enhancement therapy, cognitive behavioral
therapy, and 12-step facilitation therapy. The program allows patients to recognize and manage the
issues related to their mental iliness and chemical dependency problems.

Most especially, the proposed hospital will give residents of central lllinois more opportunity to receive
needed care close to home, where family members and friends can participate during the treatment and
recovery phases of care. The project resolves the need for many patients to travel long-distances to
access inpatient AMI services in Chicago (as is the case for two-thirds of adults who leave HSA 2) and
elsewhere outside of HSA 2.
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There are uncounted numbers of adult patients who are unable to or choose to not receive inpatient
care due to the cost, emotional challenges and practical problems associated with traveling to inpatient
hospitals far from their homes. The project will directly address this problem by providing the right care
at a central location in the Planning Area.

US HealthVest and OSF understand that access to care is also a matter of geography — people need to be
able to get to care, and that is especially the case for adults with social disparities, when access to a car
is not a certainty. The location of the new hospitat on a developing medical campus between State
Route 91 and Highway 6 is highly accessible by car and bus. The #3 Northwest Peoria bus connects the
site of the proposed hospital with OSF Saint Francis Medical Center in downtown Peoria. The bus route
and schedule are shown on the next pages. As pointed out elsewhere in the permit application, US
HealthVest makes a practice of shuttling patients and families so traveling locally for care is not often
the obstacle that it has been and continues to be when project planning is not attentive.

Section 1110.210 of this permit application documents that in 2022, 1,091 residents of lllinois outside of
the metropolitan area and primarily from central Iflinois traveled to receive inpatient AMI care at the
three US HealthVest hospitals in the Chicago area. {628 to Chicago Behavioral Hospital, 388 to Lake
Behavioral Hospital, and 75 to Silver Qaks). These trips range from 139 to 197 miles from Peoria each
way and constitute a tremendous hardship for patients and their families. The establishment of a US
HealthVest hospital in central Illinois will enable this significant volume of patients to receive AMI| care
locally, and for US HealthVest to regionalize its care delivery system.

6. Provide goals with guantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to
achieving the stated goals as appropriate.
- Increase the AMI bed to 100,000 population ratio in HSA 2 from 23 to 39.
- Achieve 85% utilization of the new 100 bed facility by December, 2027.
- Reduce the percentage of adult residents of the HSA who receive care outside the HSA 2 from 39%
to at most 10%.
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CityLink ~ Greater Peoria Mass Transit — existing service to proposed new haospital site
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CityLink — Greater Peoria Mass Transit — existing service to proposed new hospital site

“3-NORTHWEST PEORIA

Times are approximate and may vary
due to weather, road, and traffic conditions.
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he US is confronting an urgent and worsening shortage of psychiatric beds. For example, in
T Massachusetts, hundreds of patients have been wait-listed for acute inpatient psychiatric beds.' In
California, well over a thousand individuals deemed mentally incompetent to stand trial have been housed
in county jails, awaiting placement at psychiatric facilities.?

The COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated this dynamic, creating an epidemic within the broader
pandemic.® The percentage of the US poputace reporting serious psychological distress—a marker of need
for inpatient psychiatric services—has risen from 4% in 2018 to 13% in 2020.% Meanwhile, psychiatric facil-
ities have experienced disrupted continuity of operations and reduced bed capacity—for example, by con-
verting double-occupancy rooms to single-occupancy rooms to reduce viral spread.

PD
A Renewed Discourse on Psychiatric Beds

Hed

While the COVID-19 pandemic has shed light on the shortcomings of psychiatric bed infrastructure, the de-
cline in bed capacity has progressed steadily for more than 50 years. This progression was driven, in part,
by declining lengths of stays at psychiatric facilities, as well as the promise of community-based care that
appropriately and humanely responded to patient needs. in practice, however, availability of community
mental health services has remained lacking in many quarters,

Today, there is renewed discourse on the urgency of expanding psychiatric beds. States ranging from New
_York ta Oreaon to lllinois have reauired that health care svstems offer services consonant with auidelines—

Our website uses cookies to enhance your experience. By continuing to use our site, or clicking "Continue," you
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viduals' level of need. Mental health parity tegislation and court cases, such as Wit v United Behavioral
Health, have provided further teverage to compel insurers to pay for services throughout this continuum.

The Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2021° ratified $4.25 billion to state investments in psychiatric ser-
vices. Legislation that is currently being deliberated in Congress could add further provisions. Meanwhile,
states have begun passing legislation to substantively overhaul their mental health systems, raising real
promise about the potential to expand psychiatric beds.

Challenges in Estimating Psychiatric Bed Shortages

What remains worrisome is that there are no standardized approaches or best practices for determining
psychiatric bed need. Central to this shortcoming is the fact that not all psychiatric beds are alike; they are
situated in facilities that represent distinct levels of care—ranging from acute inpatient hospitals to resi-
dential treatment facilities. in fact, what even counts as a psychiatric bed is a topic of debate.®

A root cause of this paralysis in estimating bed shortages is that states often have bottlenecks at multiple
levels. For example, an acute inpatient hospital may be at full-bed occupancy because it is unable to trans-
fer patients to a lower level of care that would be more appropriate; as a result, beds at this lower level of
care are also operating at capacity. In this context, it may be imprudent to expand acute inpatient hospital
beds when the source of the bottleneck pertains to bed capacity at the lower level.

A second issue is that individuals with certain backgrounds or needs are remarkably hard to place in psychi-
atric beds, owing to liabilities and resource constraints. These populations include individuals with a his-
tory of viclent behavior, a criminal conviction of arson, or comorbid dementia. In short, theoretical bed ca-
pacity does not always (or often) align with practical bed capacity.

A third issue is that demand may be a weak proxy for need, particularly at lower levels of care. Patients
who need services may refrain from seeking care because of stigma, lack of insurance, or an inabili -
calize their needs. This raises a difficult question: should systems focus on addressing the gap bety

pacity and demand, or between capacity and need as indicated by epidemiological data? If the lattzer,'"mH'eé;}ii"“'
another issue arises: we have limited epidemiological information on the relationship between prevalence

of mental health conditions and need for specific types of psychiatric beds.

A 3-Stage Approach to Estimation

In response to this conundrum, we propose that states and counties assume a staged approach, one that
accounts for information uncertainty by triangulating multiple sources of information. As a starting point

~Aetana 1) _ctstac chauld Asnarato an inuantaru nf currant had acciinancy rstae avarana lanath Af ctavy weait
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unable to place. By gathering this information, states should be able to identify main bottlenecks and esti-
mate demand for psychiatric beds at each level of care. This approach has been articulated by O'Reilly and
colleagues’ as an “observed outcomes” approach; health systems can observe how the present infrastruc-
ture is resulting in a specific array of outcomes, such as wait times or emergency department boarding vol-
ume, modify infrastructure based on these observations, and then reobserve outcomes.

A complementary, normative approach (stage 2) should focus on accumulating epidemiologic and demo-
graphic data to recalibrate information from stage 1. Despite the limitations of epidemiologic information
described above, states could nevertheless inspect relationships between county-level demographic com-
position, such as sex, race and ethnicity, age distribution, and levels of psychological distress, that corre-
late with need for inpatient services. This should yield insights about the alignment (or misalignment) of
demand and need.

A third approach—which, historically, has been the most widely adopted—is to convene experts, including
epidemiologists, methodologists, and clinicians, to deliberate evidence and theoretical considerations
(stage 3). Today, the most cited estimate of psychiatric bed need in the US is 40 to 60 beds per 100000
population, based on a panel convened by the Treatment Advocacy Center in 2008.8 However, this esti-
mate does not indicate how to allocate beds among different types of facilities and may be more or less
appropriate in settings with alternative models of care. From our vantage point, convening experts should
serve 2 functions: to review estimates from stages 1 and 2 to provide feedback, and to propose a concep-

tually based alternative estimate for psychiatric bed need that can be used as a comparator for stage 1 and
stage 2 estimates.

Recommendations for the Field

All 3 approaches have shortcomings, not least that they yield static estimates in response to dynamic cir-
cumstances. However, as states and counties build infrastructure, they should iteratively reassess psvrhi-
atric bed needs to fine-tune their efforts. Specifically, when a shortage of beds is identified, gove[! PDF
should consider several questions to guide investments, including: What level or levels of care are:___new
to the largest bottlenecks? Are specific types of infrastructure required for hard-to-place populations? In
both absolute and relative terms (ie, number of beds and number of beds per 100 000 population), where
is the need greatest?

The credibility of these efforts will, necessarily, be tied to the quality and precision of underlying inputs.
Without deliberate effort to collate facility-level estimates on occupancy rates, length of stay, wait list
volume, and transfer requests, any undertaking will be prone to estimation error. We therefore recom-
mend conducting a survey of facilities as a starting point. Furthermore, those considering implementation

Our website uses cookies to enhance your experience. By continuing to use our site, or clickihg "Continue,” you
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derway in CahfornlaﬂfﬁThough the task may seem dauntlng, we believe there is | promlse in a data-driven
approach that inspects psychlatrlc bed shortages from multiple vantage points in an ongoing manner.
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The Delphi method for estimating psychiatric bed shortages in the US

Adrian Philipp Mundt, PhD | Facultad de Medicina, Universidad Diego Portales, Santiago, Chile

McBain et al. present a novel and sequential 3-stage approach to estimate psychiatric bed needs ir{ PDF
US.1 First, they recommend to assess on the facility level waiting lists (e.g. emergency departmenl Heli
also address bottlenecks for the release of patients from hospitalization, in line with the observed out-T T
comes approach.2 In a second stage, they propose to acknowledge specific epidemiological and demo-
graphic data within the catchment area to recalibrate information obtained from step 1. Thirdly, they rec-
ommend to convene experts to deliberate on the evidence and estimate the need. This was important,

since the referenced recommendation from the ...
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Assessing Adequacy of System Capacity

Care for All Populations Throughout Lifespan
Crisis services are meant to address the acute mental health, substance use and suicide

prevention needs of a community. This can only be achieved by designing services that meet the
unique needs of all members of that community. Therefore, crisis services must offer the capacity
to address the needs of rural and urban communities that may be experiencing mental health,
substance use, intellectual, developmental disability and co-occurring medical problems by
accepting all at the front door. This also means offering crisis services for children, adolescents,
adults and an aging population that each have their own unique set of needs in each community.

Crisis Resource Need Calculator

To lower the cost of care, enhance community health and improve the experience of residents
needing emergent mental health and substance use services, a full continuum of care must be
developed that includes adequate psychiatric bed capacity and community-based alternatives to
care. The innovative Crisis Resource Need Calculator offers an estimate of optimal crisis system
resource allocations to meet the needs of a community as well as the impact on healthcare costs
associated with incorporation of those resources. The calculator analyzes a multitude of factors
that includes population size, average lengths of stay in various system beds or chairs, escalation
rates into higher levels of care, readmission rates, bed occupancy rates and local costs for those
resources. In communities in which these resources do not currently exist, figures from like
communities can be used to support planning purposes.

The calculations are based on data gathered from several states. The Crisis Now Business Case
video that explains the rationale behind the model can be seen on the National Association of
State Mental Health Program Directors (NASMHPD's} www.crisisnow.com website. Quality and
availability of outpatient services also influences demand on a crisis system so the Crisis Resource
Need Calculator should be viewed as a guide in the design process. True assessment of system
adequacy must include a look at overall functioning of the existing system. Signs of insufficient
resources will include, but are not limited to, psychiatric boarding in emergency departments and
incarceration for misdemeanor offenses when connection to care is the preferred intervention.

The table on page 44 shows the very real cost savings that can be realized by implementing
mobile crisis and facility-based crisis services in your community. In this table, the population of
the community is set at 1,000,000 and if this community was working to address the acute mental
health needs of individuals experiencing a crisis solely through inpatient care, the data indicates
that those with LOCUS levels 5 and 6 (68%) would be referred to inpatient care. This would

require 500 beds if the average length of stay was 10.06 days; which aligns with the Treatment __
Advocagl Center’s published consensus estimate of negd1n_g._*_lged__to©Lﬂ:leO,QQD.membem_.

of the population. The table that follows (next page) includes a per diem inpatient rate of $900

which would result in an inpatient cost of $164,179,200. After applying an ED cost of $1,233 per
person to those referred to an inpatient bed (medical clearance and assessment), total estimated
costs rise to $184,301,760.
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For the 32% of individuals with LOCUS levels 1-4, no cost or service is included in the calculations
although it seems unlikely no actual cost would be incurred. When mobile team and facility-based
crisis services are included in optimal ratios (fast column of table that follows), total cost drops
by 52% in these projections despite engaging all of these individuals. This means that 32% more
individuals are served with programs that align better to the unique level of clinical need while
costs are reduced by 52%. Additionally, alignment of clinical level need to the service delivered
improves from 14% to as high as 100% (please see LOCUS analysis from Georgia earlier in this
toolkit) in a Crisis Now system that aligns with this National Guidelines for Crisis Care.

Indicators of Insufficient Capacity

The Crisis Resource Need Calculator offers an estimate of community resource need to help guide
development of crisis capacity for communities. However, this is only meant to estimate need
while true evaluation of capacity must be based on the availability of services to meet the actual
demand of the specific community or region. Signs of insufficient resources will include, but are
not limited to, psychiatric boarding in emergency departments, incarceration for misdemeanor
offenses when connection to urgent care is the preferred intervention and misalignment of
service intensity to the actual need of the individual served. Misalignment and the absence of a
continuum of care often results in a defaulting to placement in more restrictive environments or
minimal connection to outpatient care.
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o -
Figure 1 ~ Crisis Resource Need Calculator p:af"- 4‘\f g’; tesg 1001 009
Crisis Now Crisis System Calculator Projections - Pop. 1,000,000
No Crisis Care  |Crisis Now
# of Crisis Episodes Annually (200/100,000 Monthly) 24,000 24,000
# lnitiallygerved by Acute Inpatient 16,320 3,360
# Referred to Acute Inpatient From Crisis Facility - 1,336
Total # of Episodes in Acute Inpatient 16,320 4,696
# of Acute Inpatient Beds Needed 500 144
Total Cost of Acute Inpatient Beds. $ 164,179,200 | S 47,237,736
# Referred to Short-Term Bed From Stabilization Chair - 5,342
# of Crisis Beds Needed - 41
Total Cost of Short-Term Sub-Acute Beds S . - |$ 13,356,000
# Initially Served by Crisis Stabilization Facility - 12,960
# Referred to Crisis Facility by Mobile Team - 2,304
Total # of Episodes in Crisis Facility - 15,264
# of Crisis Stabilization Chairs Needed - 48
Total Cost of Crisis StabilizartionChairs [$ - [$ 18,840,137
# Served Per Mobile Team Daily 4 4
# of Mobile Teams Needed - 7
Total # of Episodes with Maobile Team - 7,680
Total Cost of Mobile Teams $ $ 2,761,644

# of Unigue Individuals Served 16,320 24,000
TOTAL Inpatient and Crisis Cost 164,179,200 82,195,517
ED Costs {$1,233 Per Acute Admit} 20,122,560 5,789,675

TOTAL Cost ' 184,301,760 87,985,192
TOTAL Change in Cost -52%

Page 44 of 80
Attachment 12 B

18



#23-008

Psychiatric patients boarded in hospital EDs create crisis for patient care, hospital finance... Page | of 8 @

Modern
Healthcare

This copy is for your personal, noncommercial use only, You can order
presentation-ready copies for distribution to your colleagues, clients or
customers here or use the "Reprints” link that appears next fo any article.
Visit modernhealthcare.com/reprints for additional information.

Bedding, not boarding

Psychiatric patients boarded in hospital EDs create
crisis for patient care and hospital finances

By Beth Kutscher | November 16, 2013

Health systems recognize that they need to address the psychiatric
boarding problem because EDs bring in a lot of paying patients, and
delays in serving them because of the boarding of psychiatric patients
can hurt revenue.GETTY IMAGES

With the total number of psychiatric inpatient beds plummeting
nationally, hospitals are devising innovative ways of handling mentally
ili patients who come to the emergency department as an alternative to
“boarding” them in holding rooms and hallways while they await
treatment.

These strategies include collaborating with other hoggl;alsm to place
psychiatric patients in open beds, using separate psychiatric EDs,
setting up crisis triage centers, and referring patients to residential
treatment centers. They're striving to get mentally ill people help before
they hit a crisis, including arranging appointments with mental
healthcare!® providers and contacting patients regularly to help with
medication compliance. A few health systems, such as HealthOne in
Denver, are even adding psych beds, at least partly to reduce ED
waiting times.
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Hospitals are finding various ways to clear ED backlogs of
psychiatric patients and speed patient flows.

Health systems recognize that they need to address the psychiatric
boarding problem because EDs bring in a lot of paying patients.
Delays in serving them because of the boarding of psychiatric patients
can hurt revenue.

Hospitals also are hoping that more mentally ill patients will gain

insurance coverage® for behavioral care!®! through the federal
heaithcare reform law and the new federal mental health parity rule. [n
addition, many states are more closely integrating behavioral
healthcare and substance-abuse treatment with physical healthcare in
their revamped Medicaid managed-care programs, recognizing that
better and more coordinated care for these expensive patients is key
o reducing Medicaid costs.

Experts say the boarding problem arises in part from the political
powerlessness of this patient population. “The mentally ill have the
most limited self-advocacy because of the nature of the iliness,” said
Dr. Martin Buxton, a psychiatrist at Chippenham Hospital in Richmond,
Va. “It's been a perfect storm that's been brewing for the last 30
years."

In Ohio, which has one of the most critical bed shortages in the
country, six hospitals have collaborated to create a Web-based "bed
board,” an online database that allows clinicians to find available
psychiatric inpatient beds and transfer patients to those facilities on a
first-come, first-served basis.

Hospitals also are investing in crisis-oriented outpatient care as
another way to steer patients away from the emergency room. “A lot of
the folks that are being seen may not need a hospital bed,” said Dr.
Larry Miller, a University of Arkansas psychiatrist who serves on the
American Psychiatric Association's council on healthcare financing.

The deinstitutionalization of mentally ill patients starting in the 1960s
and inadequate financing for community-based care has left many
Americans without access to quality mental healthcare. In addition,
hospitals across the country have sharply cut back on money-losing
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psychiatric beds. Ali of this has created a strain on hospital EDs, which
are the last resort for patients, their families and public-safety officials
dealing with people suffering from acute mentai iliness and substance-
abuse problems.

Hospitals often resort to holding admitted psychiatric patients in
hallways or other ED areas—sometimes in locked reoms—until
inpatient beds are available. Patients may be admitted because of
liability concerns related to the potential for suicide, but may not
receive prompt and adequate assessment and treatment. Experts say
the loud, hectic environment of the ED is bad for patients who are
struggling with suicidal ideation, hallucinations or drug withdrawal. Staff
and other patients may feel threatened by their behavior, requiring the
presence of security officers and possibly the use of restraints. It's
particularly hard to find psychiatric beds for patients with disabilities or
special needs.

DISAPPEARING BEDS

The number of state psychiatric beds decreased by 14% from
2005 to 2010. In 2005, there were 50,509 state psychiatric beds
available nationwide. By 2010, the number had shrunk to 43,318.

Per capita state psychiatric bed populations by 2010 had
plunged to 1850 leveis. in 1850, at the beginning of the
movement to provide more humane care by treating seriously
mentaily il persons in hospitals, there were

14 beds per 100,000 population. In 2010, the supply was virtually
identical at 14.1.

Thirteen states closed 25% or more of their total state
hospital beds from 2005 to 2010. New Mexico and Minnesota
closed more than 50% of their beds; Michigan and North Carolina
closed just less than 50%. Ten states increased their total hospital
beds but continued to provide less than haif the beds considered
to be minimally adequate.
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Nationwide, closures reduced the number of beds available in
the combined 50 states to 28% of the number considered
necessary for minimally adequate inpatient psychiatric
services. A minimum of 50 beds per 100,000 population, nearly
three times the current bed population, is a consensus target for
providing minimally adequate treatment. (By way of comparison,
the ratio in England in 2008 was 63.2 per 100,000.)

Many additional public psychliatric beds have been eliminated
since 2010, According to a congressional staff briefing provided
by the National Association of State Mental Health Program
Directors in March 2012, a total of 3,222 additional beds were
closed between 2009 and 2012 in 29 states.

Additional plans to eliminate 1,249 more beds in 10 states
have been announced, These combined reductions suggest the
current or imminent total number of public psychiatric beds to be
38,847, a 23% reduction since 2005.

—Treatment Advocacy Center

Some boarded for weeks

The National Assaciation of State Mental Health Program Directors, in
a survey of more than 6,000 EDs nationwide presented at a March
2012 congressional briefing, found that 70% reported boarding
psychiatric patients for hours or days—and 10% boarded patients for
several weeks. A 2008 American College of Emergency Physicians
survey of 328 ED directors found that 61% of hospitals surveyed did
not have psychiatric staff caring for ED patients while they waited.

A 2012 study in the journal Emergency Medicine International found
that psychiatric patients requiring an inpatient bed at a large academic
medical center remained in the ED more than three times longer than
nonpsychiatric patients, costing the hospital about $100 an hour based
on the average hourly revenue it gets per bed. The researchers said
the longer nonpsychiatric patients wait for {reatment, the more likely
the hospital is to suffer declines in quality of care, patient satisfaction
and public reputation.
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Doris Fuller, executive director of the Treatment Advocacy Center, an
Arlington, Va.-based group that works to increase access to care for
severely mentaily ill patients, said the basic problem is that the country
has reduced the number of psychiatric inpatient beds in public and
community hospitals that are accessible to all patients, including those
on Medicaid and without insurance.

Twenty eight states and the District of Columbia slashed their mental
health funding by a total of $1.6 billion from 2009 to 2012, according to
the National Alliance on Mental lliness.

‘Public' beds trimmed

There were 43,318 “public” psychiatric beds in 2010—or just 14 per
100,000 peopie—compared with 50,509 in 2005 and 560,000 in 1955,
according to a 2012 Treatment Advocacy Center report. Thirteen states
closed 25% or more of their beds from 2005 to 2010, and some of
those states closed nearly half their beds. Nationwide, closures
reduced the number of beds available in ail 50 states to 28% of the
number considered necessary for minimally adequate inpatient
psychiatric services, which is 50 beds per 100,000 population. And
many additional beds have been eliminated since 2010, bringing the
estimated current number to 38,847,

At the same time, 1 in 8 patients seen in EDs had a mental health or
substance-abuse condition, and this problem has been on the rise for
more than a decade, according to a 2007 survey from the Agency for
Healthcare Research and Quality.

The American Hospital Association said hospitals have been closing
psychiatric units because of low payments from public and private
payers, uncompensated care for uninsured patients and a dearth of
psychiatrists willing to work in hospitals. Meanwhile, community-based
psychiatrists report that patients might wait months to get an
appointment, often as their prescriptions run out. In addition, public
mental health departments are overwhelmed by demand.

The emergency room is often the only option. In North Dakota, the
number of patients coming into an ED with a primary psychiatric
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diagnosis more than doubled between 2011 and 2012, according to the
Treatment Advocacy Center. In Arizona, requests for psychiatric
consultations in the ED spiked 40% during the same period.

In Ohio, there are 23 psychiatric beds per 100,000 residents—less
than haif the ratio that mental health advocates believe is needed. So
hospitals in central Ohio got together to take action. Before 2009,
psychiatric patients in Franklin County, which includes Columbus, were
languishing in EDs for as long as five days before admission, said Jeff
Klingler, president and CEO of the Central Ohio Hospital Council. In
May 2009, six hospitals established an online bed board, which
includes information about the patient's gender, payer source and
when they arrived at the ED. By July 2010, the average wait time for
psych patients in the EDs of those hospitals dropped to 30 hours. By
September 2013, it had falien to 19.

While wait times in Franklin County have decreased, the number of
psychiatric patients coming to EDs has continued to climb. In May
2009, the county's EDs saw 400 psychiatric patients. This past June,
they saw 1,000. As a result, the participating hospitals implemented
new procedures. When the number of psych patients reaches an
unsafe level at a hospital, the facility declares “surge status” and its
psych patients move to the top of the waiting list.

Other states, including Maryland and Virginia, also are using a
statewide bed tracking system.

tn addition, there are efforts to get psychiatric patients into private
freestanding psychiatric hospitals, which typically do not accept
Medicaid patients or those without insurance.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act established a Medicaid

Emergency Psychiatric Demonstration under the CMS®l. The three-
year pilot program provides $75 million in funding to 11 states and the
District of Columbia to create Medicaid reimbursement programs for
emergency psychiatric care delivered at free-standing psychiatric
hospitals.
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Crisis-oriented outpatient care

Hospitals are investing in crisis-oriented outpatient care as another way
to steer patients away from the emergency room. Chippenham Hospital
in Richmond, Va., last month opened a crisis triage center to expedite
services for mentally ill patients who are brought in for care under a
mental health warrant or temporary detention order. The crisis center
partnered with the local police department, which places officers
trained in crisis intervention on-site. That frees the officers who bring in
patients from having to wait until they are evaluated. Buxton, who
serves as Chippenham's chief of psychiatry, said the new center
screens patients for psychiatric and medical issues in about one-third
of the time it would take if the patients were brought to the ED.

Experts say that while these various hospital innovations to address
the crisis of psychiatric boarding will help, they won't solve the broader
societal problem of the shortage of funding and resources to serve the
mentally ill at inpatient facilities and in the community.

“The real innovation would be keeping people from getting this sick,"
the Treatment Advocacy Center's Fuller said.

Follow Beth Kutscher on Twitter: @MHbkutscher’®

Tags: Behavioral Health, Emergency Medicine, Healthcare Reform,
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U.S. Psychiatric Patients Face Long Waits in ERs

1 in 5 emergency doctors reports wailing i feast 2 days fir 2 hed for someune who's mentally il

By Rernis YThompson
HealthDay Reporter

MONDAY, Oct. 17, 2016 (HealthDay News) -~ People with menta! iliness often wait long hours
-+ or even days -~ In an emergency room before recelving the care they need, according to 2
new poll conductad by the American College of Emergency Physiclang {ACEP).

One In five ER doctors polled said they've had psychlatric patients who needed hospitalization
who had to wait two to five days before being assigned an In-patient bed, the poll found.

Two accompanying studles back up the poll results, revealing that patients with & wide array
of mantal health problems are more likely to wind up stuck Ia an emergency department for
mere than 24 hours.

“Once the dagision to admit is made, it can be nearly impossible to find an in-patient bed for
these patients,” ACEP President Dr. Rebecca Paricer said during a news briefing.

Findings from the survey were scheduled to be presented Monday at ACEP's annual meeting
in Las Vegas.

Mental hedlth patients are languishing because cutbacks In mental heaith care hava severely
limited all options outside the ER, said Dr. Suzanne Cathering Lippert. She's an emergency
maedicine physiclen with Stanford University in Palo Alto, Callf,

"We have & potential perfect storm,” sald Uppert, the lead author of the two supporting
studies. "We have decreasing psychiatric inpatient beds, Insufficlent accessible cutpatient
psychiatric centers {or crisis stabilization, and Increased emergency department crowding.”

As b result, Parier soKd, emergency room care Is being delayed for all patients, and the ER
itself is becoming “a dangerous place to work at times.”

Parkar edded that "most of these patients sre very sick. Wa only admit people that need care
for betng suicidal or homicidal or defusional. These people nead that acute care In-patient
bed, and the resources have just disappesred over the last 10 to 15 years.”

gppeez sald she started studying the problem after treating & suicidally depressed patlent in
e

*1 placed her on an involuntary hold and started the process of getting her admitted,” Lippert
said. "When 1 came back to a shift three days later, she was still there in cur emengency
department, which has no windows, srtificial ighting and activity 24 hours a day. When !
came back another three days later, she was still there,®

Three-quarters of ER doctors sald at least once a shift they see a patlent who needs
hogpitaitzation for mental Hiness, according to the poli of more than 1,700 emergency
physidans.

About haif said that at ieast once a day, their emergency department winds up “boarding” 8
psychlatric patient who Is awalting admission to the hospital or transfer (o another facility,

"The emergency department has become the dumping ground for these vulnerable patients
who have been abandoned by every other past of the health care system,” Parker sald.

Nearty three in five doctors also reported increased wakk times and boarding for children with
psychistric llinesses, the poll reported.

“This is truly heartbreaking,” Parker sald. "A gurngy In 8n emergency department haliway is
no pidce for any chiid, let aione a child with a psychiatric emergency.”

in addition, anly about 17 percent of doctors reported having & psychiatrist on call to respond
to psychistric emergencias in the emergency department, the poll resuits showed, About 12
percent said they have no one at all on call for mental heaith emergencies -- no social
workers, psychologists, psychlatrists or other professionals.

Two studies highlighted at ACEP’s annual meeting further explained the deterlorating network
of support for patients with mental lliness,
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Patinnts with bipolar disorder, psychesis, depression, or a combination of two or more
disgnosed psychiatric problems are ot incressed odds of belng in the emergency departrnent
far more than 24 hours, Uppert and her colleagues found.

A patient with bipolar disorder was pearly four times mare fikely to stay in the ER more than
i4 hours, Lippert seid, Psychotic patients were about three times more lkely to fanguish in
the ER, and people with substance abuse and an accompanylng psychistric diagnosis were
more than twice as Hksly to be stuck In the ER, the susvey found.

"We're seeing eimost across the board with more severe psychiatric lliness, you're having
Increased odds of a much longer length of stay” in the ER, Lippert soid. “Nowhere gise in
medicine de we have in the emergency department our most seversly il} patients staying
lonpest.”

Another study provided more detall regarding the pressurs that psychiatrie patients are
placing on haspitals snd emergency departments, Researchers found that:

*21 percent of paychiztic patients require admission to the hospital, compared with 13,5 percant of
madical patients.

* 23 percent of peychiairic patienis wali in the amergency department more than six hours, versus 10
percent of madics] patients,

*7 percent of psychiatric patients slay in the emergency depastment for more then 12 hours, versus
just over 2 percent of modicel patients.

* 11 parceni of psychigiric: patients wind up transferred 1o another lacilily, compared with $.4 percont of
medical patients.

Porker and Uppert sald comprehensive mental health care reform is needed 1o esse the
pressurs on emergency rooms. Efforts 10 improve health insurance coverape of mental health
care also could help.

More information

For more on mentally (I patients In the ER, visit the National Alllance on Menta) Hiness.
SOURCES: Rebeces Parker, M.D,, president, American Collage of Emergency Physicians;
Suzenne Catherine Lippert, M.D., emergency medicine physician, Stanford University, Cailf.;
Oct. 17, 2016 presentstion, American College of Emergency Physicians meeting, Las Vegas
Last Updated: Oct 17, 2016

Copyright € 2016 HealthDay. Alt nghts reserved.
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Februry 25, 2016 | Psychatric Emergencies, Cultursl Paychiatry, Forensic Pyychisiry, Risk Assessment

By E. Fuller Torrey, MD
COMMENTARY Linked Asticles
Fraud, Wusts, snd Excess
The cutrent shortige of paychlabic bede in the US |s a major problem. Emergency depariments (EDs) are crowded with acuisly psychotis Profits
patent—some who wait for bads for up to a month. The pressure on existing bedu is so intense that patients are discharged pramaturely and A Dosrih of Paychiabic Beds
ofen have © bs readmitied or end up homsless or Incarcerated. Nevertheless, many states coniinua bo decrease the number of state hospital ¥y Clazapine Use Vartes by
bods. One reason for such decisions by state officials is that there is no accepied standerd regarding how many psychiabic beds sre neaded, o
The recanty published study of psychiatric bed needs by La and colleagues’ provides such s standard. The authors studied a 25-caunly region
of Horh Caroling with a populeton of 3.4 million. The ragicns’ 1tal psychiatric bad capacily cansisted of 398 bads in & state hospital; 494 adult
[1-3 paychiatic bads in 14 general or private psychiatric hospitals; and 88 nonhospital crisis bads in § facilises. 7
Combined, this tolaled 958 peychlatric beds, or approximately 28 sdult beds por 100,000 populaton, The (.. !
D ownlo ad avorege ED preadmission wait ime for paychiatric beds in Biis region at the ime of the study (2010 o 2012) was : -
3.3days. 4 “a
. ) - _ - i
Thls To The authors used a computer simulation program to model diferent scanarios o Rscenain how many additonal —f .
psychiatric bads would ba nesded io achizve an sverage presdmission wail time of loas than a day. The answer - _‘
PDF was 356 addiional beds, bringing the Iotal bed capacity to 1314 or about 39 adult bads per 100,000 population.  gweedszign/Bhutismtock

This catculation included only adult patients (sges 18 1o 84) and sssumed a median dumation of slay [n the state
hospital of 20 days, which exisiad in the hospltal under study at thatfime. This calcutation did netinclude psychiatiic beds for chitdsen or for
Freeto forensic patients who usually stay for extended perods.

Downloadand ;0084 study was published by the Treatment Advocacy Genter that estimated the minimum number of public beds nacessary for adequaie
Convert. Get It paychiakic services lor a populstion of 100,000 21PCF Estimates were sollcited “from 15 axperts on psychlatric care In the US, finciuding)
I ﬂy Individugais who have run privats and state paychistric hoapitals, county mental health programs, and experts on serious psychiatric disorders.”
H
D ] d N In contast to the study by L and collespues, the 2008 estmalas included bads for childran and lorensic patients. The consenaus sstimats of
0 oa ow., bed need by the 15 experts was 50 (range 40 1 80) public psychistic beds per 100,000 populsion, Given thess findings, it soams reasonsbis to

ostablish a range of 40 t 60 psychlatic beds per 100,000 population as a minimum stendard curantiy needed for raasonabla paychiatrie care In
fromdoctopdl.com the US inlight of the realities of the prosantfunding system.

Such caveats are necessery becsuse we actuslly do not know how many psychiatric beds would be needed ifwe wane nol consuuined by
Medicald and other federal regulations. Before thase regulstions, several studies demonatrated effactiva and less expensive siamatives o
paychiatic hoapitalizatons. For example, in 1961 10 1964 the Louisville Homecare Project demonstrated that epproximately 75% of parsons with
schizophrenia could be successfully rested at home rather than the hospital with dally visits by public health nurses and guarantasd madicaton
compliance.4 Simiiany, the Southwest Denver Montal Hoalth Services contracted with private homas t take scusely it individuals with care
coondinated from the mental health centsr? Withaut fecaral ragulations, many altematives & hospitalization mightbe found,

Given the prasent sysiem, however, (tis clear that a small number of individuals will coninue % need a hospital that is staffed for very dificuit
patiants and/or those whose stay should be measured in weoks, notdays. As La and collsagues note, stats psychlatric hospitals have
traditionally played this role, since they “are designed and staffad to care for peopie with savera mantal lliness, including those who may become
viclsnt® Thus, “state psychiatic hospitals are the ultmats safely netfor people with mental liness.”

Psychiatric units in general hosplisls and privata psychiatic hospitals occasionally admitindividuels who have the most severa forms of menta)
tliness, butmast are not staffed to do 20. in additon, mostindividuals with the most severs forms of mental iiness do not have heaith insursnce
and are considersd less dasirable by privaie psychiatic hosplisls and paychiatric units In general hospitals, 81% of which are privately owned.

Currently, there are about 35,000 state psychiatric beds available, or about 11
beds per 100,000 population.

itwould thus be useful to establith # standand for what percentage of the 40 t 80 beds per 100,000 population should be in state psychiatic hospitats, but there Is no such
siandard st this ¥me. In 1955 there were 558,239 state and county psychiatric beds avallable, or aboul 340 bads per 100,000 poputation. Currently, there are aboul 35,000 atat
psychistric beds available, of about 11 beds per 100,000 papulation. Howaver, even this figure is misisading because in most states the existing state paychiatric hospita) bads
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For example, @ 2044 study repored that Lemed State Hospitel in Kensas hud 457 beds.SPOF] However, 190 of the beds wers cotupied by court-ordened forensic pstients who
. hyd criminal charges, and another 177 bads were occupied by court-ondered sexunl predators; this left only 80 beds for posaible sdmissiona. And in many stale hospitaly such
beds are used only for brief hospitatizations, ieaving no altamatives for patisnts who need longaer pariods for stabilization,

Az La snd collesgues poini out, other measures can be taken b decrease the naed lorpmmde'bea. Such mensuras nclude asserive community treatment and the v of
sualsird outpatient reatment (ACT) 10 ensure medication adherence. Studies of AQT have shown that it reaults in a dramatic decreasa In paychlatric rshospitalizeton.”

fLis vary clear that the more effective the ouipetiant services, the iess need for paychisiric hospitalization. But despha the bast cutpatient sfforis, some soverely il patents wil
continue 1 need e ultmate sadaty notof the stete paychiatic hospal. itis important thet we recogniza thatfact and establish & minimum standard for how meny psychistric
bads are naeded.

DISCLOSURES

Dr Tomrey iz » resenrch psychiatist who speciaiizes in schizrophranis snd bipolsr disorder. rie is funter of he Treaiment Advocscy Centar and Associale Diretior of the Staniey
Medicsl Resqarch insstute, which supporis research on schitophrenia and bipolar disorder, #nd he is Professor of Payciiaby at the Uniformed Sensces Universily of the Hasin

Sciences in Beiheeds, MD.

EDITOR'S NMOTE: Readers are invited to comment on our website. Please adhere
to our editorial request to leave your full name and professional title at the end of
your comment.
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CldestFirst Newest First

Whan seule and chronic ments! health problants are on the incrense, itis the silliest thing to reduce the bad capacity eithar in state/public hespitals or in private
sector. Dalnstitutionalization faded in USA dus to atemative sarvices ware not in place. Mental hastth patisnts rights nesd o be protected and they desarve @
humane trestment at placas equipped with basic tacilltes and human revourcas, a minimum frequireinent 1o maintain dacency and ranpectfor mentally It pasents
and thair osregivers.

Nasesrn @ Mon, 2016-02-20 05:20 reply

'm o Rogistared Nurse working in & Forensic Mental Health Unitin New Zealand. Mentsl healih bed shortage is world wide tend. Wo wend to be the pooe cousin of
heatth sarvicas 50 when hesith cuts are needed our headsbed numbers teem to e on the chopping block. | would Iove 1o know how my govamman! works out the
required numbar of mental hadlth bed per hesd of population. Being a locked Fonensic unitwe ofien geithe over flow or $he 150 hard to hendle individuals which is
wrong. This In turn eflects how my unit Arnctions.

Bed shartages hwoughout the westem world is going © confnus, particuary now with the Infiux of rehugees.

Karin g Sun, 2016-02-28 17:32 ooty

Reagan siso changed our parsdigm for treating the chronie seversty mentaily 1. We used 1o hauss therm in huge stats facifitfes behind locked gates where they gol
rinimal care unc weren'taliowsd out New we houss tem under bridges, in alleys and docrways, where they are fe  frasze 1o daath In the winteror die of
cihosla or pnaumonia. ifs $o much more humana now thal wa don'tdeny them thair freedom.

Pater @ Sun, 2018-02-28 00:13 reply
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e Foadom and dosing siate hoapltals-NOT the peychistisly’ doingll
Peter ) Sun, 2018-02-28 00:14

The trans-nstitsSonailzation of our menial hes!th systsm has 8 jong and ragic kistory. Lat's not Wafic In wiban myths &8 "Regan changed our paradigm for
roaiing e chronic sevorely montally i."
mmmmmwmmmmmmm«qummwmmmmw.
persuasion of Congrass © instigate his *Great Soclety Programs,” Lo. Modicars and Madicald.
muwmwmum&mmmmwmmmmmmmumm
1o Congreas on tha tntemel o verlly svenis for acourady; urban myths justdoud judgment and docislon-meting.

Wiklam @ Wad, 2016-03-02 13:10 roply

fworkin Cleveland, Oblo and | heve seen paychiatric oate change over 0o years from & hospital based sysiam, whete privale hospitals refused Mudiceid, &
gommunity based systom in which fower snd fewsr patents are hosplisilzed, for fewer days and privets haapiists have & vast majorlty of svalsble beda. twork inen
intagrated behavior hasith cam program in @ FQHC doing ccunseling. This ia he Bhird Innovetva program In which | have worked. Ono was Penmanent Supporied
Housing , which moved peopis who wera chronjeally homaiesa directly into affiordable houstng with services. W kept a lotof paople out of hospliale for atl Mnds of
olwonic heatth issuse. Thanks to e Msdicaid axpansion, we can bring behaviora! heeith to pimary oaro whers we can 589 peoples whe formexdy couid scusas
datnseling only when ey becams so dangerusly Il tey prasentsd st he ED. | nea peaple wil 2l Ragnoees, intuding schizaphrenis, bul mesty chwonis PTED.
80 we hive some prevention efors and they really do work. Butoome e weekand in aorthem Ohla, psych intals woriees &l eround the arse an malling one
encther bying 1 find outwhatfecitly might have an ecuts edult paych bed avaizble. We've had 30 meny adult unil dlosed over the past few years st the patients
sufier.

Sus @ Bat 2040-02-27 2202 reply

Abig reason isthe ineurence companies who have unrealistic criteria without regand for the testing physiclan's conosrna or explanations
sobla @ Sat, 2016-02:27 1023 reply

Under the auspioss of the National Action Allianos for Suloide Prevontion, in 2015 Dz, Mike Hogen e [ co-led & task foras an the challenges of Emergency
Daparments and the lack of appropriate community-besed paychiadic crisis cars. Wh dontbelisve he answer 's more inpaSert acuts care beds, butrafiarthe

CEQ & Prusident, R triomationa! snd Co-and Natonsl Acton Alilsnce Crisia Servioes Task Force
David @ Sat, 2018-02-27 1907 reply

Wo hane the same probiem in Austratia alihough ol &8 sevare. Our walt Imes for a Prych bed dontesem 10 run © much more tan & ¢ouple of woaks. However, 0w
wmmmmmummmn.wrm-m-mummuuuumvxmmmmm
will grow before change ootirs.

Or Ray Tuyior
Consuttard Peychiat!st
Adsiaide, South Ausiruils

Ray € Sat, 2018-02-27 1740 reply

mmmmmwmmumuum»umam-mmmmmmmmm
mm«-whwm:udlmwmmmmummm.lmmmnnmmmmmm_
m«-m«mmmmmm.mu.uuuummmmmm-mmwhmmmﬂm
mﬁﬂMﬂothmMnmmthmMMMH&&MOW&G"M.MI.M hasa
mmmammmm.mmanwummmuhummpeaawMawmummm
Muummmmmmmummmmmmmmhammunmﬂmu
oviden Do you remember the concept of “partly” for manta) health v medical hiealth? Partty ts nolthe anewer o the lack of meniat health Peatment, itis & Rither
mappraion of @ humsn WWWMMWNWﬁMWHMhuWMMMUQHMW
mmmmum«mmmmmnnmswumumuun-w«.mnmmu
toatmant, and bs fect we s cupeble of suocssshuly tesllng mental candiions Hwe jesi chocss b do so,

Reger @ Bat, 3018-02.27 1633 oply
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Wh nead © remove he paients it test flr sy ata mantal faclity £s e “vecation” rom the dally lils and wisks reom for those who are in distress and nesd
immediate medionl and physios! help. One of the hospltals in CA thet I vishod e new peaple Bistwero admited wesen'leven ©oid how i get e mediosion
fatwas sn oplion, bul kecessary, whede 1 9o 10 patiL | was eppatied atthe way fat this facifly wes opersied and would never sand 8 patenthere.

Put @ Sat, 2016-02-37 1007 roply

The “siats” paye for peychistio care, in-patient, Srough e mental heatth cartisrs. These places dontwant to waets money caring for patenis becsuse they nead &
for salaries and other administatve costs. They dont even take Anymors the sickest patients becsuss of the cost and Sme & care for thew. Bo of course there are
fower beds beceuses they e notused a¢ ivey should be.

ichal ) Bat, 2018-02-27 1629 oy

No room (n the Inn.... or the oukpasont factilly, or anywhare ke st matier exoept far he very afiuent Our neighborhoad has two of the waiking woundad who, in the
oid days, would hawe been warshoused (mostiikaly) in a atats lacility. Are thay any betier oS wandering the streets {one of tham is called The Yeli by the
neighborhond chiliren) han they were before? A% we, 83 a socisly, willing o inoresse tues to explore snd implemeat soma of e programssckaions underwey in
e 8.7 Probably not-we sesm & be in the grip of 4 psycho-socist hallucination whasin the poor, fie immigrants, the addicind and $e derargod are fasioading
on & amail, well heslod but belsaguernd minostly of vituous (proved by success) itizens who ere unwiiiing 10 iook out he window. fim not optimisSc,

Alsx @ Sat, 2016-02-27 1620 roply

I ity sreas of "behaviors! health we do not have a scdiel plan that masts Bie big plokure or Jue nosds of Bie community. Hasven help ue Ifwe tafic aboul sotiel
progiems &8 & partol s sociatiern! Privits compenies and familios can do S jobs Deler?7? You, IPyou kave insursnss Bnd oan afford 8 well lunded privats program
fiatmakes 8 prolit while ssslstng o cient. Thatieaves mostindividusla under  freeway undemass.

Wi generiize solutions, then find he axseplions thirt do not mest the stndurd cart ¢r oo, leaving miny cutside the suppert Metwori. There At nwsults that
restrictus for the banelli of one with an unique need not met or becane someons was unabis B ghw tie belp At was needed, mostitkely dus o fending, Falning,
or iradequats backpround cheok. infing eny iype of faclliyy is dificst, Highly velned personnel should be paid well but are not {paychiatriets am in high demand
overywhers and ofion do nat ke insuranon). I you do not have wall sducaied sad buined s good pracion is haster 5 maintutn as the aumbers of petonta
Incvaine snd vure is more Himdied. This ks true in ail medical Seids. The middie man often conirol e acoses (o trestment (Iraurance 6o or MediCal) without he
varisbiss of individusl cases taken into account One docior of GNP numme can nel balle consiantly with insunencs ¢o 15 provida the needed cars, This cresfes bum
out Oversightia nesded, bul that should be » medics! directons) role, not e objocive view of thase Trying to make a profit Flacal responsibittly is nacessery, but
priiton peopies’ linessss is not Thisjeads back & a govemmant run progeam. the very idea Bist upsets many peopie who are afnid of govemment ren programs,
It is priveialy un, then someone Is making e prolit 6o what govemmentomganization letsfito do the job for those without incoma, insurence of legal
presenafon--cining! jusiics snd a paichwork of social progsanm for band-aido hampy and treatment.

On the pravanton side, some ixmilins and individusts achistly consider lsmfly hisiories, making tough decisions sbout ahild bearing snd Gie number of childsen ey
have, They make hard decisions early for thelr children with behavior disorders and belp them heough sech svaliable sysienr: school, medics), private and public
sysinms. Fyou have the fnenclal meens and $1e educetion, you undersiand the risks for your childmen and respond. For those that do notunderstand, have the
adequsts sduction or abiltly o undersiand, thars am no ohoicss. You are sncoursged © hawe s masyy childran as possible {no ins, no birth control, no abortion,
and jwst snying no ks 2ot 8 real oplion..). With mental heaith ssuas bn familiss (poor have mom because thay can not avold twith other optians in tHe) you bave
Sxremely siressiit relationships, lose jobs, and housing. Then you fin a belier parines; have additionsl chiidren, and give up the chiidren that you csn not coniol oe
00re o 10 the Reler system. Somstmes you never rceived heip and regratiadly do ham % tha chikiren you had hoped would give you & new frtee dilarend then
your ovn. Now we have & complication sodis!, mom, sthios! problem hat nseds sddressing without sugar cosiing cause and effact. This is usuafly decided by
politicians that heve voins st siaks, give & shorl enm responss, and Aone of e lnes or reguiztions we reviewsd, updaied, or given one b one consideration, but
jemxned through with other laws and regulations just i geta plecemes! band aid i a rea) crisis. We are noi going to scive the menal heald: problams withouts
serious view of e connevling problesns in the orimingl justics programs, the sducatoniohid wethire programs, how haalt car is given or pot given, priveis
companiss that make money on these sorvioss (Insrmnce, hoapitais) ve public (afl groupe iR 1 handle enomrous osse icads after the the faihre of other sysisms
including femiliss St are iiesfly sxpecied 10 do She job in Kl for their own members.

YW can add mone peychisirio beds.yos, but witl hat really £x 10 problem? No. W sre adding more homeless sheltors, inors prison space, more drug rehab, and e
pubiic achools ane supposed o do mane ani mor for sertouely dishwbed young poopls in ald bulldings, without suficiendy Fained siaflfor peychiatic or arindna)
wperiencs (Bwy are educaitvs 4nd are tained © tsech Mal and lsnguage ark-romomber?). Somoone reconlly thought eachers shoutd tsach subsiance sbuse
provention. itts » shortissson in heatth currioutum new, but e ones that mostneed i walk out of clase, fsil asleap in daee, and do notoR If oy flunk e caee.
The pareats at Bie poinat, kave no ctus how 1 bandie fielr chiiden. Wo are back to e orimingl justios sysiam...........—..

How do we raduce the need for peychiatic oam (beda in & heapital), provide the care when and how Rt ls noedad, and creatp a well funolioning prograum for he
majorky of people who cen nol affoed private Gare in 8 privels hoapisl 22w tha quenlcne-=not & lsolated question sbout sumber of beds for peychiatic patients {or
hometsss, losler chitdren, end eriminals). W ar teiking about highly reletad, connectsd systems, W can not fix one withoul the other.

Koron @ Sat, 2018-02-27 12:57 reply

The Now Asylums

60 ysare ago pecple wers honified that the mentalty B were being “wasehoussd™ in mental instiiutions. So the govemment tumed tha mentally T outto Bve in e
aoul. Naw we have como Rl chrede and the mently 8) are being warehoused again, but Bis time in dangerous prisons.

The most vuinerable in our sodety have been complesly abandoned by our society.

thad e k in s vad A 180 waere sAA hows haon Inmnlion
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undor trestment on any given day, they represeni by far the largest mental-health treatment faciiites in the counvy. By compariscn, the thres largeat state-run menta)

4+ hospitals have & combined 4,000 beda,
i every city and state | have visited, the jails have become e ds facio mental institutions.” says Esteban Gonzataz, president of tha Americsn Jeit Ansodiation, an

organization for jeh empioyses...
Ellaan @ Sat, 2016-02-27 41:14 reply

Ifs &n wbsciuts shame how many psychistic bads have besn lost The whole idsa was i Fenalion geople with mental lliness o commmunity resowioes. This is nol
happaning and pecple are falling through big cracks in our eystm. Thers is not ancugh funding ar for that matter community resourcas. The future is vory dleak and
we wondaer why there ars so many sulcides,

chadens @ Sat, 2018-02-27 10:47 raply

Heck in my area | would simostbe happy © sattie kireary discharga. Itis the inabllity to aven admit patients fo an in-patientunit hat is 8 major problem. Also, the
tocal haspitals et do have acuts unite are backed up because of the lack of state long-term unils, it has bacome a {ithe better recently, but the atay between baing
scoepted io a stiie hospite) and acwally having a bed has averaged as imuch as 80 days in e [ast few years. In fact we have dischanged potents and had ham
reiapss in this walling tme.

Kurt @ Sat, 2018-02-27 10:49 raply

Why are we advocaling for expanding state hospitals instesd of community servicas?
paula @ Bat, 2016.02-27 15:07 raphy

Have thelr bean studies 1 asceriain whether this statement ia accurats? Peychiatry beds are a moneylosing propostton tor hospitals. Therefors paychilatic beds are
graduafly silminated since procedures bring in more monaey. Our system davaiues the one © one treatment necessary for psychiatric ills, whather outpatient or
inpatient Thatcosts a lotl of money.

Leon @ Sat, 2016-02-27 10:40 roply

lwould agree with this arScie, There is & missing plece of care that ks avident in all health care systams in the worid. The communily mental heaith supporteysiam is
the pleca Some pisces do have his plece, butfunding , undersianding and supportis extremely inadegqusts. it is s speciaity and requires trained and educated
Individuals . Lrequires ail sotial structure , educations) structure , health and tnancial structure housing programs & work together in an interdteciplinary and
ciualiva way, e tartinry proventon. # reduces hosplializston and costs (o sccisfy . i provides support io paopie living wih mental iliness end promotes
Indepandence and consequantly improved health,

Brends E @ Sat 2018-02-27 10:26 reply
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Corrections deputies prepare to enter a cell in the psychiatric unit of the Pierce
County Jail in Tacoma, Washington. A federal court 1ast month held Washington
state in contempt for holding mentally illinmates without evaluating or treating
them.

This story has been updated to correct a typo. Georgia has fewer beds than in 2010, not
than in 2016.

Across the country, a critical shortage of state psychiatric beds is forcing mentally ill
patients with severe symptoms to be held in emergency rooms, hospitals and jails
while they wait for a bed, sometimes for weeks.

Mental health advocates, attorneys and judges say the practice, known as
psychiatric boarding, prevents patients from getting the care they need. Instead,
such patients are sometimes strapped down or held inisolation, and often receive
little or no mental health services.

Several states are moving to increase the number of beds, and to increase crisis
services — to help keep a mentally ill person from spiraling out of self-control and
ending up in emergency rooms and jails.

But the problem, which many blame on budget cuts and a shortage of psychiatrists
and nurses, won't be easy to solve, By one count, the nation needs an additional
123,300 psychiatric hospital beds.

The crisis is drawing particular scrutiny in Washington state, where two court rulings
— one in the state Supreme Court in 2014 and the other in federal court last year —
determined that it is illegal for the state to warehouse mentally ill patients and
prisoners in emergency rooms, jails and regular hospitals.

The state reacted swiftly, increasing the number of psychiatric beds and boosting
spending on community mental health services.
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But the courts are impatient with the pace of state action. Last month the federal
judge who ruled that the Washington Department of Social and Health Services was
violating the constitutional rights of prisoners held the department in contempt and
ordered it to pay fines of $500 a day for each inmate waiting more than a week for a
bed and $1,000 a day for each inrnate waiting more than two weeks for a bed, until
the problem is fixed.

The problem extends far beyond Washington: In a 2014 survey, 19 of 38 state mental
health directors said their states had been threatened with or found in contempt for
failing to admit jailed inmates found mentally incompetent into mental health
facilities in a timely manner.

The U.S. now has 37,679 state psychiatric beds, down about 13 percent since 2010,
according to a June report from the Treatment Advocacy Center, a nonprofit working
to improve treatment for severe mental illness.

The loss of those beds has left “the sickest of the sick” without treatment, said John
Snook, the center’s executive director,

0079
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The Promise of Deinstitutionalization

The introduction of effective psychiatric medicines and a growing preference to keep
the mentally ill close to home and in less restrictive settings led to a steady decline in
the number of state psychiatric beds, which peaked at nearly 560,000 in 1955,

Mental health advocates assumed public spending on community mental health
would rise as institutions closed, but the increases have fallen short of the need. The
recession made the situation worse: States cut $4.35 billion in public mental health
spending between 2009 and 2012, though some states have made modest increases
since 2012,
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“It's not like the patients have gone away. it's the treatment resources that have gone
away,” said Renée Binder, the immediate past president of the American Psychiatric
Association.

Failure to treat severe mental illness can result in worsening symptoms and increase
the likelihood that inpatient services will be needed, mental heaith advocates say.

“Fewer beds and no more community services is a lethal combination,” said Ron
Honberg, a senior policy adviser at the National Alliance on Mental lliness.

Yearslong Shortage

Many states have faced shortages of psychiatric beds for years.

A 2008 report for the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services found that
psychiatric boarding was routine in many states, including California, Connecticut,
Georgia, Maryland, Massachusetts and Nevada. One 2012 study found that 70
percent of emergency rooms had had to board psychiatric patients for more than 24
hours and 10 percent for a week or more.

The Treatment Advocacy Center recommends 40 to 60 psychiatric beds for every
100,000 people. The national average is 11.7, and the group estimates that the
country needs an additional 123,300 state psychiatric beds, though it is urging the
federal government to do its own assessment.

Georgia has 9.3 beds for every 100,000 people, and 233 fewer beds than it did in 2010.
The state has boosted mental health crisis services, but lacks the manpower to
prevent the mentally ill from ending up in emergency rooms and hospitals, said
Andrew Johnson, a spokesman for the Department of Behavioral Health and
Developmental Disabilities.
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“We would probably be able to bring more beds on line but for a workforce
challenge,” Johnson said. “The shortage of psychiatrists and nurses is our No. 1
problem.”

South Carolina, which has 493 state hospital beds, 67 more than in 2010, has
increased mental health spending under Republican Gov. Nikki Haley, Most of the
new money has gone toward crisis intervention and services to stabilize patients
during an emergency, said Tracy LaPointe, a spokeswoman for the South Carolina
Department of Mental Health. LaPointe said the psychiatric boarding continues
because there aren’t enough beds.

Several states, including Georgia and Virginia, have or are building online registries
that can identify open psychiatric beds using up-to-date information.

Virginia launched its online registry after several high-profile incidents, including the
2013 stabbing of a state senator by his son, who then shot himseif to death, all after
an open psychiatric bed couid not be found. A January report by the state's inspector
general found the registry’s information wasn't being updated in a timely fashion.

An Imminent Risk

in Washington state, the number of state psychiatric beds declined 40 percent from
2010 to 2016, leaving just 729 beds — or 10.2 beds for every 100,000 people.

During some of this time, the state reduced its spending on mental health, which
mental health advocates say increases the need for inpatient beds even as those
beds are evaporating.

Inthe case that reached the state Supreme Court, 10 people were deemed an
imminent risk to themselves or others as a result of a mental disorder. Under state
law, they should have been sent to state-contracted evaluation, stabilization and
treatment centers within 72 hours, where doctors would determine if they needed to

be committed.
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But, because there was no room at the centers or at state psychiatric facilities, the
patients were held for much longer in emergency rooms or acute care hospitals —
weeks, in some cases.

“Hospital emergency departments are a uniquely inappropriate place for someone in
psychiatric crisis,” said Eric Neiman, who represented two hospital systems that took
the case to court. “It's loud, chaotic, and they don't have psychiatric professionals.”
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Health Panel Recommends Anxiety Screening for All Adults Under 65

The guidance comes as Americans are coping with illness, isolation and loss from the pandemic, as well as other stressors like inflation and rising crime.

@ By Emily Baumgaeriner

Sept 20, 2022

A panel of medical experts on Tuesday recommended for the first time that doctors screen all adult patients under 65 for anxiely, guidance that highlights the
extraordinary stress levels that have plagued the United States since the start of the pandemic.

The advisory group, called the U.S. Preventive Services Task Force, said the guidance was intended to help prevent mental health disorders from going undetected
and untreated for years or even decades. It made a similar recommendation for children and teenagers earlier this year.

The panel, appointed by an arm of the federal Department of Health and Human Services, has been preparing the guidance since before the pandemic. The
recommendations come al a time of “critical need,” said Lori Pbert, a clinical psychologist and professor at the University of Massachusetts Chan Medical School, who
serves on the task force. Americans have been reporting outsize anxiety levels in response 10 a confluence of stressers, including inflation and crime rates, fear of
illness and loss of loved ones from Covid-19,

“It's a crisis in this country,” Dr. Pbert said. “Our only hope is that cur recommendations throw a spotlight on the need to create greater access to mental health care
— and urgently”

From August 2020 to February 2021, the percentage of adults with recent symptoms of an anxiety or a depressive disorder increased to 41.5 percent from 36.4 percent,
according to one study cited by the task force.

The guidance was issued in draft form, The panel will finalize it in the coming months after reviewing public comments. While the panel's recommendations are not
compulsory, they heavily influence the standard of care among primary care physicians across the country.

in response to the recommendations, mental health care providers emphasized that screening programs are useful only if they lead patients to effective solutions. Ata
time when the country is “short on mental health resources on all levels — psychiatrists, psychologists, and therapists — that's a real concern,” said Dr. Jefirey Staab,
a psychiatrist and chair of the depattment of psychiatry and psychology at Mayo Clinic in Rochester, Minn.

"“We can screen lots of people, but if that's all that happens, it's a waste of time,” said Dr. Staab, who is not on the task force.

Psychiatrists, while pleased with the attention on mental heatth, also underscored that a standardized screening is only the first step toward a diagnosis, and that
providers will need to guard against assuming that a posilive screening result indicates a clinical disorder.

For many Americans, the screening could simply reveal a temporary period of distress and a need for extra support.

“When providers say, 'You must have a disorder, here, take this, we could face an averprescribing problem,” Dr. Staab said. “But the opposite scenario is that we have
lots of people suffering who shouldn’t be. Both cutcomes are possible.”

Rising mental health issues are not unique to the United States. Anxiety and depression increased by 25 percent globally during the first year of the pandemic,
according to the World Health Organization, and has only partially improved since.

About a quarter of men and about 40 percent of women in the United States face an anxiety disorder in their lifetimes, according to the task force, though much of the
data is outdated. Women have nearly double the risk of depression compared with men, studies show, and the recommendation paid special attention to screenings for
pregnant and postpartum patients.

Physicians typically use questionnaires and scales to survey for mental health disorders. According to the recommendations, positive screening results would lead to
additional assessments at the provider’s discretion, depending on underlying health conditions and other life events.

Some primary care physicians expressed concern that adding an additional responsibility to their wide-ranging checklist for brief patient appointments is implausible.
Dr. Pbert of the task force said that those providers should “do what they already do on a daily basis: Juggle and prioritize.”

She also said the task force's rigorous review of available studies revealed that people of color are often underrepresented in mental health research, which, if not
addressed, could contribute to a cycle of inequity.

Mental health disparities are rampant in the United States, where Black patients are less likely to be treated for mental health cenditions than are white patients, and
Black and Hispanic patients are both more frequently misdiagnosed. From 2014 te 2019, the suicide rate among Black Americans increased by 30 percent, data shows.

Standardizing screening for all patients could help combat the effects of racism, implicit bias and other systemic issues in the medical field, Dr. Pbert said.

The task force panel did not extend its screening recommendations to patients 65 and older. It said there was no clear evidence regarding the effectiveness of
screening tools in older adults because anxiety symptoms are similar to normal signs of aging, such as fatigue and generalized pain. The panel also said it lacked
evidence on whether depression screening amang adults who do not show clear signs of the disorder would ultimately prevent suicides.

The task force will accept public comments on the draft recommendation through Oct. 17.
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ALTERNATIVES

US HealthVest and Pointcore, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System, propose to
form a joint venture to establish the 100 AMI bed Meadowview Behavioral Hospital in Peoria on
property owned by OSF near the north city limits. The planned two story 64,000 sq ft facility is new
construction on a clear site, with a total project capital cost of approximately $34.3 million.

Before this project was selected as the preferred project, a number of other alternatives were
considered. These alternatives are briefly described below.

Alternative 1. Establishment an Acute Mental llness unit on the downtown Peoria campus of OSF Saint
Francis Medical Center.

This option was quickly rejected because of the lack of space to accommodate the proposed service at
the scale of 100 beds or even a smaller bed complement. The facility currently has 642 total beds and
has been operating at high utilization levels of all services. The 399 medical/surgical beds, for example,
operated above 82% occupancy in year 2020, with a peak census of 385 patients. The hospital received
HFSRB approval in August, 2021 to relocate its Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation unit from OSF
Saint Francis Medical Center to Greater Peoria Specialty Hospital in a joint venture with Kindred
Healthcare (Project 21-014). This move was motivated, in part, by the need to make space available for
clinical expansion within the hospital. There is no space at the Medical Center that could be converted
on the scale needed for the inpatient psychiatry service.

No estimated capital cost can be provided because of the lack of a viable facility plan for a similar
project at the main medical center.

Alternative 2. Expand the existing 26 bed AMI unit at OSF Saint Elizabeth Medical Center in Ottawa.

The 97 bed hospital facility in Ottawa is too small to accommodate an AMI project of 100 beds or the
addition of units with a lesser number of beds. There is no space of sufficient size that can be
converted, and construction of a building addition to accommodate the project is not feasible financially
because of the capital cost of addressing site constraints. It is estimated that the cost to establish a 126
bed facility at that location, incorporating the existing 26 bed service into the new facility, would be in
the $45 to $52 million range, if functionally feasible on the campus. As result, this alternative was also
quickly rejected.

Alternative 3. Instead of forming a joint venture, US HealthVest or OSF Healthcare System (“OSF”} would
establish and operate the behavioral health hospital without the joint partnership.

The joint venture is planned to bring together the strengths of the two hospital systems.

US HealthVest operates nine hospitals in major metropolitan areas — Chicago, Atlanta, Seattle and
indianapolis, and has been an innovator in the development of specialty psychiatry programs, with
evidence-based best practices that achieve successful treatment and recovery for patients nationally.

US HealthVest operates three behavioral health hospitals in Illinois. Lake Behavioral Health in
Waukegan and Chicago Behavioral Health in Des Plaines are sole ventures by US HealthVest. The Silver
Oaks Behavioral Hospital in New Lenox is a joint venture with Silver Cross Hospital. While US HealthVest
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is familiar with both an independent and a partner model, it prefers to partner with a significant
established and well-respected regional health care system for this project, to capture the benefit of a
large referral health care network.

Operated by the Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis, OSF Healthcare System provides health care
services in 150 locations, including 14 hospitals in lilinois of which five are Critical Access Hospitals. The
system has over 2,000 inpatient beds and employs nearly 25,000 Mission Partners, including more than
1500 primary care, specialist and advanced practice providers. OSF is a significant provider of heaith
care services throughout lllinois.

Because of the growing need for behavioral health care in central lllinois, OSF recognizes the necessity
of increasing the availability of AMI beds within its system, based in Peoria as a centralized location. The
opportunity to partner with US HealthVest in an 80/20 partnership allows for establishing a new service
without diverting capital funds from other current high priority clinical development commitments. The
establishment of a 100 bed behavioral hospital as a joint venture with US HealthVest allows for
commitment to this important service as a necessary part of the QSF Mission.

An exclusive initiative by either US HealthVest or OSF would not capture the synergies of both systems
working together to maximize their individual expertise. As a result, both organizations rejected the do-
it-alone business plan.

The total capital cost of this alternative would be about the same as the proposed joint venture
project.

Alternative 4. Do nothing

Over the past years, there has been an increasing number of residents of HSA 2 leaving the planning
area for inpatient psychiatric care. Almost 40% of residents who were admitted in 2021 for AMiI travel
out of the area -- as far as the northern suburbs of Chicago or to other hospitals outside of HSA 2 and
even illinois. While AMI units in the region may not achieve the standard 85% census for the year, the
lack of available beds is significant, due to conditions ranging from COVID restrictions on AMI units,
gender limitations because of double-occupancy inpatient rooms, the need to accommodate patients
with specialty needs, and most importantly, the increasing demand for behavioral health care because
of societal, family, economic and other stresses. In addition, there is a concern that many residents who
need behavioral health inpatient care do not have access to local available AMI beds.

Daily news programs document the increasing pressures on families and individuals and the need for
more behavioral support and intervention. This is especially the case for populations with health care
disparities, as is the case in several parts of the Peoria area. As evidenced by the historic growth of the
three US HealthVest hospitals in lllinois over the past 3 — 8 years, there is a significant demand for more
AMI beds. The growth of these three facilities is evidence that the US HealthVest model of care, focusing
on the delivery of specialized health care services, is responsive to the need in this third decade of the
21st century.

OSF has concluded that because behavioral health is the number one health care need in Peoria,
Tazewell and Woodford Counties, that doing nothing is inconsistent with its Mission to provide
necessary and healing health care services. US HealthVest and OSF share that commitment.
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Alternative 5 (The preferred alternative): Establish a 100 AMI-bed hospital in Peoria on property owned
by OSF, as a joint venture between US HealthVest and Pointcore, Inc.

The size of the hospital is scaled to 1) meet the needs of the residents of HSA 2 and beyond, for locally
available psychiatric care that enhances the ability of family members and friends to play a role in care;
2) enable the scale size required to allow for the assembly of specialists to deliver specialized care
required to meet the needs of patients with dual diagnosis {(mental health and substance abuse),
women-only, geriatric behavioral health, veterans with PTSD and other disorders, and other groups; and
3) achieve a volume of service for a financially viable operation with economies of scale. The joint
venture arrangement between US HealthVest and Pointcore, Inc will deliver a high level of expertise in

mental health care for all populations in the region, including especially those populations with health
disparities.
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SIZE OF THE PROJECT

The project is the construction of a new building on unimproved vacant land. The property is part of
Parcel ID 130220009 owned by OSF near the northern city limits of Peoria. An address has not yet been
assigned; work is underway with the City of Peoria to select an address. The total project size is 64,057
departmental gross sq ft {dgsf}. Of this total, 48,387 dgsf is clinical; 15,670 dgsf is non-clinical space. The
table shows the distribution of clinical space by functional area:

Department/Service Proposed dgsf | State standard {dgsf) Difference Met
Standard?

Clinical space

AMI beds 41,166 NA

Intake 1,441 NA

Physical therapy 630 NA

Outpatient program 1,778 NA

Pharmacy 435 NA

Medical records 460 NA

Dining 2,477 NA

440-560 dgsf per bed
Total clinical space 48,387 44,000-56,000 dgsf 7,613 dgsf Yes

The project is consistent with State size standards for the functional areas for which there are standards.
If all of the space for the supporting clinical functions listed in the above table were incorporated with
the space allocated to beds, the result is a total 484 dgsf per bed. That is well within the range for the
State standard of 440 to 560 dgsf per AMI bed.

Fioor plans for the two-story building are shown on the following pages. This floor plan has evolved
from the experience of US HealthVest at its facilities in lllinois and elsewhere in the US. There are six
nursing units, three on each floor. The maximum size nursing units are 18, 20 and 22 beds. Each of the
units provides a combination of private and semi-private rooms. Patient room sizes are consistent
throughout the facility, enabling flexibility in unit sizes and room occupancy, and allowing for the
potential of bed expansion in the future if needed.

The six units enable the separation of patients by specialized need — dual diagnosis, veterans with PTSD,
women only, senior adult, etc. The building design enables independent access to each unit without
crossing through another unit. Scheduled daily movement of patients from any of the units to other
parts of the hospital for dining, outdoor activity, exercise or other therapies can be done without
interacting with different patient populations.
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Each of the nursing units is secure. The nursing units are designed with safety and social interaction in
mind. Nurses stations are located directly across from social spaces designed to be open and with an

abundance of natural light.

There are two large secure courtyards accessible from the main corridor, providing access to outdoor

activity.
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AMI BEDS:

FIRST FLOOR =50 BEDS
SECOND FLOOR =50 BEDS
TOTAL = 100 BEDS

AREA:
FIRST FLOOR = 36,400 SF
FIRST FLOOR PLAN @ SECOND FLOOR = 27,920 SF

SCALE =1/32'=1'0" TOTAL AREA = 64,320 §F
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PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

The main clinical service provided in the new hospital is primarily adult Acute Mental lliness inpatient
and outpatient care. There is no diagnostic imaging planned in the facility, The 100 AMI beds will be
distributed among several specialized services, including senior adult care, women-only care, dual
diagnosis (mental health and substance abuse) and veterans care with special capability to treat PTSD.

The State’s formula for AMI bed need determination applies a ratio of 11 beds per 100,000 population
as the main component of projecting area need. Yet, COMPdata analysis reveals that there were almost
1900 adult residents of HSA 2 who left the area last year to receive inpatient AMI care. Recognized
authorities on behavioral health have asserted that 40 — 50 beds per 100,000 population is a better
estimate of beds needed. The current bed ratio in HSA 2, counting the increased capacity associated
with the Young Minds Institute project approved this summer is 23 AMI beds per 100,000. The
experience of 1900 adult residents a year leaving for care supports the contention that need is much
greater than 11 beds per 100,000 residents.

There are a lot of facts and factors that contribute to the analysis and documentation of projected
utilization of the proposed acute mental illness service. The analysis is presented in full in section
1110.210 of this permit application. Factors used to quantify and document the expected utilization
include:

- Physician letters of commitment to refer patients;

- Letters of commitment by physician chief medical officers at OSF hospitals throughout lllinois
anticipating the opportunity to direct referrals for AMI services to a center of excellence in
behavioral health care within their system;

- Commitment by agencies and other providers of behavioral health services to refer patients;

- Documented commitment by leaders of central fllinois area hospitals to refer to the new facility;

Collectively, the letters committing referral volumes document a total of 4,030 patients in 2027, the
second year of project operation. A projected average length of stay of 10.5 days transiates into 42,315
patient days. The ALOS reflects the actual experience at Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital (11.1 days) and
Lake Behavioral Hospital {10.9 days} for the first ten months of 2022, and reflects a composite length of
stay associated with specialized inpatient AMI programs. The following table shows the anticipated
utilization levels in the first two years following opening.

Service Year 2026 Year 2027 State standard Meet
standard?
Acute Mental lliness
patient days 25,000 32,850 - --
occupancy 68.5% 90.0% 85% Yes
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In addition to the referral letters, the analysis in 1110.210 provides information about other factors that
demonstrate a further need for beds. These factors include: patients who leave emergency rooms,
observation or inpatient units against medical advice; counts of a significant number of residents of
downstate lllinois who received inpatient care at US HealthVest’s facilities in the Chicago area (at
distances of between 140 and 200 miles from Peoria} who would benefit from receiving that care in the
Peoria region, and importantly, the known but unquantified number of people who need psychiatric
care but because of their lack of commitment to pursue that care, or their inability to do so, are not
getting into the system.
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Criterion 1110.210 — Acute Mental lliness

Service # of Existing Rooms # of Proposed Rooms

Acute Mental lllness 0 100

1110.210{b}){1) Pianning Area Need — Formula calculation

The Inventory of Health Care Facilities and Services and Need Determinations shows that there are 147
Acute Mental lliness {AMI} beds in Planning Area HSA 2. Based on the formula of 11 beds per 100,000
residents, with adjustments, there is a calculated need for 106 beds and a current excess of 41 AMI
beds. While the State staff must use the ratio of 11 beds per 100,000 in their evaluation of bed need,
this is a ratio that was adopted over 40 years ago. The field of behavioral health has since undergone
great change. Several recent permit applications for acute mental illness projects have referenced the
work of experts in the field of behavioral health who recommend a range of 40 — 50 AMI beds per
100,000 residents. For example, in an article published by the Pew Charitable Trusts in August, 2016,
Pew suggested that at least 40 AMI beds were needed per 100,000 residents. And an article published in
November, 2013 in Modern Healthcare, the Treatment Advisory Center recommended a minimum of 50
AMI beds per 100,000 residents.

There are three hospitals in the entire HSA 2, with a total of 147 authorized AM! beds. OSF Saint
Elizabeth Medical Center, located in Ottawa, has 26 AMI beds; UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital has
18 AMI beds; in June, 2022, UnityPoint Health - Methodist Hospital reduced its adult AMI service by 9
beds, as part of the establishment of a 44-bed child and adolescent service at the Young Minds Institute
in West Peoria. The combined UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital AMI bed count will be 103 beds
when completed. During the past 3 years, two hospitals closed their AMI units (Galesburg Cottage
Hospital and McDonough District Hospital), resulting in the combined reduction of 28 AMI beds.

While there is a current calculated excess of 41 AMI beds in the HSA 2, there were 2,203 adult residents
of HSA 2 who were either a) admitted at AMI units outside of HSA 2 (1,898 patients), or b) were
admitted at non-AMI units (i.e. medical units) (305 patients). This data is experiential evidence that the
need is much greater than 11 beds per 100,000 persons.

1110.210(b)(2) Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area Residents

Because the project is the establishment of a new service, the applicants propose to use the patient
origin experience for OSF Saint Francis Medical Center in Peoria to approximate the distribution of
patients who will utilize the proposed new behavioral health hospital in Peoria. The assumption is
made that the geographic distribution of patients receiving AMI care at the new hospital will reflect the
overall distribution of OSF Saint Francis Medical Center patients.

The attached table shows the patient origin data by zip code of patient residents for all services at OSF
Saint Francis Medical Center. 84.2 percent of patients at OSF Saint Francis Medical Center reside in HSA
2. Because AMI is a specialized service, it is likely that a higher percentage of AMI patients than
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OSF Saint Francis Medical Center
FY22 inpatient & Observation patients

All Ages
Patient Zip Patient City Patient County Patient State Area Cases % of Total Cum %
61604 PEORIA PEORIA IL HSA2 3,004 7.90% 7.90%
61614 PEORIA PEORIA It HSA2 2,152 5.50% 13.40%
61611 EAST PEQRIA TAZEWELL IL HSAZ 2,142 5.50%  18.80%
61605 PEORIA PECRIA IL HSA2 1,95% 5.00%  23.830%
61554 PEKIN TAZEWELL IL H5A2 1,835 4.70% 28.50%
61571 WASHINGTON  TAZEWELL 1L HSA2 1,814 4.60% 33.10%
61603 PEORIA PEORIA iL HSA2 1,674 4.30% 37.40%
61615 PEORIA PECRIA iL HSA2 1,614 4.10%  41.50%
61550 MORTON TAZEWELL L HSA2 1,370 350%  45.00%
61401 GALESBURG KNOX [[% HSA2 1,163 3.00% 48.00%
61607 PEORIA PEOQRIA [8 H5A2 360 2.20% 50.20%
61548 METAMORA WOQODFORD  IL HSA2 784 2.00% 52.20%
61523 CHILLICOTHE PEOQRIA IL HSA2 720 180% 54.00%
61525 DUNLAP PEORIA L HSA2 606 150% 55.50%
61520 CANTON FULTON IL HSA2 573 150% 57.00%
61616 PEORIA HEIGHTS PEORIA L HSAZ2 511 1.30%  58.30%
61364 STREATOR LA SALLE L HS5A2 510 130%  S9.60%
61462 MONMOUTH WARREN L HSA2 406 1.00%  650.60%
61610 CREVE COEUR  TAZEWELL IL H5A2 402 1.00% 61.70%
61350 OTTAWA LA SALLE L HSA2 344 090% 62.50%
61606 PEQRIA PEORIA L HSAZ 295 0.80% 63.30%
61530 EUREKA WOODFORD  IL HSA2 293 0.70% 64.00%
61356 PRINCETON BUREAU IL HSA2 292 0.70% 64.80%
61568 TREMONT TAZEWELL I HSA2 267 0.70%  65.50%
61536 HANNA CITY PEORIA IL H5A2 254 0.60% 66.10%
51755 MACKINAW TAZEWELL IL HSA2 234 0.60% 66.70%
51540 LACON MARSHALL I HSA2 224 0.60% 67.30%
61301 LA SALLE LA SALLE IL H5A2 203 0.50% 67.80%
61528 EDWARDS PECORIA IL HSA2 203 0.30% 68.30%
61455 MACOMB MCDONOUGH IL H5A2 191 0.50% 68.80%
61354 PERL LA SALLE IL H3A2 187 0.50% 69.30%
61517 BRIMFIELD PEORIA IL HSA2 181 050% 69.70%
61547 MAPLETON PEORIA IL H5A2 181 0.50% 70.20%
61602 PEORIA PEORIA IL HSA2 175 040% 70.70%
61559 PRINCEVILLE PEORIA iL HSA2 171 0.40% 71.10%
61531 FARMINGTON  FULTON L HS5A2 169 040% 71.50%
61561 ROANOKE WOODFORD It H5A2 163 040% 7190%
61529 ELMWOOD PEORIA IL HSA2 162 040%  72.40%
61537 HENRY MARSHALL IL HSA2 141 0.40%  T2.70%
61362 SPRING VALLEY SBUREAU IL H5A2 133 0.30% 73.10%
61410 ABINGDON KNOX I HSA2 124 0.30% 73.40%
61448 XKNOXVILLE KNOX IL HSA2 123 0.30% 73.70%
61483 TOULON STARK L HSA2 123 0.30% 74.00%
61491 WYOMING STARK IL HSA2 114 0.30%  74.30%
61542 LEWISTOWN FULTON IL HSA2 106 0.30% 74.60%
61342 MENDOTA LA SALLE IL H5A2 104 0.30%  74.80%
61533 GLASFCRD PEORIA IL HSA2 104 0.30% 75.10%
61570 WASHBURN MARSHALL IL HSA2 103 0.30% 75.30%
All other H5A2 Zip Codes 3,480 8.90%  84.20%
Total HSA2 Zip Codes 33,033 84.20%
61443 KEWANEE HENRY IL Non H5A2 637 1.60%  85.80%
61701 BLOOMINGTON MCLEAN L Non HSA2 33 0.80% 86.70%
61764 PONTIAC LIVINGSTON 1L Non HSA2 254 0.60% 87.30%
61704 BLOOMINGTON MCLEAN I Non H5A2 244 0.60% BE.00%
61761 NORMAL MCLEAN L Non HSA2 235 0.60% 88.60%
61265 MOLINE ROCK ISLAND 1L Non H5A2 207 0.50% 89.10%
61546 MANITO MASON IL Non HSA2 192 0.50%  89.60%
61201 ROCK ISLAND ROCK ISLAND 1L Non HSA2 182 0.50%  90.00%
61244 EAST MOLINE ROCK ISLAND 1L Non HSAZ 147 040%  90.40%
61434 GALVA HENRY I Non HSA2 123 030% 90.70%
61832 DANVILLE VERMILION iL Non H5A2 121 030% 91.00%
All other Non HSA2 Zip Codes 3,516 900% 100.00%
Total Non H5A2 Zip Codes 6,189 15.80%
Total H5A2 & Non HSAZ2 Combined 39,222 100.00% Attachment 21

(3



#23-008

medical/surgical patients will be from outside the HSA. It is estimated that 60% percent of patients at
the proposed Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will reside in HSA 2.

As a result, the Planning Area is the source of more than 50% of the patients to be seen at the proposed
new behavioral hospital.

1110.210(b){3) Service Demand — Establishment of Acute Mental Iliness

Background

The following factors frame the analysis in this section regarding the need for the new 100 AMI bed
facility:

-- According to the American Hospital Association, one in four Americans suffer from mental illness or
substance abuse disorder each year, and the majority also have a comorbid physical condition.
(Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration Community, “Conversations about Mental
Health,” American Hospital Association.} In addition, the entire nation is struggling with opiate
addiction, heroin addiction and lack of sufficient service availability for individuals who are chemically
dependent.

-- The 2022 Community Health Needs Assessment for Peoria, Tazewell and Woodford Counties in
central lllinois has identified mental health as the number one health concern of area residents. Mental
health issues outrank obesity, viruses, cancer, aging issues, diabetes and heart disease. Addressing the
community concerns requires high priority attention and coordinated efforts by health care providers
and agencies in the region.

-- A major purpose of the project is to address the special needs of several areas in Peoria and West
Peoria where indigent populations are especially vulnerable to adverse conditions. The CDC Social
Vulnerability Index identifies 14 census tracts in Peoria and West Peoria with a total population of about
26,000 persons, areas determined to be in the category of greatest vulnerability to deal with social and
health issues. Residents in these neighborhoods struggle to meet challenges associated with poverty
and access to health care. They have special behavioral health needs and will be the focus of
coordinated efforts by the proposed new behavioral hospital with agencies providing social services in
these neighborhoods with disparities.

-- More mental health providers are needed nationally, and that is the case in central lllinois. As to
inpatient bed capacity, experts in the field of behavioral health recommend a range of 40 — 50 AMI beds
per 100,000 residents. For example, in an article published by the Pew Charitable Trusts in August,
2016, Pew suggested that at least 40 AMI| beds were needed per 100,000 residents. And an article
published in November, 2013 in Modern Healthcare, the Treatment Advisory Center recommended a
minimum of 50 AMI beds per 100,000 residents,

-- HSA 2 lags behind the State of Hlinois in terms of AMI inpatient bed availability. The State of Illinois
has 35 AMI beds per 100,000 residents. HSA 2, with 147 AMI beds for a resident population of 627,900
persons (year 2024) has 23 AMI beds per 100,000 population. {112 AMI beds are currently in use; an
additional net 35 beds will be in service when UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital opens 44 child and
adolescent AMI beds at the Young Minds Institute and reduces its adult bed complement by 9 beds at
the main hospital. These changes are expected by the end of December 2023.)
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If HSA 2 were to reflect the PEW suggested target of 40 beds per 100,000, that would be a total of 252
beds. Meeting the 50 AMI beds per 100,000 level recommended by the Treatment Advisory Council
would require 314 beds. Both levels significantly exceed the current total bed complement of 147 AM|
beds. The proposed behavioral hospital, with 100 AMI beds, would result in a total of 247 beds in HSA 2,
or 39.3 beds per 100,000, near the low end of the 40 — 50 beds per 100,000 population range.

-- A significant number of residents of HSA 2 were not able to be accommodated in the three hospital
AMI units in HSA 2 and were admitted at other hospitals in Illinois and out of state. According to
COMPdata, 4,935 adult residents of HSA 2 were admitted for inpatient behavioral health care in 2021.
2,732 of these patients were admitted at AMI units in the HSA. 1,898 adult patients had to travel to
hospitals outside of HSA 2 to receive care, due mostly to lack of available bed capacity near home.
These 1,898 patients constitute 39% of the total 4,935 residents admitted for behavioral health care,
The table on the next page displays the location of inpatient care by State AMI planning area for these
4,935 patients.

Of the 1,898 residents of HSA 2 who received care outside of the HSA, 1,253 (66%) traveled to
metropolitan Chicago and were admitted at hospitals between 140 and 200 miles from Peoria. Most
often this distance constitutes a hardship for patients and their families, and is disruptive of home life,
work and school for family members. For many types of behavioral health care, family support and
involvement in the care plan is necessary. The need to travel significant distances, the expense of hotel
accommodations, and the stress of not being in a home setting are factors that compromise efficacy of
care delivery.

Most of those adults now traveling out of the area for care will be hospitalized at the proposed new
behavioral health hospital. Patients living near the perimeter of HSA 2 are more likely to continue to
receive care at relatively close hospitals that are outside the HSA.

Justification of beds needed — Overview

Physicians affiliated with OSF Saint Francis Medical Center, physicians who are chief medical officers
at 14 OSF hospitals in Illinois, and hospitals and other clinical service providers and special service
agencies have written in support of the project, and collectively have committed to refer 4,030 patients
in the second year of operation of the proposed behavioral hospital. Based on the current experience at
US HealthVest's Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital {11.1 days average length of stay, for year 2022 through
the month of October) and Lake Behavioral Hospital (10.9 days), an ALOS of 10.5 days is projected at the
new behavioral hospital. At an average length of stay of 10.5 days, these 4,030 patients will generate an
average daily census of 116 patients. The Meadowview Behavioral Hospital is planned for 100 AMI
beds, at an ADC of 90 patients, and an occupancy of 90%.

The analysis also includes additional information indicating that the need for beds is significantly
higher than the 4,030 patients counted in the referral letters. Additional factors supporting the need for
more AMI beds in Planning Area HSA 2 are the following:

- This year there were almost 1,100 referrals from hospitals in downstate lllinois to the three US
HealthVest hospitals in the Chicago area. These have a high probability of being admitted at the
proposed new behavioral health hospital due to proximity to patients’ homes.
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134



#23-008

2021 Adult Behavioral Health Admissions from Residents in Planning Area HSA 02
Almost 2,000 residents of the Area leave annually to receive AMI care
(Based on BH MS-DRG's)

Patient Admission Location |Cases % of Total [Cum %
HSA 02 2,732 55.40% 55.40%
A-07 405 8.20%| 63.60%
A-02 372 7.50%| 71.10%
HSA 04 323 6.50%| 77.60%
Non AMI 305 6.20%| 83.80%
A-09 143 2.90%] 86.70%
A-06 109 2.20%] 88.90%
HSA 11 93 1.90%| 90.80%
A-01 88 1.80%| 92.60%
HSA 10 70 1.40%| 94.00%
HSA 03 66 1.30%| 95.40%
HSA 01 55 1.10%| 96.50%
A-13 47 1.00%| 97.40%
A-05 43 0.90%| 98.30%
Out of State 38 0.80%| 99.10%
A-14 22 0.40%| 99.50%
A-12 9 0.20%| 99.70%
A-04 6 0.10%| 99.80%
A-03 3 0.10%| 99.90%
A-11 3 0.10%| 99.90%
A-10 2 0.00%| 100.00%
A-08 1 0.00%| 100.00%
Grand Total 4,935 100.00%

HSA 02 AMI Providers 2,732 55.40%

Non AMI Providers 305 6.20%

All Other AMI Providers 1,898 38.50%

Non AMI: Hospitals with BH Patients but without AMI Beds

Chicago Area {A-01 to 14) 1,253

Source for all data: Compdata
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- 306 residents of HSA 2 were transferred from emergency rooms to hospital inpatient medical units in
2021, because there were no available AMI beds.

- In the past three years, a total of 685 emergency department adult patients and some hospital
inpatients/observation patients with behavioral health needs who reside in HSA 2, left non-OSF
hospitals against medical advice or discontinued care.

- At the 14 OSF hospitals in lllinois in the past three years, a total of 463 patients with behavioral
health needs left emergency departments or inpatient/observation units against medical advice or
discontinued care.

- An undocumented number of residents of HSA 2 with behavioral health needs do not have the
resources or ability to pursue needed outpatient or inpatient mental health care.

Further analysis of these additional five factors is presented later in this section. Patient volume
associated with these additional factors totals 1,813 patients, above and beyond the 4,030 patients
counted in the referral letters of physicians, chief medical officers at OSF hospitals in lllingis, other
behavioral health providers, and hospitals in the region. The collective result of these factors
supplements the referral counts and supports a significant need for more AM| beds in central lllinois.

The analysis in the following section investigates each of these components, and concludes that the
need for additional AMI beds in central lllinois far exceeds the planned 100 additional beds.

Justification of Bed Need - Analysis

Eight physicians have written in support of the project and commit to refer 800 patients. The source
of the information is from the office practice patient billing systems in place at the practice sites.
The letters and accompanying patient origin and hospitalization data are included in attachment 21A.

OSF Physicians and Providers - Commitments to Refer

Name Specialty Patient Referrals

Denise Johnson-Dechow, MD Psychiatry 42
Feiteng Su, MD Psychiatry 40
Samuel Sears, MD Psychiatry 488
Namisha Patel, MD Psychiatry 50
Christopher Funk, Psy.D Clinical Psychology 30
Tim Shannon, Psy.D Clinical Psychology 50
Robert Hamilton, MD Psychiatry 75
Abraham Frenkel, MD Psychiatry 25

Total 800

The office practice records do not have complete information on where these referrals are eventually
admitted for inpatient AMI care. In part that is the result of the access condition reported in the
purpose statement — that patients admitted for behavioral health inpatient care and residing in HSA 2
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receive that care in over 150 hospitals — 73 AMI units in lllinois, 48 AMI units at hospitals cutside Illinois,
and 38 non-AMI units in hospitals in lllinois (ie medical units). In order to meet the requirement to
document referrals to specific hospitals, the list of hospitals where residents of HSA 2 received care in
2021 (page 153-155 of Attachment 21) is provided as a surrogate.

Note that the list shows that UnityPoint Health — Methodist and UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital
are two of the top four of receiving hospitals for all residents of HSA 2. That is expected because of their
locations in Peoria. Unfortunately, that is not the case for referrals from physicians associated with OSF
Saint Francis Medical Center. As reported on page 151 of this permit application, there were only 11
patients admitted at UnityPoint Health ~ Methodist Hospital and 20 patients at UnityPoint Health -
Proctor Hospital from OSF Saint Francis Medical Center for the three years from 2020 — 2022. The
experience by OSF affiliated physicians seeking admissions of their patients at the two Peoria hospitals is
similar.

Letters from the Chief Medical Officers at the 14 OSF hospitals in lllincis hospitals document the intent
to refer a total of 1,794 patients to AMI units in 2027. Hospital records are the source of this
information, and count patients that were discharged to AMI units. These letters are included as
Attachment 21B in this section. The table below lists the referrals from each of the hospitals.

Commitments to Refer, Chief Medical Officers, OSF Facilities

Facility Location Committed Referrals

OSF HealthCare Saint Anthony's Health Center Alton 154
QSF HealthCare Saint Anthony Medical Center Rockford 150
OSF HealthCare Saint Paul Medical Center Mendota 25
0SF Healthcare St Mary Medical Center Galesburg 210
OSF Healthcare Saint Clare Medical Center Princeton 30
OSF Healthcare Saint Luke Medical Center Kewanee 40
OSF HealthCare St Joseph Medical Center Bloomington 60
OSF HealthCare Saint James-John W. Albrecht Medical Center Pontiac 40
QOSF HealthCare Sacred Heart Medical Center Danville 250
OSF HealthCare Saint Francis Medical Center Peoria 460
OSF HealthCare Saint Elizabeth Medical Center Ottawa 220
OSF HealthCare Little Company of Mary Medical Center Evergreen Park 20
OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center Urbana 110
OSF Holy Family Medical Center Monmouth 25

Total 1794

Social service agencies and other providers of behavioral health services in the Peoria area have
written in support of the project and indicated that they collectively will refer 926 patients to the new
behavioral hospital.
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The following table lists the agencies and other providers who wrote in support of the project and
whose letters were received before the filing of the permit application. Several letters from other
agencies did not quantify an anticipated number of referrals. Additional letters are still outstanding at
the time of permit application filing. OSF and US HealthVest will continue to invite letters of referral
from other agencies in the area during the application review process. For those that estimated
referrals, volumes are included in the table. The letters of support are included in Attachment 21C.

Commitments to Refer - by Social Services Agencies, FQHCs, Counselors

Organization Main Location Referrals
Heartland Health Services FQHC Peoria 415
Bridgeway Galesburg as
Resources Management Services, Inc/Chapin & Russell/ Peoria 4
Neurotherapy Institute of llinois

Elliott Counseling Services Pecria 15
John R. Day & Associates Peoria 10
Deborah McKenna Counselors of Peoria Peoria 5
Arukah Institute of Healing Princeton 50
Chestnut Family Health Center Bloomington 100
Petersen Health Care Peoria 100
Barnabas Center Peoria 10
Associates in Behavioral Science Berwyn 132

Total 926

Regional hospital CEOs have written in support of the project and anticipate referring 510 patients
annually to the proposed new hospital. At the time of filing, three CEQs of hospitals in central lllinois
have indicated a likelihood of referring a total of 510 patients to the proposed hospital. The CEQ’s

letters are included in Attachment 21D.

Commitments to Refer - Area

Hospitals
Regional Hospital Name Location Referrals
Graham Health System Robert G. Seneff, President & CEQ Canton 150
Katherina Shaw Bethea Hospital David L. Schreiner, PhD, President & CEQ Dixon 10
Memorial Health Edgar J. Curtis, President & CEOQ Springfield 350
Total 510

Conclusions from this section.

The referral letters document a total of 4,030 patient admissions two years after project completion.

It is anticipated that the average length of stay at the new hospital will be 10.5 days. This is derived
from the current experience at Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital (11.1 days average length of stay, for year
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2022 through the month of October) and Lake Behavioral Hospital {10.9 days). These lengths of stay are
based on actual experience at US HealthVest hospitals in lllinois, and reflect the planned specialized
programs that are more intensive than services in general hospital acute care AMI units.

4,030 patients x 10.5 days/patient = 42,315 patient days

42,315 patient days divided by 365 days = 115.9 average daily census

The 100 AMI bed Meadowview Behavioral Hospital is proposed to operate at 90% occupancy, which is
equivalent to annual volume of 3,129 patients totaling approximately 32,850 patient days.

Additional factors contributing to bed utilization.
There is a significant amount of additional information supporting the need for additional AMI beds in

the area. Five additional factors are described below:

1. Retaining AMI patients in the area who now go to US HealthVest hospitals in the Chicago area.
Almost 1,100 patients in 2022 who primarily reside in lllinois south of the Chicago metropolitan area
have received inpatient care at the three US HealthVest Hospitals in Waukegan, Des Plaines and New
Lenox. These referrals came from hospitals south of the Chicago area. A significant portion of these
would be hospitalized in the new Meadowview Behavioral Hospital as a more convenient location for
specialized psychiatric care.

The map and following three tables are based on data provided by the US HealthVest hospitals as
documentation of the number of patients at the three behavioral health hospitals who were referred by
hospitals south of the Chicago metropolitan area. See the map on the next page, showing distances
from Peoria to the three hospitals and volumes of patients admitted at the three hospitals from areas
south of metropolitan Chicago.

- Lake Behavioral Hospital in Waukegan provided inpatient care to 187 persons in 2021 referred by
downstate hospitals, and an additional 322 patients from downstate through October, 2022 (annualized
to 388 patients}.

- Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital in New Lenox provided inpatient care to 115 persons in 2021 referred
by downstate hospitals, and an additional 62 patients from downstate through October, 2022
(annualized to 75).

- Chicago Behavioral Health in Des Plaines provided inpatient care to 523 persons in 2021 referred by
downstate hospitals, and an additional 521 patients from downstate in the first 10 months of 2022
{annualized to 628). Of these patients, 100 have been referred from OSF hospitais and are not included
in the final count because they are likely included in other referral categories. (Net 528)

These three hospitals range from 139 miles from Peoria to New Lenox, and 197 miles from Peoria to
Waukegan. The establishment of the proposed behavioral hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US
HealthVest and Pointcore, Inc enables the regionalization of care in the US HealthVest system in lllinois.
Patients residing south of metropolitan Chicago will have the opportunity to receive psychiatric care at
the US HealthVest / Pointcore, Inc facility in Peoria, significantly closer to home.

Some of the residents near the northern borders of HSA 2 and from other areas in northern central
and eastern lllinois may choose to receive care in the Chicago area, and especially at Silver Qaks in south
suburban New Lenox. If 75% of the patients are diverted within the US HealthVest regional system, the
result is a referral of 818 patients to the new behavioral hospital in Peoria.
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Travel Distance and Drive Time from Peoria to US HealthVest Hospitals in the Chicago Area
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Peoria to Waukegan, 197 miles, 3 hr. 20 min drive - 388 patients & families

C B H Peoria to Des Plaines, 171 miles, 3 hr. drive - 628 patients & families

Peoria to New Lenox, 139 miles, 2 hr. 13 min drive - 75 patients & families
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Referrals to Lake Behavioral Health (Waukegan) by hospitals and other providers

south of metropolitan Chicago

Hospital / Provider Facility 2021 2022
Carle Foundation Hospital 27
Crosspoint Human Services 13
Graham Hospital 11
Hammond Henry Hospital 1
McDonough District Hospital 3 1
Memorial Hospital Belleville 3 2
Methodist Hospital of Peoria 51 87
Morris Hospital 5
Paris Hospital 2
Riverside Medical Center 7 8
St James Olympia Fields 24 14
St Margaret Hospital - Springfield 2 6
St Mary's 2 8
UnityPoint Health 83 144
UnityPoint Pekin 5
Subtotal 187 322
Total Annualized 187 388

41
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Referrals to Silver Oaks from non-OSF providers south of New Lenox

Hospital / provider facility 2021 2022
Bridgeway (Kewanee) X 2
Carle 9 4
Crosspoint Human Services (Danville) 1 1
Decatur X 2
Graham 2 X
Galesburg 1 X
Illini Community 2 1
lllinois Valley 1 X
Mercy Harvard 3 1
Morris 28 15
Olympia Fields 20 9
UnityPoint 6 7
St. Mary's 6
Proctor Hospital 3
Riverside 20 6
Sara Bush Lincoln 1
St Paul, Mendota X 1
5t Margaret 9 3
Subtotal 105 62
Total Annualized 105 75

#23-008

Attachment 21



Sources of Patients referred to Chicago Behavioral Health from locations south of the Chicago area

# of Patients, year 2021  |# of Patients, year 2022

Hospitals
Abraham Lincoln Hospital 2 1
Advocate Bromenn 1
Belleville Memorial 4 2
Blessing Hospital 5
Carle Foundation Hospital 121 67
Clay County Hospital 1
Decatur Memorial Hospital 12 28
Fayette County Hospital 1
Graham Hospital 21 3
Greenville Holy Family 1
Holy Family Hospital 2
Jacksonville Memorial Hospital 1
Mason District S 5
McDonough District Hospital 4 4
Morris Hospital 25 15
Paris Community Hospital 2 1
Pekin Hospital s
Perry Hospital 2
Rochelle Community Hospital 1 1
Sacred Heart Hospital 14 14
St Joseph Bloomington 9 3
St Luke Medical Center 1 3
St Margaret Mercy 6 5
St James 1
St John's 2 7
St Margaret Hospital - Spr S 5
St Paul Medical Center [
Unity Paint Health 70 75
Wabash General Hospital i

Subtotal Hospitals 308 261
Non-Hospital Providers
Bridgeway 54 50
Bridgeway SASS 22 44
Carle Mobile Crisis SASS 8
Center for Youth & Family 1
Chestnut Health 7 3
Childrens Home Assoc SASS 5 4
Crosspoint Human Services SASS 15 28
Crosspoint Human Services 23 21
El Paso Nursing Home 1
McLean County Crisis 21 28
One Hope United 1 1
One Hope United SASS 2
OSF Center for Health Streator 2
0OSF Medical Group 65 66
Peoria Children Home SASS 1
Tazwood Mental Health 1

Subtotal Non-Hospital Providers 215 260
TOTAL 523 521
TOTAL ANNUALIZED 628
TOTAL 523 628
Total, Non-OSF Providers 431 528

IEK
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2. A number of residents of HSA 2 were hospitalized in medical units due to lack of availability of an
AMI bed.

As shown in the same COMPdata table that documented 1,898 residents of HSA 2 who received care
out of the area, 305 adult residents of HSA 2 were hospitalized on a medical unit in 2021. In large part
this was due to unavailability of an AMI bed. This condition complicates care delivery, requiring nurses
on the medical unit to coordinate care with psychiatrists and psychiatric nurses in a non-ideal setting. In
addition, mixing patients with behavioral health needs on the same unit as patients with medical
conditions is not good care practice. The planned 100 bed AMI hospital will accommodate these adult
patients.

3. In the past three years, 685 residents of HSA 2 with behavioral health needs, who received care in a
hospital emergency department, inpatient bed or observation unit, left against medical advice or
discontinued care. This average annual volume of 228 patients is just part of the unmet need by
residents who are not getting the behavicral health care they require.

The table on the next page shows the number of patients in each of the last three years who
terminated their care at 59 hospitals, either as emergency department patients or patients in an
inpatient bed or observation unit. This is an average of 228 patients per year, and does not include
patients at the two OSF hospitals in HSA 2 {which are counted later in this analysis). The source of the
data is COMPdata.

There are several explanations for patients deciding to terminate their care. Some of the patients
brought to emergency departments by local police or fire departments are in denial that they need care.
Other emergency department patients are frustrated by the waiting time to be admitted to an inpatient
bed, and leave before an admission arrangement is implemented. For others, the distance from their
homes is more than an hour or other acceptable travel time, and it is not practical for family members
or friends to regularly drive to support the patient and participate in care planning. Other patients
realize that they are not getting specialized treatment for their conditions, and lose confidence that the
care is efficacious.

It is reasonable that most of these patients {perhaps 75%, or 171 patients) will benefit from the
services at the proposed new behavioral hospital, services that will be immediately available, and
services that are specialized to address the needs of the patient.
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HS5A2 Service Area Patients

FY19-21 Behavioral Health Patients

IP/OBS & ED Patients with discharge status of "Left Against Medical Advice or Discontinued Care'
(Excluding OSF Hospitals)

Facility FY19 FY20 FY21
UNITYPOINT PEKIN . 19 34 41
UNITYPOINT METHODIST PEORIA 53 45 40
UNITYPOINT PROCTOR 56 43 38
GALESBURG COTTAGE HOSPITAL 10 9 22
GRAHAM HOSPITAL 14 13 21
ST MARGARETS SPRING VALLEY 16 3 18
UNITYPOINT TRINITY ROCK ISLAND 12 13 15
CARLE BROMENN 11 5

ST MARGARETS PERU 23 10

CARLE FOUNDATION

THE PAVILION

SAINT ANTHONY HOSPITAL CHICAGO

CARLE EUREKA

HUMBOLDT PARK HEALTH

GREAT RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM

HENRY COUNTY HEALTH CENTER

LOYOLA UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER
THOREK MEMORIAL

LORETTO HOSPITAL

ASCENSION ST JOSEPH JOLIET

UCHICAGO MEDICINE INGALLS

SSM HEALTH SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL
QUORUM GATEWAY

HSHS ST JOHNS

SSM ST MARYS CENTRALIA

GENESIS SILVIS

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION

RUSH COPLEY

ST CATHERINE HOSPITAL

RUSH COPLEY EMERGENCY YORKVILLE
MERCY HOSPITAL JOPLIN

FHN MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

SARAH D CULBERTSON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
MORRIS HOSPITAL AND HEALTHCARE CENTERS
ADVOCATE GOOD SAMARITAN

UNITYPOINT TRINITY MOLINE

SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEALTH CENTER

O R/N WO O OO0 OO0 OO0 OOk NOWRERNOOIRRIEREOOOR
P PP OO0 OO0 000000000 NON€MNODOOLOCNOGOIRDIO
O C O O FP PP P P PR PP R e e e RNNN W W WO
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ASCENSION MERCY

ASCENSION ST JOSEPH CHICAGO
RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER
MASON DISTRICT HOSPITAL

GENESIS MEDICAL CENTER

MH DECATUR MEMORIAL
NORTHWESTERN VALLEY WEST

SSM HEALTH SAINT JOSEPH HOSPITAL
ELMHURST HOSPITAL
NORTHWESTERN KISHWAUKEE
LINDEN OAKS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
ASCENSION ALEXIAN BROTHERS BEHAVIORAL
ADVOCATE CHRIST

ADVENTHEALTH BOLINGBROOK
PIPELINE WEISS

IROQUOIS MEMORIAL HOSPITAL AND RESIDENT
NORTHWEST COMMUNITY HOSPITAL
NORTHWESTERN MEMORIAL

RUSH OAK PARK

HARTGROVE HOSPITAL

Ul HEALTH

BLESSING HOSPITAL

HOPEDALE MEDICAL COMPLEX
EDWARD HOSPITAL

SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL

R = O O FrR O 00000k Rk~ O

O R kR OO0 OO F OO Kk OO FP OO RF P P NRKR O OO

QO QO P P OO QO+
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Grand Total

246 196
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4, In the past three years, an annual average of 463 patients per year with behavioral health needs left
emergency departments or inpatient/observation units at the 14 OSF hospitals in lllinois against medical
advice or discontinued care.

The following table lists the 14 OSF hospitals in Illinois and documents the average annual 463 patients
with behavioral diagnosis who left emergency departments or inpatient or observation units at those
hospitals.

This factor recognizes that the new behavioral health hospital, with its specialized services, will be the
hub of care delivery for Acute Mental lliness in the OSF system. Special protocols will be established to
refer and assist in the transport of patients presenting at the emergency departments, especially at the
12 OSF hospitals located outside of HSA 2.

Similar to the analysis in item 4 above, it is estimated that 75% (348 patients) of these patients will be
accommodated and receive care at the proposed new behavioral hospital. Distance from the areas
served by some of these hospitals to the new Peoria location is the contributing factor for reducing the
total number of patients.

OSF Healthcare System Hospitals
FY20-22 Behavioral Health Patients
IP/OBS & ED Patients with discharge status of "Left Against Medical Advice or Discontinued Care"

Row Labels 2020 2021 2022
SAINT FRANCIS MEDICAL CENTER 168 124 117
SACRED HEART MEDICAL CENTER 91 97 78
LITTLE COMPANY OF MARY MEDICAL CENTER ' 43 52 47
HEART OF MARY MEDICAL CENTER 50 32 36
SAINT ANTHONY MEDICAL CENTER ' 48 29 24
ST. JOSEPH MEDICAL CENTER 39 31 30
SAINT ELIZABETH MEDICAL CENTER 37 35 15
ST. MARY MEDICAL CENTER 18 19 24
SAINT ANTHONY'S HEALTH CENTER 10 9 16
SAINT LUKE MEDICAL CENTER 8 10 6
SAINT JAMES-JOHN W ALBRECHT MC ' 8
SAINT PAUL MEDICAL CENTER 6
SAINT CLARE MEDICAL CENTER 8
HOLY FAMILY MEDICAL CENTER 1 2 3
Grand Total 521 449 418
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5. Nationally, it is well-recognized that significant numbers of people are not accessing needed mental
illness services because of lack of commitment to make the effort to seek care, denial of the problem,
and/or lack of resources. These individuals are not included in anyone’s counts of services delivered
because they are not there to be counted.

This component of need is hard to translate into a forecasted volume of patients. For lack of a reliable
methodology, this analysis uses the count of patients leaving against medical advice as a surrogate
measure of need. This large number of people need inpatient behavioral health care but choose not to
pursue care, or for one reason or another, are unable to access that care. This is an important
component of care disparities, and is reflected here as a placeholder for patients to be recruited for care
and well served.

Based on the count of patients leaving against medical advice a like number {171 persons) is a
conservative estimate of patients who require care, need inpatient care but don’t obtain that care. This
volume should not be misinterpreted as a cap on indigent patients, but merely as a placeholder to be
exceeded.

Summary: These five additional sources of 1,813 potential admissions include the quantified tabulated
admissions of residents of the region south of metro Chicago to US HealthVest Hospitals, admissions
that will be diverted. At an average length of stay of 10.5 days, these 1,813 patients generate patient
days, or a potential additional ADC of 52 patients.

The planned utilization of the Meadowview Behavioral Hospital is 90% in 2027, two years after project
completion. This level of occupancy equates to 3,129 admissions at 10.5 ALOS, or 32,850 patient days.
This is less than the total referral count of 4,030 patients. Because of the potential additional sources of
AMI patient admissions outlined above, the estimate of 4,030 referrals is itself conservative. Projecting
utilization of 3,129 admissions is a second conservative adjustment. The utilization level of 90% exceeds
the State standard of 85%, and is achievable based on the actual experience at the US HealthVest
hospitals in the Chicago area. 90% constitutes full utilization of the proposed behavioral hospital.

1110.210(b}{4) Service Demand — Expansion of AMI and/or CM! Service
{This section does not apply, since the project is the establishment of a new AMI service.)

1110.210(b)(5) Service Accessibility / Service Restrictions

There are several factors that individually and collectively indicate that there are significant access issues
for mental health services in HSA 2. Documentation includes:

1. HPSA data indicates a shortage of mental health providers in HSA 2.
Data from the Health Resources and Services Administration’s website on Health Professionals Shortage

Areas shows that each of the county groupings in HSA 2 has a shortage of mental health professionals,
totaling 20 FTEs. The shortfalls are calculated using ratios of professionals to population. The HPSA
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scores range from 0 to 26; the higher the score, the higher the priority need. Most of the counties in the
HSA are in the upper range of this scale. The existing situation supports the requirement of
1110.210{b}{5}{A) Service Restrictions, specifically sub-itern (A){iv).

Health Professional Shortage Area data
Counties in HSA 2

Discipline Gony HPSA HPSA Designation

FTE shortage score Update Date
Mental Health Bureau / Putnam 1.91 17 11/16/2021
Mental Health Fulton 1.62 17 9/8/2021
Mental Health Henderson/Knox/Warren 2.58 18 9/8/2021
Mental Heatth Marshall/Woodford 2.45 18 9/8/2021
Mental Health McDonough 1.25 19 11/16/2021
Mental Health Peoria / Tazewell 7.39 12 9/8/2021
Mental Health Stark 2.69 17 11/16/2021

Total HSA 2 19.89

Source: Health Resources and Services Administration; data.HRSA.gov

2. 2,203 residents of HSA 2 left the HSA for inpatient AMI care, or were hospitalized for mental
health in a medical unit.

1,898 adult patients had to travel to hospitals cutside of HSA 2 to receive care, due mostly to lack of
available bed capacity near home. These 1,898 patients constitute 39% of the total 4,935 residents
admitted for behavioral health care. In addition, 305 residents of the HSA were hospitalized for
behavioral health care but in a medical unit because of the lack of an available AMI bed.

The data demonstrates an access to care issue associated with insufficient available bed capacity. The
table on the next page shows the zip codes of the 2,203 residents of HSA 2 who left to receive care at
hospitals outside of the area or were admitted to a medical unit because of lack of an available AM| bed.
Of the 1,898 residents of HSA 2 who received care outside of the HSA, 1,253 (66%) traveled to
metropolitan Chicago and were admitted at hospitals up to 200 miles from Peoria. Most often this
distance constitutes a hardship for patients and their families, and is disruptive of home life, work and
school for family members. For many types of behavioral health care, family support and involvement in
the care plan is necessary. The need to travel significant distances, the expense of hotel
accommodations, and the stress of not being in a home setting are factors that compromise efficacy of
care delivery.
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2021 Adult Behavioral Health Admissions of Residents of Planning Area HSA 02
Receiving care outside the HSA (Based on BH MS-DRG’s)
(Excluding HSA 2 AMI Providers)

Patient Zip Patient City Cases % Of Total Cum %
61401 GALESBURG, IL 235 10.70%  10.70%
61554 PEKIN, IL 145 6.60%  17.20%
61604 PECRIA, IL 126 5.70%  23.00%
61455 MACOMB, IL 105 4.80% 27.70%
61603 PEOCRIA, IL 94 4.30% 32.00%
61605 PEORIA, IL 76 3.40%  35.50%
61350 OTTAWA, IL 76 3.40%  38.90%
61611 EAST PEORIA, IL 73 3.30% 42.20%
61364 STREATOR, IL 67 3.00% 45.30%
61354 PERY, IL 62 2.80% 48.10%
61614 PEORIA, IL 62 2.80% 50.90%
61301 LA SALLE, IL 62 2.80% 53.70%
61520 CANTON, IL 58 2.60%  56.30%
61615 PEORIA, IL 44 2.00% 58.30%
61341 MARSEILLES, IL 40 1.80%  60.10%
61356 PRINCETON, IL 38 1.70% 61.90%
61362 SPRING VALLEY, IL 38 1.70% 63.60%
61462 MONMOUTH, IL 36 1.60% 65.20%
61602 PEORIA, IL 35 1.60%  66.80%
61342 MENDOTA, IL 32 150% 68.30%
61571 WASHINGTON, IL 30 1.40% 69.60%
61610 CREVE COEUR, IL 27 1.20% 70.90%
61616 PEQRIA HEIGHTS, IL 27 1.20%  72.10%
61738 EL PASQ, IL 24 1.10% 73.20%
61606 PEORIA, IL 23 1.00%  74.20%
60518 EARLVILLE, IL 20 0.90%  75.10%
61422 BUSHNELL, IL 19 0.90%  76.00%
61548 METAMORA, IL 19 0.90% 76.80%
61410 ABINGDON, IL 18 0.80% 77.70%
61550 MORTON, IL 16 0.70%  78.40%
61348 OGLESBY, IL 16 0.70%  79.10%
61523 CHILLICOTHE, IL 16 0.70%  79.80%
61607 PEORIA, IL 15 0.70%  80.50%
61636 PEORIA, IL 15 0.70% 81.20%
61438 GOOD HOPE, IL 14 0.60%  81.80%
61448 KNOXVILLE, IL 13 0.60% 82.40%
62326 COLCHESTER, IL 12 0.50%  83.00%
61531 FARMINGTON, IL 11 0.50%  83.50%
60551 SHERIDAN, IL 10 0.50%  83.90%
61530 EUREKA, IL 10 0.50%  84.40%
61537 HENRY, IL 10 0.50% 84.80%
61540 LACON, IL 10 0.50%  85.30%

All Other 324 14.70% 100.00%
Total all HSA2 2,203 100.00%
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3. Over the past 4 years, residents of HSA 2 with behavioral health needs were hospitalized at 159
hospitals, of which 111 were AMI hospitals or AMI units of hospitals. Of these, only five AMI units were
located in HSA 2. Of the five, two of the AMI_units have closed in the past three years — McDonough
District Hospital and Galesburg Cottage Hospital.

Three hospitals now provide AMI inpatient care in HSA 2: UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital, OSF
Saint Elizabeth Medical Center in Ottawa, and UnityPoint Health -Proctor Hospital. [t is too frequently
the case that inpatient beds are not available at these three facilities with a totat current bed capacity of
112 AMI beds. This bed capacity will increase to 147 beds, due to the opening of the 44 bed child and
adolescent Young Minds Institute and subsequent closure of 9 adult beds at UnityPoint Health -
Methodist Hospital. These beds serve an HSA 2 population of 627,900. As a result, patients and their
families have to travel great distances for inpatient AMI care some as far away as Waukegan, lowa City,
Cedar Rapids, and St Louis. (Other remote locations are even farther, but are related to referrals of only
one or two patients, and are not necessary to make the point of insufficient availability locally.) This
condition is evidence of an access issue.

According to COMPdata, in the past four years, residents of HSA 2, including 4,935 patients in 2021,
received care for their behavioral heaith needs in over 150 facilities:

73 hospital AMI units throughout (llinois

38 hospital AMI units outside of lllinois

48 non-AMI units in lllinois (ie medical units)
This data is evidence of a lack of available capacity and services in the area. Finding places to hospitalize
people in need is a challenge and time-consuming activity for social workers and staff at agencies and
admitting and discharge staff at hospitals responsible for coordinating access to needed service. More
importantly, it is an extreme hardship for patients and their families when care is available only at
significant distances from home.

OSF hospitals’ data show that for the past three years, OSF hospitals requested referrals of 495 patients
in 2020, 438 in 2021 and 468 in 2022 to UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital and UnityPoint Proctor
Hospital. These are the two hospitals with AMI units within a 17-mile radius of the proposed project site.
A minimal number of the referral requests resulted in inpatient admissions: 7, 2 and 2 for the three
years, respectively at UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital, and 11, 8 and 1 geriatric admissions at
UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital. This experience is evidence of a significant access and service
delivery problem, resulting in patients not being able to get needed inpatient AMI care locally.
Accordingly, not only will the impact of the project on the two existing AMI units within the 17-mile area
be minimal, but access to care will be significantly improved, benefitting residents of central lllincis.

The map and table on the next three pages show the distribution of hospitals to which HSA 2 residents
were referred for admission for AMI service, from 2018 through 2021. Imagine the difficulty of
obtaining a bed, when it means that patient coordinators and discharge planners at hospitals too often
have to make ten or more calls to arrange an admission to AMI. The extensive listing of hospitals where
residents of HSA 2 are admitted for AMI services is significant documentation that there is no regional
center for behavioral health services in this central Hllinois area.
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Residents of HSA2 with Behavioral Conditions Receiving Care
In more than 150 Facilities
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2021 Adult Behavioral Heaith Admissions from Residents in Planning Area HSA 02

{Based on BH M5-DRG's)

#23-008

Hospital Cases Cases Cases Cases
Facility Facility City Planning Area| FY18 F¥19 FY20 Fy21
UNITYPOINT METHODIST PEORIA PEORIA, IL HSA 02 2,153 2,079 2,045 1,827
OSF SEMC OTTAWA, iL HSA 02 1,006 970 847 597
HARTGROVE HOSPITAL CHICAGO, IL A-02 44 103 207 346
UNITYPOINT PROCTOR PEORIA, IL HSA 02 366 257 324 308
CHICAGO BEHAVIORAL HOSPITAL DES PLAINES, IL A-07 154 242 308 253
OSF SFMC PEORIA, IL Non AMI 178 185 155 177
LAKE BEHAVIORAL HOSPITAL WAUKEGAN, IL A-09 1 8 i8 142
THE PAVILION CHAMPAIGN, IL HSA 04 143 137 145 129
STREAMWOOD BEBAVIORAL HEALTHCARE SYSTEM |STREAMWOOD, IL A-07 61 143 139 121
RIVEREDGE HOSPITAL FOREST PARK, IL A-06 57 79 98 105
OSF HMMC URBANA, IL HSA 04 94 119 114 98
CARLE BROMENN NORMAL, IL HSA 04 137 123 71 91
QUORUM GATEWAY GRANITE CITY, IL HSA 11 51 38 29 85
KINDRED CHICAGO NORTH CHICAGO, IL A-01 16 416 66 72
UNITYPOINT TRINITY ROCK ISLAND ROCK ISLAND, IL HSA 10 46 49 59 70
KATHERINE SHAW BETHEA HOSPITAL DIXON, IL HSA 01 28 17 35 S0
GALESBURG COTTAGE HOSPITAL GALESBURG, IL Non AMI 67 75 57 44
BLESSING HOSPITAL QUINCY, IL HSA 03 69 40 29 37
SILVER OAKS BEHAVIORAL HOSPITAL NEW LENOX, IL A-13 49 30
LINDEN OAKS BEHAVIORAL HEALTH NAPERVILLE, IL A-05 34 40 30 25
ASCENSION ALEXIAN BROTHERS BEHAVIORAL HOFFMAN ESTATES, IL |A-O7 16 30 10 25
RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTER KANKAKEE KANKAKEE, IL A-14 12 13 24 19
ASCENSION ST JOSEPH JOLIET JOLIET, IL A-13 11 8 7 16
ILLINI COMMUNITY HOSPITAL PITTSFIELD PITTSHELD, IL HSA 03 37 24 i8 15
UNITYPOINT PEKIN PEKIN, IL Non AMI 8 7 11 14
MH SPRINGFIELD MEMORIAL SPRINGFIELD, IL HSA 03 20 11 18 14
OSF SMMC GALESBURG, IL Non AMI 5 6 10 13
MCDONCUGH DISTRICT HOSPITAL MACOMB, IL Non AMI 87 73 11 12
GREAT RIVER HEALTH SYSTEM WEST BURLINGTON, IA |Qut of State 16 19 11 10
ST MARGARETS PERU PERU, IL Non AMI 35 18 15 9
ASCENSION MERCY AURORA, IL A-12 12 14 17 9
TOUCHETTE REGIONAL HOSPITAL CENTREVILLE, IL HSA 11 12 13 8
NORTHWESTERN CENTRAL DUPAGE WINFIELD, IL A-05 10 7 8 7
THOREK ANDERSONVILLE CHICAGO, IL A-01 5 4 4 7
ST MARGARETS SPRING VALLEY SPRING VALLEY, IL Non AMI 11 4 12 6
ASCENSION ST JOSEPH CHICAGO CHICAGO, IL A-01 3 B 3 6
HUMBOLDT PARK HEALTH CHICAGO, IL A-02 3 6 2 6
LORETTO HOSPITAL CHICAGO, IL A-02 4 13 6 5
GRAHAM HOSPITAL CANTON, IL Non AMI 6 10 3 5
ASCENSION STS MARY AND ELIZABETH CHICAGO, IL A-02 4 6 5 5
UCHICAGO MEDICINE INGALLS HARVEY, IL A-04 5 2 2 5
ADVOCATE LUTHERAN GENERAL PARK RIDGE, IL A-07 3 4 1 5
OSF SAMC ROCKFORD, IL Non AMI 1 1 2 5
ADVENTHEALTH GLENOAKS GLENDALE HEIGHTS, . |A-05 37 26 6 4
LOYOLA MACNEAL BERWYN, IL A-06 9 12 8 4
ADVOCATE GOOD SAMARITAN DOWNERS GROVE, IL  }|A-0S 4 8 3 4
SAINT ANTHONY HOSPITAL CHICAGO CHICAGO, IL A-02 1 3 6 4
OSF SIMC BLOOMINGTON, IL Non AMI 2 3 1 4
RUSH UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER CHICAGO, IL A-02 4 1 3 4
CARLE FOUNDATION URBANA, IL HSA 04 2 4 4
UWHEALTH SWEDISHAMERICAN ROCKFORD, IL HSA 01 1 4
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GENESIS MEDICAL CENTER DAVENPORT, IA Out of State 11 3 4 3
THE LUNIVERSITY OF IOWA HOSPITALS AND CLINICS |IOWA CITY, IA Out of State 3 2 8 3
ADVENTHEALTH HINSDALE HINSDALE, IL A-05 3 2 5 3
ASCENSION ST MARY KANKAKEE, IL A-14 1 2 4 3
ASCENSION ST JOSEPH ELGIN ELGIN, IL A-11 1 1 3
UI HEALTH CHICAGO, IL MNon AMI 3 4 5 2
ST BERNARD HOSPITAL AND HEALTH CARE CENTER |CHICAGO, IL A-03 5 3 2
OSF SPMC MENDOTA, IL Non AMI 2 2 2 2
BARNES-JEWISH HOSPITAL ST. LOUIS Out of State 1 4 2
ST CATHERINE HOSPITAL EAST CHICAGO, IN Out of State 2 1 2
MOUNT SINAI HOSPITAL CHICAGOQ, IL A-02 3 2
NORTHWESTERN VALLEY WEST SANDWICH, IL Non AMI 1 1 2
MERCY HOSPITAL SOUTH ST. LOUHS Qut of State 2 1 2
EDWARD HOSPITAL NAPERVILLE, IL Non AMI 1 1 2
NORTHWESTERN WOODSTOCK WOODSTOCK, IL A-10 1 1 2
BROADLAWNS MEDICAL CENTER DES MOINES, 1A Out of State 1 1 2
MERCY HOSPITAL JOPLIN JOPLIN Qut of State 2
FREEMAN WEST JOPLIN Out of State 2
QSF SCMC PRINCETON, IL Non AMI 12 8 5 1
THOREK MEMORIAL CHICAGO, IL A-01 8 7 7 1
SILVER CROSS HOSPITAL NEW LENOX, IL A-13 10 6 2 1
NORTHWESTERN MEMORIAL CHICAGO, IL A-01 4 4 1
SWEDISH HOSPITAL CHICAGO, IL A-01 1 2 2 1
JACKSON PARK HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER CHICAGO, IL A-03 1 4 1 1
NORTHWESTERN PALOS PALOS HEIGHTS, IL A-04 1 2 i 1
NORTHWEST COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IJA-07 2 3 1
MORRIS HOSPITAL AND HEALTHCARE CENTERS MORRIS, IL Non AMI 2 2 i 1
HSHS GOOD SHEPHERD SHELBYVILLE, IL Non AMI 2 1 1
UNITYPOINT BEALTH A€” ST, LUKEAE™S HOSPITAL |CEDAR RAPIDS, 1A Qut of State 2 1 1
MERCY HOSPITAL ST LOUIS ST. LOUIS Qut of State 1 1 1
LOYOLA UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER MAYWOQOD, IL Non AMI 1 1 1
NORTHSHORE EVANSTON EVANSTON, IL A-08 1 1
MERCYONE CLINTON MEDICAL CENTER CLINTON, IA Qut of State 1 1 1
SARAH BUSH LINCOLN HEALTH CENTER MATTQON, IL HSA 04 1 1
ADVOCATE TRINITY CHICAGO, IL Non AMI 1
FRANCISCAN MICHIGAN CITY MICHIGAN CITY, IN Out of State 1
COX NORTH HOSPITAL SPRINGFIELD Qut of State 1
QOSF SIIWAMC PONTIAC, iL Non AMI 1
ASCENSION BORGESS HOSPITAL KALAMAZOQ, MI QOut of State 1
OSF HFMC MONMOUTH, L Non AMI 1
MERCYONE DUBUQUE MEDICAL CENTER DUBUQUE, 1A Out of State 1
UPHS - MARQUETTE MARQUETTE, MI QOut of State 1
TRINITY HEALTH ST. MARY MERCY LIVONIA SAGINAW, MI Out of State 1
QUORUM VISTA EAST WAUKEGAN, IL A-09 1
UNITYPOINT HEALTH - ALLEN HOSPITAL WATERLOO, 1A Out of State 1
JOHN H STROGER JR HOSPITAL OF COOK COUNTY |CHICAGO, IL Non AMI 1
CGH MEDICAL CENTER STERLING, IL HSA 01 1
MH JACKSONVILLE MEMORIAL JACKSONVILLE, IL Non AMI 21 [
CHICAGO LAKESHORE CHICAGO, IL A-01 8 13
HSHS ST JOHNS SPRINGFIELD, IL HSA 03 15
SOUTH SHORE HOSPITAL CHICAGO, 1L A-03 4 4
MERCY IOWA CITY IOWA CITY, IA Out of State 3 3 2
MH DECATUR MEMORIAL DECATUR, IL HSA 04 4 3 1
MERCYHEALTH JAVON BEA ROCKTON ROCKFORD, IL HSA 01 3 1 4
HSHS ST MARYS DECATUR DECATUR, IL HSA 04 2 1 2
UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI HOSPITAL COLUMBIA Cut of State 2 3 2
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ASCENSION ST ALEXIUS HOFFMAN ESTATES, IL |A-07 5

ADVOCATE CHRIST OAK LAWN, tL A-04 1 4 1

TERRE HAUTE REGIONAL HOSPITAL TERRE HAUTE, IN Cut of State 2 2 1

SSM HEALTH DEPAUL HOSPITAL BRIDGETON Out of State 2 3

ADVOCATE ILLINOIS MASONIC CHICAGO, IL A-01 3 2

ASCENSION HOLY FAMILY DES PLAINES, IL Non AMI 2 1 2

PIPELINE WEISS CHICAGO, It A-01 2 3

RESEARCH MEDICAL CENTER KANSAS CITY Out of State 2 1

INSIGHT HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER CHICAGQO, IL A-03 i 2 1

OTTUMWA REGIONAL HEALTH CENTER OTTUMWA, |A Qut of State 1 2 1

SIH HARRISBURG HARRISBURG, IL Non AMI 1 1

QUORUM METROSOUTH BLUE ISLAND, IL Non AMI 3

SS5M HEALTH SAINT LOUIS UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL  |ST. LOUIS Out of State 3

HOPEDALE MEDICAL COMPLEX HOPEDALE, IL Non AMi 2 1

SPENCER HOSPITAL SPENCER, A QOut of State 1 1

OSF SHMC DANVILLE, IL Non AMi P

CARLE EUREKA EUREKA, IL Non AMI 1 1

MERCY MEDICAL CENTER CEDAR RAPIDS, tA Out of State 1 1

SSM HEALTH SAINT JOSEPH HOSPITAL ST. CHARLES Out of State 1 1

MEMORIAL SOUTH BEND SOUTH BEND, IN Out of State 2

METRO HEALTH HOSPITAL WYOMING, MI Out of State 2

SSM ST MARYS CENTRALIA CENTRALIA, IL HSA 05 1 1

ALTON MEMORIAL HOSPITAL ALTON, IL Non AMI 2

SAINT LUKE'S NORTH HOSPITAL SMITHVILLE Out of State

UNITYPOINT HEALTH - ST. LUKE'S SIOUX CITY, 1A Out of State 1 1

BLOOMINGTON MEADOWS HOSPITAL BLOOMINGTON, IN Qut of State 1 1

CENTERPOINTE HOSPITAL ST. CHARLES Out of State 1 1

ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL CHICAGQ, IL A-03

UNITYPOINT TRINITY MOLINE MOLINE, IL HSA 10 1

ADVOCATE SHERMAN ELGIN, IL A-11

NORTHWESTERN KISHWAUKEE DEKALB, IL Non AMI 1

COLUMBUS REGIONAL HOSPITAL COLUMBUS, IN Out of State 1

ADVENTHEALTH BOLINGBROOK BOLINGBROOK, IL A-13 1

NEVADA REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER NEVADA Out of State 1

TWO RIVERS PSYCHIATRIC HOSPITAL KANSAS CITY Out of State 1

PHELPS HEALTH HOSPITAL ROLLA Qut of State 1

PIPELINE WESTLAKE MELROSE PARK, IL Non AMI 1

SSM HEALTH SAINT MARY'S HOSPITAL JEFFERSON CITY Out of State 1

MERCY HOSPITAL SPRINGFIELD SPRINGFIELD Qut of State 1

MISHAWAKA MEDICAL CENTER MISHAWAKA, 1IN Out of State

ELMHURST HOSPITAL ELMHURST, IL Non AMI

GENESIS SILVIS SILVIS, IL Non AMI 1

MERCYHEALTH JAVON BEA RIVERSIDE ROCKFORD, IL Non AMI 1

MARY GREELEY MEDICAL CENTER AMES, 1A Out of State 1

NORTHWEST PORTER VALPARAISO, IN Qut of State 1

OSF SLMC KEWANEE, IL Non AMI 1

ST VINCENT EVANSVILLE EVANSVILLE, IN Out of State 1

MOSAIC LIFE CARE AT ST. JOSEPH MEDICAL CENTER|ST. JOSEPH Out of State 1

ST. ANTHONY REGIONAL HOSPITAL CARROLL, |A Out of State 1

SIH MEMORIAL CARBONDALE CARBONDALE, IL Non AMI 1

VALLE VISTA HEALTH SYSTEM GREENWOOD, IN Out of State 1

RUSH OAK PARK OAK PARK, IL Non AMI 1

Grand Total 5,241 5,253 5,182 4,935
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4. Ten hospital AMI units closed during the past ten years in downstate lllinois. These closures created
bed deficit issues for some of the areas of the State. An additional three hospitals in metropolitan
Chicago closed during the past decade.

As shown in the following table, the thirteen closed AMI units totaled 252 AMI beds. Other hospitals in
the State added beds during the decade, resulting in a net increase in beds in Illinois. However, the
distribution of beds disadvantaged certain downstate areas. 189 of the closed beds were in downstate
hospitals. An effect of these closures is that patients, families and hospital staff had an even more
difficult time finding available beds for patients with behavioral health needs. This condition is a further
dimension of the issue of access for mental health inpatient care.

Closures of AMI units in lllinois, 2013-2020
Source: HFSRB Monthly Reports

Facility # AMI Beds Date HSA / Area
approved
or reported
HSHS St. Elizabeth - Belleview 35 9/24/2013 11
McDonough District Hospital 20 9/17/2019
HSHS St. John's - Springfield 32 9/17/2019
AMITA Alexian Brothers Medical Center 25 10/22/2019
Metro South Medical Center 14 10/22/2019 A-04
Passavant Area Hospital 10 5/4/2020 3
Alton Memorial Hospital 20 8/31/2020 11
OSF Little Company of Mary Medical Ctr 24 9/12/2020 A-04
Javon Bea Hospital - Rockton Campus 20 9/22/2020 1
Holy Family Hospital - Greenville 10 3/22/2021 5
Galesburg Cottage Hospital 16 4/26/2022 2
Illini Community Hospital 10 7/25/2022 3
Richland Memorial Hospital - Clney 16 | NA 5
Total 252

In addition to the above closures, it has recently been announced that HSHS $t. Mary's Hospital in
Decatur is planning to close several clinical services, including their 56 bed AMI unit. Decatur is located
in HSA 4, adjacent to HSA 2. At the time of filing of the Meadowview Behavioral Hospital permit
application, HSHS has not yet filed its Certificate of Exemption for discontinuation of these services. The
potential closure of that unit has implications for additiona! utilization of the planned beds at
Meadowview Behavioral Hospital.
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The following table presents information on the two hospitals with AMI units located within a 17 mile
radius of the proposed project.

Hospital AMI units within 17 miles of proposed site

Name of Hospital Distance from AMI beds Patient days Occupancy
Proposed Project

UnityPoint Health - Methodist Hosp 10.3 miles
- Current operation; year 2020 68 15,854 63.7
- Project #22-017; year 2025 103 33,136 88.1
UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital 6.6 miles 18 3,528 53.6

Source: HFSRB Hospital Profiles

While the two hospitals did not meet the State occupancy standards in 2020, there are several relevant
comments. The Health Facilities and Services Review Board recently approved the expansion of AMI
services at UnityPoint Health - Methodist Hospital, including the establishment of the Young Minds
Institute serving children and adolescents. The permit application anticipates 33,136 patient days for
combined adult and child/adolescent in 2025, two years after opening. This volume is an 88.1%
occupancy of the total 103 AMI beds, exceeding the State standard of 85% utilization.

The relevant Annual Hospital Questionnaires reported a peak census of 67 patients in 2020 at UnityPoint
Health - Methodist Hospital and a peak census of 14 patients at UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital, full
utilization of the 14 beds reported as staffed. These levels are indicative of very high utilization, and
consistent with the constant referrals of residents of HSA 2 to AMI units at hospitals outside of HSA 2 for
admission.

It is also relevant that 2020 census across hospitals was affected by COVID-19. 3,528 AM| patient days
at UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital in 2020 was more than an 11% reduction from 3,976 AMI patient
days in 2019. It is worth noting that if the pre-COVID 2019 volume were accepted as more typical, and if
that level of utilization were added to the 33,136 projected volume at UnityPoint Health - Methodist
Hospital, the two hospitals in the 17-mile radius would exhibit a combined 84% utilization of the 121
total AMI beds {103 at UnityPoint Health - Methodist Hospital and 18 beds at UnityPoint Health - Proctor
Haspital).

Consequently, it can be documented that the two hospitals have a combined expected utilization at a
level very close to the State standard of 85%.
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1110.210(c} Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution

Maldistribution for a service exists when a ratio of beds to population exceeds 1.5 times the Statewide
average for that service. This test shows that the project does not result in a maldistribution of Acute
Mental lliness beds within HSA 2.

For the State of lllinois, the Statewide ratic is 0.318 beds per 1,000 population.
4,181 AMI beds divided by 13,129,233 persons = 0.318 beds per 1,000 population
Note: 4,181 beds is the total of 5,152 AMI beds (year 2,000) plus a net additional 29
AMI beds due to changes reported in the 9/15/2022 monthly profile update.

For the Planning Area for the Project, HSA 2, the Statewide ratio is 0.227 beds per 1,000 population.
147 beds divided by 647,000 persons = 0.227 beds per 1,000 population
The project adds 100 AMI beds, for an HSA 2 total of 247 beds.
247 beds divided by 627,900 persons (year 2025) = 0.393 AMI beds per 1,000 population,
1.5 times the Statewide average is 0.477.
As a result, there is no maldistribution in HSA 2 because of the project, since 0.393 is less than 0.477.

The Planning Area for the project is HSA 2, covering a large part of central lllinois. The site is a
convenient location at the northern City of Peoria city limits, adjacent to State Highway 91. It is
accessible to the entire population of HSA 2, and is able to serve the needs of the majority of patients
leaving the HSA 2 for care.

Impact on other area providers

The project will have no negative impact on the other behavioral health providers in the area. It will
benefit hospitals by providing a resource to relieve pressures on hospital emergency rooms and keep
patients in central lllinois so that care can be better coordinated and families will not have to go through
the hardship of travel to distant locations for inpatient AM] care:

-- There are two providers of AMI services within the 17-mile radius of the project, UnityPoint Health -
Methodist Hospital and UnityPoint Health — Proctor Hospital. As stated in the last section, these two
providers of AMI services are expected to be at a combined 84% level of utilization in 2025, based on
information contained in the recently approved permit application 22-017.

-- The proposed project will not reduce the utilization of these two hospitals in HSA 2. That can be said
because most of the forecasted volume of patients is being diverted from other hospitals outside HSA 2
where residents of the HSA have been traveling to receive AMI care, and serving patients with
behavioral health needs who are not admitted because they leave the emergency room against medical
advice (some without being seen due to long wait times), or who are inpatients or observation patients
who |leave against medical advice.
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Zip Codes in whole or in part within 17 miles of
Us HealthVest - OSF BH Hopsital

Area Zip Codes
61451
61479
61483
61489
61491
61516
61517
61523
61525
61526
61528
61529
61530
61531
61533
61534
61535
61536
61539
61545
61546
61547
61548
61550
61552
61554
61559
61561
61564
61565
61568
61569
61570
61571
61572
61602
61603
61604
61605
61606
61607
61610
61611
61614
61615
61616
61721
61729
61733
61734
61738
61742
61747
61755
61759
61760
61771

Patient City
LAURA

SPEER
TOULON
WILLIAMSFIELD
WYOMING
BENSON
BRIMFIELD
CHILLICOTHE
DUNLAP
EDELSTEIN
EDWARDS
ELMWOOD
EUREKA
FARMINGTON
GLASFORD
GREEN VALLEY
GROVELAND
HANNA CITY
KINGSTON MINES
LOWPOINT
MANITO
MAPLETON
METAMORA
MORTON
MOSSVILLE
PEKIN
PRINCEVILLE
ROANOKE
SQUTH PEKIN
SPARLAND
TREMONT
TRIVOL|
WASHBURN
WASHINGTON
YATES CITY
PEORIA
PEORIA
PEORIA
PEORIA
PEORIA
PEORIA
CREVE COEUR
EAST PEGRIA
PEORIA
PEQRIA
PEQRIA HEIGHTS
ARMINGTON
CONGERVILLE
DEER CREEK
DELAVAN

EL PASO
GOODFIELD
HOPEDALE
MACKINAW
MINIER
MINONK
SECOR

Total Population, Patients

Population
374
376

1,855
806
1,700
730
3,235
10,941
£,894
964
2,523
2,781
6,377
3,137
2,281
1,615
1,752
2,943
146
696
3,975
3,549
12,053
17,598
150
42,113
3,055
2,856
1,127
1,397
4,458
1,124
1,858
23,380
1,110
773
16,597
30,055
15,572
7,842
10,420
5,165
24,174
26,423
23,033
5,379
608
1,204
1,357
2,737
3,850
1,514
1,487
4,764
1472
2,423
905

301,763
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-- OSF hospitals’ data show that for the past three years, OSF hospitals requested referrals of 495 adult
patients in 2020, 438 in 2021 and 468 in 2022 to UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital and UnityPoint
Health - Proctor Hospital. The referral requests resulted in a minimal number of adult inpatient
admissions: 7, 2 and 2 for the three years, respectively, at UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital, and
11, 8 and 1 geriatric admissions, respectively, at UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital. Accordingly, the
impact on the two existing AMI units within the 17-mile area is going to be minimal.

As set forth in this permit application, there is an access problem in HSA 2, as evidenced by the fact that
of the 4,935 adult residents hospitalized for inpatient behavioral health care in 2021, 2203 (45%) were
either hospitalized at AMI units outside of the HSA (1,898} or in medical/surgical units at hospitals
without AMI beds {305). Of the 1,898 patients who left the area, 1,253 (66%) went to an AMI facility in
the Chicago area {A-01 to 14). In other words, two thirds of the people who could not get care locally
because of lack of an AMI bed traveled to different parts of Chicago to be hospitalized. This situation
reflects a difficult access to care condition, and an extreme hardship for patients and their families. In
part this access problem caused residents of Peoria County, Tazewell County and Woodford County to
rate mental health as the number one health problem in this year’'s community health assessment.

According to COMPdata, in the past four years, residents of HSA 2, including 4,935 patients in 2021,
received care for their behavioral health needs in over 150 facilities:

73 hospital AMI units throughout Illinois

38 hospital AMI units outside of lilinois

48 non-AMI units in lllinois (ie medical units)
This data is evidence of a lack of available capacity and services in the area. Finding places to hospitalize
people in need is a challenge and time-consuming activity for social workers and staff at agencies and
admitting and discharge staff at hospitals responsible for coordinating access to needed service. More
importantly, it is an extreme hardship for patients and their families when care is available only at
significant distances from home. This condition reflects that more than 11 beds per 100,000 persons are
needed to accommodate the behavioral health needs of residents of the area.

This information is relevant to the analysis of impact on area hospitals. Much of the care is delivered far
outside HSA 2, and distributed among a significant number of hospitals. As the result, the impact on any
hospital will not be significant. As pointed out elsewhere, almost 1,100 patients in 2021 from areas
south of the Chicago metropolitan area received care at the three US HealthVest hospitals in Chicago
suburbs. Redirecting these patients to a new US HealthVest hospital in Peoria is part of a plan to
regionalize care within the US HealthVest system, to the significant benefit of patients and their families
who have had to travel great distances for care. Such travel poses an undue hardship on families and
other supporters to visit and support their loved one. In addition, it complicates follow-up support
services and adds to confusion and a disjointed approach to care. Having continuity of care for patients
with the same physicians and support staff are all important to bringing patients to stable status.

The project will reduce the burden on emergency departments in HSA 2, and as a result will have a
positive impact at most hospitals in the region. These emergency departments now hold patients with
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behavioral needs waiting to be transferred to an AMI hospital or unit. The articles supporting the
Purpose of the Project section has extensive information on the impact of this issue on hospital
emergency departments. Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will be a resource available to all hospitals in
central lllinois.

US HealthVest has established three AMI hospitals in lllinois, starting with Chicago Behavioral Health
{“CBH"}, which was acquired in late 2014. Its experience provides the opportunity to “look-back” at how
the establishment of CBH affected the utilization of hospitals in its State planning areas. The growth of
US HealthVest's Chicago Behavioral Hospital was not at the expense of the other five hospitals with AMI
services in Planning Area A-07.

AMI Admissions at hospitals in Planning Area A-Q7

Source: Inventory of Health Care Facilities and Services and Need Determinations

2015 2017 2019
Total AMI admissions, A-07 hospitals 13,557 17,365 18,491
AMI Admissions at Chicago Behavioral Hospital 1,700 4,419 5,473
AMI Admissions at A-07 hospitals other than CBH 11,857 12,946 13,018

Chicago Behavioral Hospital admitted 1,700 AMI patients in its first year of operations, 2015. By 2019, its
admissions had increased by 3,773 to 5,473 patients. For the same period of time, total admissions of
the six hospitals with AMI programs (CBH and the five prior existing hospitals) grew by 4,934 AMI
patients. Collectively, as shown in the abhove table, the five prior existing AMI hospitals grew by 1,161
AMI patients from 2015 through 2019, during CBH's first five years of service. Total AMI volumes at the
existing hospitals increased, and were not reduced as a result of the establishment of Chicago

Behavioral Hospital. In fact, one of the other five hospitals in A-07, Northwest Community Hospital in
the adjacent suburb of Arlington Heights, experienced healthy growth during this period of time. Its
volume of AMI patients increased from 1,294 patients in 2015 to 1,978 in 2019, Itis located less than 7
miles driving distance from Chicago Behavioral Hospital.

This data is offered as documentation that the introduction of new AMI beds, even in an area that has
had a calculated bed excess, does not imply that there will be detrimental impact on existing AMI
facilities. The experience supports the contention that the historic metric for evaluating AMI bed need
at 0.11 beds per 1,000 population may not incorporate the current and recent years’ social, economic
and health-related stressors that drive up the need for behavioral health care including inpatient
hospitalization. The ratio of 40-50 beds per 100,000 persons (0.40 — 0.50 beds per 1,000) has been
advocated by experts as a more appropriate ratio for estimating need.

1110.210(d) AMI and/or CM| Modernization
(This project is new construction and does not have a modernization component.)
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1110.210(e} Staffing

Staffing will follow the models in place at Chicago Behaviorai Hospital in Des Plaines, Lake Behavioral
Hospital and Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital. The applicants are well experienced with all State of lllinois
hospital licensing requirements and Joint Commission accreditation requirements, as well as
Medicare/Medicaid conditions of participation. The proposed hospital will meet these requirements, as
well as implement best clinical and administrative practices from both OSF and US HealthVest.

US HealthVest staffs its hospitals in order to deliver safe and high quality care to our patients. Through
the development of new hospitals and in partnering with health systems, US HealthVest has experience
working with a variety of structures to achieve optimal staffing. It has been successful in recruiting
quality clinical staff in today’s challenging labor market and has never had to turn away patients due to
lack of staffing. There is a strong established culture throughout the organization, steeped in the US
HealthVest mission of providing care to all patients, regardless of ability to pay — “we never limit
access.”

USHV uses an integrated team approach to the provision of care. The multidisciplinary teams consists of
physicians, nurse practitioners, nurses, social workers and therapists and mental health technicians — all
with specialized behavioral health training provided by the hospital. The medical staff is led by the
hospital medical director who maintains the integrity of the programs. USHV has a corporate HR team
that provides oversight to specialized HR professionals at each hospital. USHV utilizes a variety of
recruiting strategies that are continuously reviewed and enhanced. Strategies include recruiters,
internet-based programs and direct-target campaigns conducted internally and externally. For
physicians and NPs, a centralized recruiting effort for the entire system allows for a national recruiting
strategy with localized focus. USHV also structures creative compensation packages for key clinical
positions and offers comprehensive health benefits with a matching 401k, relocation packages and
continuing education opportunities. There is paid tuition for higher education for select employees to
support career advancement (several senior managers at USHV hospitals have started at entry-level
positions). Importantly, each hospital has multiple affiliations with universities and educational
institutions that allow the provision of patient care (under supervision) while training candidates,
enabling USHV to maintain a strong pipeline of candidates.

A board-certified psychiatrist will be installed as Medical Director.

The proposed hospital will utilize the same recruitment processes and human resources procedures in
place at the existing US HealthVest hospitals. For recruiting staff, US HealthVest uses web-based
programs and traditional sites and methods such as nurse.com, monster.com, careerbuilder.com,
National Healthcare Career Network, Sun-Times Network, Chicago Tribune, and job fairs.

Where there are opportunities and interest on the part of its employees, US HealthVest will enable the
transfer of employees from the other US HealthVest facilities in lllinois. USHV expects that the success
experienced in staffing those facilities will be the experience for start-up and continuing operations in
Peoria. Even though staffing has been a challenge throughout healthcare and other industries, the staff
vacancy rates for the lllinois US HealthVest hospitals have been low.

Attachment 21
lod



#23-008
HealthVest

December 6, 2022

Mr. John Kniery

Administrator

Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street - 2™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Assurance, 1110.210(g)
Meadowview Behavioral Hospital

Dear Mr. Kniery

Consistent with the requirement in 1110.210{g), | hereby attest that it is my understanding that by the
second year of operation after the establishment of the Acute Mental lliness (AMI) service the AMI
service will achieve and maintain the 85% occupancy standard set forth in 77 1ll. Adm. Code 1100.

If you have any questions, please contact me at 212-243-5565, or at msze@ushealthvest.com.

Sincerely,

//fé//

Martina Sze
Chief Development Officer
US HealthVest

NOTARY %S'm@mﬁb&b be Ssve ,
A o CQA“})&V/MZJ :

Alexia P Liatsos
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF NEW YORK
Registration No. 01L16435282
Quatified in Nev_r York County
Commission Expires 06/21/2026 Attachment 21

32 East 57th Street
17th Floor
New York, New York 10022
T212.243.5565 - F 212.243,1099 I
www.ushealthvest.com
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OSE

HEALTHCARE SYSTEM

November 30, 2022

Mr. John Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Assurance, 1110.210(g)
Peoria Behavioral Hospital

Dear Mr. Kniery:
Consistent with the requirement in 1110.210(g), | hereby attest that it is my understanding that by the
second year of operation after the establishment of the Acute Mental Hiness (AMI) service the AMI

service will achieve and maintain the 85% occupancy standard set forth in 77 ili. Adm. Code 1100.

If you have any questions, please contact Mark Hohulin, Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics, at
309-308-9656 or at mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org.

Sincerely,

Robert Anderson, Chief Executive Officer, Central Region
OSF Healthcare System

124 S.W. Adams Street

Peoria, IL 61602

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me

thuszﬁ / day ofm 2022

Signature of Notaly

Seal

TONDA L. STEWART

OFFICIAL SEAL

Notary Public - State of [llinois

My Commission Explres Sep 18, 2024 ¢
s W i

AN R AT AT
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October /3 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am a physician specializing in Psychiatry. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental
lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

in my practice | often refer my adult patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will refer ‘f o patients to the proposed
hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service,

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:
D M Subscribed and sworn to before me
Denise Johnson-BDechow, MD
3375 N. Seminary St., Galesburg, IL 61401 this l6 day of QCJ( 2022
(309) 344-9444
ki Pt
Signature of | Notary
Seal

KAR! STEVENS

* 1CIAL SEAL

; Notarc\)j Eﬁbllc, State of tilinols

) My commigsion Expires
June 30, 2026
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Provider Name PatientZip  Patient Community FY22 Patients
JOHNSON-DECHOW, DENISE M 61401 GALESBURG 283
61462 MONMOUTH 66
61410 ABINGDON 27
61448 KNOXVILLE 27
61443 KEWANEE 24
61473 ROSEVILLE 18
61415 AVON 16
61469 OQUAWKA 10
All Other 129
Total 600

5~
==
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October ' 7 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, Jefferson Street, 2* Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am a physician spedializing in Psychiatry. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental
lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

In my practice | often refer my adult patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will refer }C patients to the proposed
hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit appiication for any other hospital's
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:
[ Subscribed and swom to before me
Feiteng Su, MD +h
801 N. Walnut, Champaign, IL 61820 this |7 day of Oct0be 2009
{217} 693-4660 € .
Signature of Notary

Seal
EILEEN M JOHNSON

Official Seal
e of illinais

Notary Public - eat

My Commission Expires Jui 3, 2025
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Recruitment for the proposed behavioral health hospital will also take place at community-related job
fairs in the area and at job fairs at four-year and two-year colleges that OSF routinely uses, such as
Bradley University, Illinois State University, and OSF Colleges of Nursing.

1110.210(f) Performance Reguirements — Bed Capacity Minimums

The project requests the establishment of 100 AMI beds. This exceeds the State standard of 20 beds for
an AMI unit.

1110.210(g) Assurances

The letters on the following pages attest to the applicant’s understanding that the Acute Mental lliness
hospital will achieve and maintain utilization consistent with the 85% occupancy standard for the Acute
Mental lliness category of service.
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Provider Name PatientZip  Patient Community FY22 Patients
SU, FEITENG 61820 CHAMPAIGN 65
61821 CHAMPAIGN 59
61832 DANVILLE 58
61801 URBANA 55
61802 URBANA 41
61822 CHAMPAIGN 40
61866 RANTOUL 31
00000 - 22
61853 MAHOMET 19
- - 17
61701 BLOOMINGTON 16
61704 BLOOMINGTON 12
61761 NORMAL 11
61571 WASHINGTON 11
61604 PEORIA 10
61603 PECRIA 10
All Other 311
Total 788
Attachment 21 A
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October | 7, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illingis Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am a physician specializing in Psychiatry. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental
lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

In my practice | often refer my adult patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services, The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will refer 400 patients from St. Francis
Medical Center operations my team oversees and 88 patients from APN providers that collaborate with

me to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:
W %\ Subscribed and sworn to before me
Samue1§=.ars, MD 4

124 SW Adams St., Peoria, IL 61602 this_/ 7722 dayof &;ﬁ_é_bg 2022

{309) 308-6139

Signature/of Notary

Seal

S20Z 97 Jew saJidx3 uoISSILWOY Aw
SIeull o #es - Jjqng AuejoN

1995 @Yo
DVYHIS N33V

Attachment 21 A



Provider Name PatientZip  Patient Community FY22 Patients
SEARS, SAMUEL ANTHONY 61401 GALESBURG 170
60453 OAK LAWN 62
61462 MONMOUTH 61
60643 CHICAGO 61
60655 CHICAGO 58
61821 CHAMPAIGN 57
60805 EVERGREEN PARK 57
61801 URBANA 55
61604 PEORIA 47
61820 CHAMPAIGN 43
60652 CHICAGO 42
61802 URBANA 39
60629 CHICAGO 28
60628 CHICAGO 28
61443 KEWANEE 27
61603 PEORIA 27
61614 PEORIA 25
61605 PEORIA 25
60620 CHICAGO 25
61615 PEORIA 24
61611 EAST PEORIA 23
60459 BURBANK 22
60803 ALSIP 20
61822 CHAMPAIGN 20
61410 ABINGDON 17
61571 WASHINGTON 15
61554 PEKIN 15
61412 ALEXIS 15
61874 SAVOY 14
60415 CHICAGO RIDGE 14
61866 RANTOUL 14
61832 DANVILLE 12
61873 SAINT JOSEPH 12
61853 MAHOMET 11
61430 EAST GALESBURG 11
60619 CHICAGO 11
60406 BLUE ISLAND 11
61434 GALVA 11
60482 WORTH 10
All Other 539
Total 1,778

i Ta
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October 18, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

{llingis Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, I 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am a physician specializing in Psychiatry. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental
lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

In my practice | often refer my adult patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will refer 40-50 patients to the proposed
hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Notarization:
N 1W\A Subscribed and sworn to before me

Nimisha Patel, MD "
2850 W. 95™ St., Suite 204, Evergreen Park, IL 60805  this 19 day of M‘ L 2022

(708) 422-5090
K dsdo. 4Bt

Signature of Notary

Seal

OFFICIAL SEAL
KIMBERLEE A PULA

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 08/11/2026
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Provider Name PatientZip  Patient Community FY22 Patients
PATEL, NIMISHA 60620 CHICAGO 158
60643 CHICAGO 97
60655 CHICAGO 72
60805 EVERGREEN PARK 67
60652 CHICAGO 50
60628 CHICAGO 44
60453 OAK LAWN 37
60406 BLUE ISLAND 36
60629 CHICAGO 30
60803 ALSIP 21
60619 CHICAGO 17
60636 CHICAGO 11
60638 CHICAGO 10
All Other 214
Total 864
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October 26, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

IMinois Heailth Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am a psychologist specializing in Clinical Psychology. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed
Acute Mentallliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and QSF Healthcare System.

In my practice | often refer my adult patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will refer 30 patients to the proposed
hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

W 1&%{ ,@\(p Subscribed and sworn to before me

Ehristopher Funk, Psy.D
2200 Ft. Jesse Rd., Normal, IL 61761 this 26" day of October 2022

{309) 664-3130 .
Noulind Herd ke
S@ure of Notary

Seal N .

OFFICIAL SEAL

JULIE D, GOODLICK
NOTARY PUBLIC « STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 1-24-2023
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Provider Name PatientZip  Patient Community FY22 Patients
FUNK, CHRISTOPHER A 61701 BLOOMINGTON 127
61761 NORMAL 94
61704 BLOOMINGTON 81
61705 SLOOMINGTON 18
All Other 132
Yatal 452
Attachment 21 A
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October 26, 2022

John P, Kniery, Administrator

linois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

t am a psychologist specializing in Clinical Psychology. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed
Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

In my practice | often refer my adult patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will refer 50 patients to the proposed
hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital's
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerel Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me

Tim Shannon, Psy.D.
2200 Ft. Jesse Rd., Normal, IL 61761 this 26" day of October 2022

(309} 664-3130 W %

S| najure of Notary

Seal

OFFICIAL SEAL

JULIE D. GOODLICK
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF RLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 1-24-2023
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Provider Name PatientZip  Patient Community FY22 Patients
SHANNON, TIM " 61761 NORMAL 140
" 1701 BLOOMINGTON 120
" e1704 BLOOMINGTON 99
" 61705 BLOOMINGTON 23
" e1768 PONTIAC 15
T 61727 CLINTON 12
" 61754 MC LEAN 11
" 61745 HEYWORTH 10
All Other 120
Total 550
Attachment 21 A
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October 26, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am a physician specializing in Psychiatry. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental
lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

tn my practice | often refer my adult patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will refer 50-75 patients to the proposed
haspital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, e — . Notarization:
(.' & / - I‘-___---"'_-.
NE Subscribed and sworn to before me

Robert Hamilton, MD

2200 Ft. Jesse Rd., Normal, IL 61741 is AP day of Jctober 2022

(309) 664-3130 .
Nokie D Yk,

Signature of Notary

Seal

! OFFICIAL SEAL

JULIE D. GOODLICK
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 1-24-2023
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OSF Behavioral Health Patients by Provider and Patient Zipcode

FY22 Ambulatory Utilization

Billing Provider Name
HAMILTON, ROBERT SCOTT

Patient Zip Patient Community

61701
61761
61704
61705
61764
61727
61745
61752
61753
61739
61738
61732
61726
62656
61736
61748
61755
61723
61725
61776
60420
61760
61754
61728
61744
61554

FY22 Patients
BLOOMINGTON 587
NORMAL 552
BLOOMINGTON 425
BLOOMINGTON 149
PONTIAC 90
CLINTON 59
HEYWORTH 47
LE ROY 42
LEXINGTON 31
FAIRBURY 30
EL PASO 30
DANVERS 25
CHENOA 23
LINCOLN 21
DOWNS 19
HUDSON 17
MACKINAW 15
ATLANTA 15
CARLOCK 14
TOWANDA 13
DWIGHT 13
MINONK 12
MC LEAN 12
COLFAX 11
GRIDLEY 11
PEKIN 10
All Other 365
Total 2,638
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October&G__ 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am a physician specializing in Psychiatry, | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental
lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Heaithcare System.

In my practice | often refer my aduit patients for inpatient behavioral health care and services. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for my patients.

Based on the patients | currently provide care, | estimate that | will ref%tients to the proposed
hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Singérely, Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me

Abgatam Frenkel ™MD i
317 N-Willow Lake Ct., Peoria, IL 61614 this 25 day ov@lm 2022

(309) 683-7373

Signature of Notary

Seal
TONDA L. STEWART
OFFICIAL SEAL

Notary Public - State of lliinois
My Commission Expires Sep 18, 2024

Attachment 21 A
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Provider Name

FRENKEL, ABRAHAM RAMY

#23-008

Patient Zip Patient Community FY22 Patients
61614 PEORIA 308
61554 PEKIN 276
61615 PEORIA 247
61604 PEORIA 230
61611 EAST PEORIA 180
61571 WASHINGTON 162
61603 PEORIA 132
61550 MORTON 102
61607 PEORIA 100
61523 CHILLICOTHE 93
61525 DUNLAP 70
61616 PEORIA HEIGHTS 67
61548 METAMORA 63
61605 PEORIA 60
61520 CANTON 50
61610 CREVE COEUR 43
61401 GALESBURG 47
61606 PEORIA 32
61517 BRIMFIELD 24
61755 MACKINAW 22
61530 EUREKA 21
61528 EDWARDS 20
61602 PEORIA 18
61734 DELAVAN 18
61535 GROVELAND 18
61547 MAPLETON 17
61761 NORMAL 17
61568 TREMONT 16
61546 MANITO 16
61559 PRINCEVILLE 13
61491 WYOMING 13
61540 LACON 13
61569 TRIVOLI 11
61701 BLOOMINGTON 11
61536 HANNA CITY 10
61410 ABINGDON 10

All Qther 286
Total 2,841
Attachment 21 A
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#23-008

SAINT ANTHONY'S HEALTH CENTER B

October 19, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint Anthony's Health Center. | support the proposal
to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Pecria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and
OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Saint Anthony’s Health Center (OSF SAHC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of lllinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SAHC has referred 153, 109 and 121 patients for inpatient Acute Mental lliness
care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF SAHC will refer 154 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the
new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

% M_ Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me

Dennis Sands, MD, CMO

One Saint Anthony’s Way Alton, lllinois 62002 this _ 1 Q41 dayof { cAdvher 2022
618-465-2571

JUDY JORDAN
Official Seal
Notary Public - State of illinois
My Commission Expires Jul 25, 2026

| 84

I Saint Anthony's Way, Alton, Hlinois 62002 Phone (618) 465-2571 www.osfsaintanthonys.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
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AINT ANTHONY'S HEALTH CENTER - I

OSF Saint Anthony Health Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year

Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
T 62002 ALTON 86 51 51
T 62035 GODFREY 13 17 9
T 62024 EAST ALTON 11 9 9
" 62095  WOODRIVER 9 8 9
" 62018 COTTAGE HILLS 4 2 7
" 62087 SOUTH ROXANA 2 4 3
T 62010 BETHALTO 4 1 4
T 62012 BRIGHTON 1 3 3
" 62052 JERSEYVILLE 2 0 4

All Other i 21 14" 22

Total 153 109 121

| &S

1 Saint Anthony's Way, Alton, lllinois 62002 Phone (618) 465-2571 www.osfsaintanthonys.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
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October 20, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllingis Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:
| am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint Anthony Medical Center. | support the proposal
to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and

OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center (OSF SAMC}) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of Illinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SAMC has referred 150, 39 and 109 patients for inpatient Acute Mental lliness
care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF SAMC will refer 150 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the
new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental Hiness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:
M @—7-\' Subscribed and sworn to before me

Stephe'n Bartlett, M[S,—EMO

566 E. State Street Rockford, Illinois 61108 this ZO day of @C)%b"‘ 2022
815-226-2000

Signature thary

Seal

., NICOLE M KNOEPPLE
©.  OFFICIAL SEAL '

l-‘ {g;
u

B Notery Public, Stite of lilinois
My Commission Expires
October 21, 2074

P
i o

| 8

5666 East State Street, Rockford, Illinois 61108-2425 Phone (815) 226-2000 www.osfsaintanthony.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
Attachment 218



OSF Saint Anthony Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
" 61108 ROCKFORD 18 4 12
61107 ROCKFORD 11 9 13
61109 ROCKFORD 18 0 8
"~ 61103 ROCKFORD 8 0 13
" 61102 ROCKFORD R 3
61101 ROCKFORD 5 2 4
61068 ROCHELLE 6 3 2
" 61008 BELVIDERE 6 1 4
61115 MACHESNEY PARK 6 0 3
61114 _ ROCKFORD 5 0 4
61111 LOVES PARK 5 0o 4
_ 61104 ROCKFORD 2 1 6
61072 ROCKTON 6 0 1
00000 - 1 0 4
" 61061 OREGON 1 2 2
Allother 7~ 437 16" 26
Total 150 39 109
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5666 East State Street, Rockford, Hlinois 61108-2425 Phone (815) 226-2000 www.osfsaintanthony.org

The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
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=¥ OSF HEALTHCARE

October 12, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint Paul Medical Center. | support the proposal to
establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF

Healthcare System.

OSF Saint Paul Medical Center (OSF SPMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of Illinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SPMC has referred 26, 14 and 29 patients for inpatient Acute Mental Hiness care. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF SPMC will refer 25 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new
facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

/\ Subscribed and sworn to before me

Leonardo l@z, ™MD, CMO _y_,
1401 E. 12™-Street Mendota, lllinois 61342 this ]a ~ dayof Odb%“ 2022

815-535-7461

Signature of Notary

Seal
BRENDA L. GROBE
Offictal Seal

Notary Public - State of (llinais
My Commission Expires Apr 12, 2025

OSF HealthCare Saint Paul Medical Center | 1401 E. 12t Street, Mendota, IL 61342 | {815) 539-7461

| 88
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#& OSF HEALTHCARE

Gy

OSF Saint Paul Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital /Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
T 61342 MENDOTA 16 8 13
60518 EARLVILLE 1 1 6
All Other 9 5 10
Total 26 14 29

OSF HealthCare Saint Paul Medical Center | 1401 E. 12k Street, Mendota, IL 61342 | (815} 539-7461
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OSF HEALTHCARE =~

October 14, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Hlinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the Ministry Chief Medical Officer at OSF Healthcare System. | support the proposal to establish a
100-bed Acute Mental lliness {AMI) hospital in Peoria, lllinois as a joint venture of US HealthVest and
OSF Healthcare System.

OSF St. Mary Medical Center (OSF SMMC} routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of illinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

in the past three fiscal years, OSF SMMC has referred 86, 115 and 197 patients for inpatient Acute
Mental lliness care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF SMMC will refer 210 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the

new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

e ’.4-4’ >
Ralph Velazquez, M, Miini
124 SW Adams Street, P&bria, llinois 61602 this /"/J'b day of ( Q;—F»QC 2022

{309) 655-2850 )
(L0 HE

S}g ature of Notary

Subscribed and sworn to before me

Seal
S JULIE A HARBISON
S ™%  OFFICIAL SEAL
| SXRgicF Notary Public, State of Ilinols
\///,:s'-j My Commission Expires
Qe Mareh 08, 2026
124 SW Adams St., Peoria, lllinois 61602 | (309) 655-2850 |90
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OSF St Mary Medical Center

Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
T 61401 GALESBURG 54 69 132
61410 ABINGDON 6 8 13
" 61448 KNOXVILLE 1 6 4
61462 MONMOUTH 1 2 5
" 61488 WATAGA 3 2 2
61414 ALTONA 2 2 2
" 61430 EAST GALESBURG 1 4 0
61490 WOODHULL 1 2 0
61603 PEORIA 0 0 3
" 61434 GALVA 2 1 0
61447 KIRKWOOD 0 2 1
61602 PEORIA 0 0 2
61554 PEKIN 0 0 2
61455 MACOMB 0 2 0
61605 PEORIA 0 0 2
61415 AVON 1 1 0
61611 EAST PEORIA 1 0 1
61413 ALPHA 1 0 1
61422 BUSHNELL 0 2 0
61402 GALESBURG 0 0 2
All Other 12] 12" 25
Total 86 115 197
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# OSF HEALTHCARE

bd A2
N

October 12, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:
I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint Clare Meadical Center. | support the proposal to
establish a 100 bed Acute Menta! Iliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF

Healthcare System.

OSF Saint Clare Medical Center (OSF SCMC]) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of llinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SCMC has referred 34 patients for inpatient Acute Mental lliness care. The
attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF SCMC will refer 30 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new

facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

/MM Subscribed and sworn to before me

Barry Cgmson, MD, CMO

530 Park Avenue East Princeton, lllinois 61356 this l % day of{ }"\0, QTZOZZ

815-875-2811 .
ISR,
N

Signa\/ur of Notary

Seal
GLORIA L. HILL
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of lllinois
My Commission Expires Jan 26, 2023
|9
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OSF Saint Clare Medical Center e T b g e wh
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital /¢

Cases Fiscal Yea
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2022
" 61356 PRINCETON 15
61315 BUREAU 3
61379 WYANET 3

All Other F 13

Total 34
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& OSF HEALTHCARE

October 12, 2022

)

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:
I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint Luke Medical Center. | support the proposal to
establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF

Healthcare System.

OSF Saint Luke Medical Center {OSF SLMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of lllincis for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SLMC has referred 29, 28 and 43 patients for inpatient Acute Mental Iliness care.
The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrais and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF SLMC will refer 40 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new

facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

MM Subscribed and sworn to before me

Barry qumson, MD, CMO

1051 West South Street Kewanee, lllinois 61443 this | b day of( 2 LlQber 2022

309-852-7500 ‘ .
m QMM

Signhture of Notary

Seal
GLORIA L. HILL
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of lllinois
My Commission Expires Jan 26, 2023

| 94
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OSF Saint Luke Medical Center . E S
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
| 61443 KEWANEE 20 21 33
All Other 9 7 10
Total 29 28 43

| a3
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« OSF HEALTHCARE

October 17,2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

[1linois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare St. Joseph Medical Center. I support the
proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental Illness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US
HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

OSF St. Joseph Medical Center (OSF SIMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of Illinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and
services.

The past 3 years, OSF SIMC has referred 89, 118 and 128 patients for inpatient Acute Mental
[liness care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, I estimate
that OSF SIMC will refer approximately 60 patients annually from our Emergency Department and
Inpatient Units to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital’s Acute Mental Illness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Singgrely. Notarization:

& A %w Subscribed and sworn to before me this

A1tk Anderson, MD. CMO *h

2200 E. Washington Street this  \TY" day of O ckdoer, 2022
Bloomington, lllinois 61701

309-665-5753

ﬁl’\vmh (AT ¥aN

Signature of Notary

CHRISTINE L AUSTIN

A OFFICIAL SEAL

[l Notary Public, State of lllinois

My Commission Expires
September 28, 2025

Seal

\\i

| 96

OSF HealthCare St. Joseph Medical Center | 2200 W. Washington St., Bloomington, IL. 61701 | {309) 662-3311
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#8 OSF HEALTHCARE

OSF St. Jospeh Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
" s1701 BLOOMINGTON 27 35 48
T 51704 BLOOMINGTON 26 17 25
T 61761 NORMAL 11 17 18
" 61705 BLOOMINGTON 6 6 5
" 61738 EL PASO 1 2 5
" 61764 PONTIAC 1 4 1
T 61727 CLINTON 0 2 2
" 61744 GRIDLEY 3 1 0
" 61745 HEYWORTH 1 2 1
" 61776 TOWANDA 0 3 0
All Other § 13 29" 23
Total 89 118 128
197
OSF HealthCare St. Joseph Medical Center | 2200 W. Washington 5t., Bloomington, IL. 61701 | (309) 662-3311
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SAINT JAMES-JOHN W, ALBRECHT
MEDICAL CENTER

October 12, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint James-John W. Albrecht Medical Center. |
support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of
US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Saint James-John W. Albrecht Medical Center (OSF SIJWAMC) routinely refers/transfers adult
patients to Behavioral Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of lllinois for needed inpatient behavioral

health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SHWAMC has referred 39, 43 and 40 patients for inpatient Acute Mental lliness
care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF Saint James John W. Albrecht Medical Center will refer an average of forty patients to the proposed

hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental iliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.
Sincerely, Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me

/
John M. %{MD, CMO
|

2500 W. Reynadllds Street Pontiac, lllinois 61764 this t Zﬁm day of ()W 2022

815-842-2828
5

ignature of Notary

Seal ~ OFFICIAL SEAL
CHRISTINA STEPHENS
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES DEC. 11, 2023

198

2500 W, Reynolds Street, Pontiac, [Hlinois 61764 Phone {815) 842-2828
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
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OSF Saint James Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year

Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022

" 61764 PONTIAC 23 21 27
6176 |

61739 FAIRBURY 3 3 2

60921 CHATSWORTH 1 3 1

61319 CORNELL 0 3 1

61726 CHENOA 3 1 0

All Other 9" 12 9

o Total 39 43 40

{919
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%a OSF HEALTHCARE

)
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T

October 13, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

1llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the interim Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Sacred Heart Medical Center. I support
the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental Illness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US
HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Sacred Heart Medical Center (OSF SHMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to
Behavioral Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of Illinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care
and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SHMC has referred 287, 197 and 311 patients for inpatient Acute Mental
Illness care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, I estimate
that OSF SHMC will refer 200 to 250 patients annually to the proposed hospital in the second year
after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital’s Acute Mental Illness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sin(?l-r)/ Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me

Fred Swegdt, Jnterim CMO
812 N. Ldgan Avenue Danville, Illinois 61832  this /-23 day of Mb@( 2022
217-443-5000 Vﬂ
Slgnatureo
Seal

TR MARY E MONTGERARD
¥ OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of llfinois
My Commission Expires

June 25, 2024

A00
OSF HealthCare Sacred Heart Medical Center | 812 N. Logan, Danville, IL 61832 | (217} 443-5000
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OSF Sacred Heart Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital /Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
T 61832 DANVILLE 186 126 219
" 61883 WESTVILLE 15 15 10
" 61846 GEORGETOWN 16 7 8
" 61834 DANVILLE 14 6 10
" 61858 OAKWOQOD 7 3 5
" 61833 TILTON 5 1 5
" 61870 RIDGE FARM 2 1 7
" 61817 CATLIN 3 2 4
" 61820 CHAMPAIGN 6 1 0
" 60963 ROSSVILLE 3 2 1
" 60942 HOOPESTON 2 2 2
" 47932 COVINGTON 3 0 3
" 61814 BISMARCK 0 2 2
" 61841 FAIRMOUNT 1 1 1
" 61704 BLOOMINGTON 0 2 1
" 47933 CRAWFORDSVILLE 0 1 1
" 62650 JACKSONVILLE 0 1 1
" 61859 OGDEN 0 0 2
" 61801 URBANA 1 0 1
" 61605 PEORIA 2 0 0

All Other 4 21" 24" 28

Total 287 197 311

201
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October 12, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL. 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint Francis Medical Center. [ support the proposal
to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental IlIness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and
OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Saint Francis Medical Center (OSF SFMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of Illinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SFMC has referred 444, 376 and 417 patients for inpatient Acute Mental IlIness
care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, I estimate that
OSF SFMC will refer 460 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the

new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s
Acute Mental lllness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

m 1 %:’“‘r"@ Subscribed and sworn to before me
Robert T. Sparrow, MD, CMO

530 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue Peoria, Illinois 61637 this /. {  day of [ b.’fﬂﬁdd 2022

309-655-2000

Signature of Not.
REBECCA J HE1
Seal ) OFFICIAL SEE\LLEﬂ
,‘ N Notary Pubiie, State of lfljngjs
My Commission Expires
March 17, 2025
- il
J0d

OSF HealthCare Saint Francis Medical Center | 530 N.E. Glen Oak Avenue Peoria, IL 61637 | (309) 655-2000
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QOSF Saint Francis Medical Center 5 N
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital /Services

#23-008

Cases Fiscal Year

Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
T 61604 PEORIA 49 36 65
" 61603 PEORIA 51 37 M
" 61614 PEORIA 32 29 22
" 61605 PEORIA 29 25 27
" 61611 EAST PEORIA 24 32 24
" 61571 WASHINGTON 16 12 23
" 61554 PEKIN 21 11 15
" 61615 PEORIA 10 20 16
" 61602 PEORIA 18 11 16
" 61550 MORTON 9 6 13
T 61523 CHILLICOTHE 8 8 9
" 61606 PEORIA 9 7 9
" 61616 PEORIA HEIGHTS 6 8 10
" 61607 PEORIA 11 7 5
" 61610 CREVE COEUR 5 5 6
T 61548 METAMORA 2 10 3
" 61401 GALESBURG 8 4 3
All Other f 136 108 110

Total 444 376 417

403
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November 8, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. lefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:
I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Saint Elizabeth Medical Center. | support the proposal
to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and

OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Saint Elizabeth Medical Center (OSF SEMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of lllinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF SEMC has referred 201, 221, and 194 patients for inpatient Acute Mental lliness
care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF SEMC will refer 220 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the

new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’'s
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any guestions.

Sincerely, . Notarization:

3 )\ Subscribed and sworn to before me
Leonardo Lopez, MMO
1100 E. Norris Dr. wa, IL 61350 thi ;3\‘(«" day of ”Wtubéf 2022

815-539-7461 W

Signature oFNotaw

Seal
WENDI! T. NAVARRO
OFFICIAL SEAL

Notary Public, State of Ilinois
My Commission Expires
December 31, 2025

dod

1100 East Norris Drive, Ottawa, Ilinois 61350 Phone (815) 433-3100 www.osfsaintelizabeth.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis
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OSF Saint Elizabeth Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AM| Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip
Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
61364 STREATOR 66 70 58
61350 OTTAWA 52 65 60
61341 MARSEILLES 14 19 15
61301 LA SALLE 10 5 5
o SPRING
61362 VALLEY 4 4 3
61354 PERU 4 2 4
61342 MENDOTA 4 2 2
60551  SHERIDAN 2 4 1
All Other 45 50 46
Total 201 221 194
405
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OSF HEALTHCARE
&5 Little Company of Ma
) viary
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~ Medical Center
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October 17, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Little Company of Mary Medical Center. |
support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental Illness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture
of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Little Company of Mary Medical Center (OSF LCMMC) routinely refers/transfers adult
patients to Behavioral Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of Illinois for needed inpatient behavioral

health care and services.

The past 3 years, OSF LCMMC has referred 176, 508 and 523 patients for inpatient Acute Mental
Iliness care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, I estimate
that OSF LCMMC will refer approximately 10-20 patients to the proposed hospital in the second

year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital’s Acute Mental Illness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.
Sincerely, | Notarization:
& Subscribed and sworn to before me
this )7 day of peroBek., 2022

Fitodeiloe ABls

Signature of Notary

William Walsh, MD, CMO

Seal

OFFICIAL SEAL
KIMBERLEE A PULA

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
M7 COMMISSION EXPIRES 081172026

406
OSF HealthCare Little Company of Mary Medical Center | 2800 95th St., Evergreen Park, IL 60805 | ({708} 422-6200
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OSF LCMMC

OSF Little Company of Mary Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital /Services

#23-008

Cases Fiscal Year

'I’jtie nt Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
60620 CHICAGO 43 87 84

" 60805 EVERGREEN PARK 15 47 64
" 60643 CHICAGO 12 53 44
" 60406 BLUE ISLAND 11 39 42
" 60628 CHICAGO 11 26 26
" 60652 CHICAGO 9 16 32
" 60655 CHICAGO 5 19 23
" 60636 CHICAGO 9 16 15
" 60619 CHICAGO 7 15 7
" 60803 ALSIP 3 14 11
" 60453 OAK LAWN 2 6 16
" 60629 CHICAGO 2 8 13
T 60612 CHICAGO 1 9 11
" 60827 RIVERDALE 1 4 16
" 60621 CHICAGO 3 9 5
T 60617 CHICAGO 3 8 5
" 00000 - 6 8 2
" 60649 CHICAGO 1 7 7
" 60426 HARVEY 2 7 4
" 60609 CHICAGO 2 8 1
All Other f 280 102) 95

Total 176 508 523

A07
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e¥ OSF HEALTHCARE

November 8, 2022
John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the Chief Medical Officer at OSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center. I support the
proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental Illness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US
HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

OSF Heart of Mary Medical Center (OSF HMMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to
Behavioral Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of Illinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care
and services.

The past 3 years, OSF HMMC has referred 142, 131, and 111 patients for inpatient Acute Mental
Iliness care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, I estimate
that OSF HMMC will refer 110 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after
completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital’s Acute Mental Illness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

‘\N-\, e Subscribed and sworn to before me

Anil Gopinath, MD, CMO

Y
1400 W Park Street, Urbana, IL 61801 this O day of"\no 0‘%022
217-337-2000 b
b rervrp e
Signature of Notdry
Seal EILEEN M JOHNSON
Official Seal

Notary Public - State of [Hinois

My Commission Expites Jul 3, 2025

dao§

QSF HealthCare Heart of Mary Medical Center | 1400 West Park Street, Urbana, IL 61801 | (217)337-2270
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OSF Heart of Mary Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Fiscal Year

Patient Zip Code  Patient City 2020 2021 2022
61820 CHAMPAIGN 31 21 14
61821 CHAMPAIGN 19 21 10
61801  URBANA 11 10 14
61822 CHAMPAIGN 10 8 10
61802 URBANA 7 8 4
61832 DANVILLE 9 7 3
61866 RANTOUL 6 6 4
61874 SAVOY 1 5 6
MiOther 48 45 46

Total 142 131 111

d01
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e OSF HEALTHCARE

October 14, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:
I am the Ministry Chief Medical Officer at OSF Healthcare System. | support the proposal to establish a
100-bed Acute Mental lliness {AMI)} hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF

Hezlthcare System.

OSF Holy Family Medical Center {OSF HFMC) routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral
Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of lllinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

tn the past three years, OSF HFMC has referred 15, 19 and 22 patients for inpatient Acute Mental lliness
care. The attached table lists the zip codes of residence for these patients.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that
OSF HFMC will refer 25 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new
facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital's
Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me

R[alp Velfazquez,@l) Ministry CMO
124 SW Adams Street, Peoria, lllinois 61602 this / ‘/ day of 72022

(309) 655-2850

ignature of Notary

Sea
JULIE A HARBISON
3 OFFICIAL SEAL
F| Notary Public, State of lllinals
My Commiaslan Expires
March 08, 2026
210

124 SW Adams St., Peoria, lllincis 61602 | (309) 655-2850
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OSF Holy Family Medical Center
Adult referrals to Psychiatric/AMI Hospital/Services

Cases Fiscal Year
Patient Zip Code Patient City 2020 2021 2022
T 61462 MONMOUTH 6 12 9
All Other f 9 7 13
Total 15 19 22
Al

#23-008
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ATTACHMENT 21C

Referrals from area Providers, Social Service Agencies, FQHCs and others
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#23-008

@ HEALTH services

OUR MISSION

Provide affordable, high-
quality health services and
remove inequities to improve
the lives of all.

QOUR VISION
Healthy Lives.
Thriving Communities.
Mutual Trust.

OUR VALUES

Equity, integrity, collaboration,
accountability, innovation,
service excellence,
stewardship.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Todd Baker
Prasident

Gale Thetford
Vice President

Dave Stenerson
Treasurer

Laurie Covington
Secretary

Alneida Ford
Executive Committee Member

Linda Fox
Executive Committee Member

Sally Snyder

Executive Committee Member |

Jeanine Spain
Executive Committee Member

Blanca Aranda

Tiffany Chandler

Vicki Crum

Rob Grove

Dr. Rod Lorenz

Dr. Francis McBee-Orzulak
Victor Nogueda

Rev. Craig Williams

Sharcn Adams
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Gregg Stoner
Chief Medical Officer

www.hhsil.com
309.680.7600

December 2, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

[ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Gregg Stoner, MD and I am the Chief Medical Officer at Heartland Health Services
specializing in primary care for the underserved. 1 support the proposal to establish a 100 bed
Acute Mental Illness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare
System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients
being deferred or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to
these important services in our community and help provide relief from the following current
situations:
s  Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments
»  Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their
communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities
Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients” homes
Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Based on the patients Heartland Health Services currently provides care, our experience in
referring patients and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, I estimate that we
will refer approximately 415 (as referenced in the attached document) patients to the proposed
hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital’s Acute Mental Illness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me

Sincerely,

this day of 2022
% - . L 9 Slgnis %Lotary
" @fegg Stoner, MD; gfﬁ’o
2214 N University St.
Peoria, IL 61604
Seal
JENNIFER J LEE
Official Seal
Notary Public - State of lllinois
My Commission Expires Aug 2, 2026
ald Updated 0612872
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: HEARTLAND
® HEALTH serw
....'

Patients with Behavioral Health
ZIP Diagnosis (Last 18 Months)
61604 1156
61554 1109
61603 1049
61605 1028
61614 524
61611 401
61615 382
61571 248
61606 196
61602 179
61607 159
61616 _ . 148 |
61610 125
61550 125
61523 91
6920
(estimate requiring
6% |hospitalization) 415

diy
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~ BRIDGEWAY

Creating Solutions for Everyone

November 18, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

tilinols Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Knlery:

We are William Nelson, Chief Executive Officer and Stacy Brown, Vice President of Behavioral Health Services with
Bridgeway Inc, Bridgeway Inc. Is a community soclal services organization, operating in lilinols for over 50 years. As
providers of behavioral health services and mabile crisis response, we support the proposal to establish a 100 bed
Acute Mental lliness hospltal In Peorla as a Joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System,

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting In patients being deferred
or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this applicatlon will increase access to these Important services in our
communlty and help provide relief from the following current situatlons:
« Patlents waiting for psychlatric beds In hospital emergency departments
Patients In need of psychlatric services and unable to find treatment ciose to their communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilitles
Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes
Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

a & & &

Based on the patlents we currently provide care, our experience in referring patients and the growing demand for
inpatlent behavioral health care, we estimate we wili refer approximately 85 patients to the proposed hospital In
the second year after completion of the new facllity. These referrat counts have not been used to support another
permit applicatlon for any other hospital’s Acute Mental lliness service,

Please contact us if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

//f/é%-"f{ 0 /(LZ’_) Subscribed and sworn to before me

Signature

Lo dpe fo. MeS S0 i
Print Name “= (’::é‘f'é_if»’{ . M

. Signature of Notary
2323 w;ndt'sh bl"\'t, Ga(}-&buf 1L
0["’ P P e P P P P Py s P, PP P Py
Bridgaway Inc, Addr Seal ey [
d‘zf : s VICKI S BROOKS ,
7 NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF ILLINOIS
Signature My Commisslon Explres 02.02-2023
1D # 668348 \
oy L Brown S

Print Name

L} www.bway.org [T www.bwaybusiness.com
L 2323 Windish Drive, Galesburg, IL 61401 - 309-344-2323 + FAX 309-344-2200 0 800 5. Deer Road, Macomb, IL, 61455 - 305-837-4876 - 1-B00-475:4226 * FAX 309-833-1531
0 137 E College Street, Kewanae, IL 61443 + 305-B52-4331 « FAX 309-854-0122 O 2079 Edgewater Drive, Pekin, IL 81554 « 309-382-2006 + FAX 309-382-2007
(0310 Wylie Drive, Suile 464, Normal, IL 61761 + 309-452-2797 « 309-452-98 11 O 301 Indusinal Park Poad, Monmouth, IL 61462 - 309.734-9461 « FAX 309-734-3809
0 7200 Clinion FRoad, Loves Park, IL 81111 + 815-962-8333 - FAX 815-964-3553

d15
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BRIDGEWAY

Creating Solutions for Everyone

12/6/22

John P. Knlery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Knlery,

This letter is in follow-up to Bridgeway’s original letter of support for the inpatient behavioral heaithcare
treatment facility in Peoria, IL. Bridgeway Inc. provides Mobile Crisis Response Services to the counties
of Henry, Knox, Warren and Henderson, which includes all of the zip codes contained in those counties.
In our previous correspondence, we indicated an estimate of 85 potential referrals to the inpatient
facility in Peoria. Based on our history of Mobile Crisis Response assessments in the countles we serve,
we agaln estimate that the primary numbers/referrals would come from the below “primary” zip codes:

Cii:i)e Referrals
60428 1
61201 1
61235 1
61241 1
61244 1
61254 4
61401 39
61402 1
61410 4
61414 1
61418 2
61423 1
61434 2

1 www.bway.org | ) wivw.bwaybusiness.com
112323 Windish Drive, Galesburg, IL §14C1 « 309-344-2323 « FAX 309-344:2200 1900 §. Deer Road, Macomb, IL 61455 » 309-837-4875 - 1.800-475-4226 - FAX 308-833-1531
4137 E- College Street, Kewaneg, Il. 61443 - 309-852.4331 + FAX 309 854-0122 1 2078 Edgewater Drive, Pekin, IL 61554 - 309-382-2006 - FAX 309.382-2007
13319 Wyite Drive, Suite 464, Normal, Il 61761 + 309-452.2797 - 309-452.98 11 1) 301 Industriat Park Road, Monmouth, IL 61462 « 309-734-9461 - FAX 309-734-3509
[ 7200 Clinton Raad, Loves Park, 161111 - 315-982-8333 « FAX 815-064-3553

alp Attachment 21 C



61436 1
61443 13
61446 1
651462 7
61480 1
51488 1
61491 1
61604 i
Total 85

Please feel free to contact me with any further questions.

Sincerely,

\E/dcaj : ij | f%*L owvi

Stacy L. Brown, LCPC

Vice President of Behavioral Health Services

Bridgeway Inc.

a7
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k‘ u A RESOURCE MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.

Improving Personal Performance ® Building Business Success

October 20, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

iltinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Ted Chapin, Ph.D. and am the President of Resource Management Services, Inc., Chapin & Russell
Associates and the Neurotherapy Institute of Central lllinois, specializing in counseling, employee assistance
programs, clinical psychology, marriage and family therapy, family mediation, parenting allocation evaluation and
neurofeedback for more chronic and complicated problems when counseling and medication have not been
sufficient. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of
US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients being deferred
or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to these important services in our
community and help provide relief from the following current situations:
e  Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments
Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities
Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes
Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Based on the patients we currently provide care, our group’s experience in referring patients and the growing
demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that |/we refer up to four patients to the proposed hospital
in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s Acute
Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sinceﬁlv, Notarization:

l L
Cg:"'\ Subscribed and sworn to before me

Signature v
this _Eaay oiaﬁ(v& 72022

Ted Chapin, Ph.D.

Print Name A il
Signature mtary

3020 W. Willow Knolis 2 s

Peoria IL 61614 OFFICIAL SEAL”

Address Seal B E SCHENCK

Notary Public, State of linois
My Commission Ex ire

3020 W. Willow Knolls Dr. * Peoria, lllinois 61614-1002 ¢ Tel: 309-681-5652 * Fax: 309-681-5658
www.rms4solutions.com

218
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November 7, 2022 tmo“ Cdjmﬂm DWCB, u-c

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Pamela Elliott 1 own and work for Elfiott Counseling Services, LLC specializing in children through adult
outpatient mental health treatment. | support the proposal to establish a 100-bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in
Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Heaithcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric service that is resulting in clients being deferred or
denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to these important services in our
community and help provide relief from the following current situations:

e Clients waiting for psychiatric beds In hospital emergency departments (We have had three this past six
mos.}

e Clients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities. For clients
with mental health issues, it is frightening for them to get hospitalized. Going so far from home is even
more terrifying.

s Clients benefit when families participate in their treatment and going to a long-distance facility is not
feasible for most family members.

s Health care professionals unable to find clients’ beds at existing facilities. There is a need for inpatient
treatment that is usually met in our community. With no beds available, we are not able to keep clients
safe at home.

» local psychiatric recidivism due to fack of aftercare services near patients’ homes. We treat a lot of clients
with PTSD, Anxiety, and Depression that would benefit greatly from an aftercare program. In our area, we
need more long-term inpatient and partial hospitalization care.

Based on the clients we currently provide care to, our experience in referring clients, and the growing demand for
inpatient behavioral heaith care, t estimate that |/we will refer 10-15 patients to the proposed hospital in the
second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s Acute
Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have apy questions.
Siﬁ?ly, M% Notarization:
/ a4 ?)’// Subscribed and sworn to before me

Signature S &
this ﬁ_ day of NOWZYERY 2022

Pamela J.Elliott
Print Name
ignature of Notary

706 Oglesby, Ste 300 Normal, 1 61761 :-4—-—4-—-4--“-8?-&-“‘—4'
Address Seal OFFICIAL SEAL )
¢ SARAH E HORONZY )
§ NOTARY PUBLIC. STATE OF ILLINCIS )
706 Cglesby Suite 300 PHONE  309-212-3606 { Liv Commisscon Expires Dec. (2. 2025
Normal, 1L 61761 FAX 312- 789-4373 P
1820 M. Stering Ave. EMAIL dlipttcounselngservices@gmatl.com
Peoria, K. 61604 WEB SITE wwiw. elliottcaunsclingservices.com
[

dl9
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Christian Psychological Associates
John R. Day & Associates, Ltd
A Group Practice in Psychology

3716 W Brighton Avenue, Peoria, IL 61615
Phone: 309-692-7755 Fax: 309-692-2262
Email: home@christianpsychological.org  Website: www.christianpsychological.org

October 19, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Jessica Le and ! work for John R Day & Associates/ Christian Psychological Associates,
specializing in psychotherapy and psychological testing. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed
Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare
System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients
being deferred or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to these
important services in our community and help provide relief from the following current situations:
Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments

Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities

Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes

Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Based on the patients | currently provide care, my experience in referring patients and the growing
demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that I/we will refer around 10 patients to the
proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital's Acute Mental lliness service.

-~ Please contact me if you have any questions.,

OFFICIAL SEAL

incerely, WWMMM
: —_— PUBLIC - 8TA
9@4@ 7l MY COMMBION BXPRes oy
“essica T Le, MS MA EA F SRR

Financial Director 9{,& m . il(/"ljiﬂ/k/

jessica@christianpsychological.org
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October 27, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

linois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W, jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfieltd, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Deborah J McKenna LCPC and | work in my own private practice specializing in Trauma. | support the
proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF
Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients being deferred
or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to these important services in our
community and help provide refief from the following current situations:
s  Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments
Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities
Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes
Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

* & & @

Based on the patients | currently provide care, my experience in referring patients and the growing demand for
inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that I/we will refer 5 patients to the proposed hospital in the second
year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s Acute
Mental liiness service,

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:
&W //lr Subscribed and sworn to before me
Signature ‘

Db, cals T M, fie

Print Name
. Slgnature of Notary
3;2& ML Fern'a A '—‘7*’01’—
Address . wy =
Ferein 2L 41403

TONDA L. STEWART
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of lllinois

My Commlssmn Explres Sep 18, 2024

Ao
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INSTITUTE ©OF HEALING

October 21, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Dr. Sarah B. Scruggs and | am the Chief Executive Officer of the Arukah Institute of Healing, Inc. NFP
specializing in behavioral health services. This letter serves to show my support of the proposal to establish a 100-
bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients being deferred
or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to these important services in our
community and help provide relief from the following current situations:
e  Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments
Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities
Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes
Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

® & & »

Based on the patients | currently provide care, my experience in referring patients and the growing demand for
inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that I/we will refer a minimum of 50 patients to the proposed hospital
in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s Acute
Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization:

’/Ail/ Subscribed and sworn to before me

\.g:.//l yZLh \B \?Gr"tl 44 S this&davd%
e ) Sheewy dumad

run5 33;9 E{m /)I S_{_E _7 Signature‘tﬁ chtar{(

Address P} ln‘cﬁf-n-" IL. [{-’ /556 Seal

Signature

Official Seal
Sherry Lynn Mulling
Notary Public State of Hlinois

My Commission Expires /8/2026

PREVENT. RESTORE. INNDVY

1916 NORTH MAIN ST. PRINCETON, IL 61356 | WWW.ARUKAHINSTITUTE.ORG | 815.872.2943

MUK}
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WG CHESTNUT

W HEALTH SYSTEMS
chestnut.org

November 2, 2022

John P. Kniery, Adminisirator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Puneet Leekha and I work for Chestnut Health Systems specializing in behavioral
health and primary care for the medically underserved population. I support the proposal to
establish a 100 bed Acute Mental Iliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and
OSF Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients
being deferred or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to
these important services in our community and help provide relief from the following current
situations:

. Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments

. Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their
communities

. Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities

. Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes

. Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Based on the patients I currently provide care, my experience in referring patients and the growing
demand for inpatient behavioral health care, I estimate that I/we will refer 100 patients to the
proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital’s Acute Mental Illness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.
Sincerely, Notarization:

7 ) Subscribed and sworn to before me

this_ 2 day of NV 2022

Signature

Puneet Leekha :
1003 Martin Luther King. Jr. Dr. Signature of Notary:
Bloomington, L. 61701 | ; JESSICA BARNES
OFFICIAL SEAL

1003 Martin Luther King Drive July 18, 2025

N ;. . [ Notary Public, State of Hhinois
=y My Commission Expires

Bloomington, lllinois 61701 _—

Phone: (309) 827-6026  Fax: (309) 820-3745 (Client Records)

Jda3
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October 31st, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

linois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

My name is Taurean Bond and | work for Petersen Health Care specializing in long term care. | support the
proposat to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF
Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients being deferred
or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access 10 these important services in our
cornmunity and help provide refief from the following current situations:

¢  Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments

* Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities

* Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities

¢ Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes

*  Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Based on the patients | currently provide care, my experience in referring patients and the growing demand for
inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that I/we will refer 75-100 patients to the proposed hospital in the
second year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s Acute
Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.
Sincerely, Notarization:
Pl

.
by

Subscribed and sworn to hefore me

Signature m&%
e 3[ 47;(: day of 2022
Taeertan Kol ' ,

Print Name

Qiﬂmiﬁdi.)?ﬁam,ll Si . %

Address Seal

TLSGIEIISH T
“OFFICIAL SEAL”
JOETTA M CLAYES
Notary Public, State of lilincis *
My Cominlssion Expir- 5 02119120058
HESRDUGRSSS NS
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¢ Barnabas Center

November 23, 2022

John P. Kniery
Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board

525 W. jefferson Street,
2nd Floor

Springfield, L 62761

T-309 688 9282
F-309 682 8497

peoriarescue.org
prm@peoriarescue.org

1831 N. Knoxville Ave.
Peoria, [l 61603

Cuf /7

Dear Mr. Kniery,

My name is Curt Meiss. | am a Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor
{LCPC} and director of the Barnabas Counseling Center (part of Peoria
Rescue Ministries), where | supervise five other counselors. | am also in
private practice, working at the Glen Manor counseling group in Peoria.

| specialize in treating PTSD, but | also treat a wide variety of other mental
health disorders. | support the proposal to establish a 100-bed Acute
Mental lliness Hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and
OSF Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services
that is resulting in patients being deferred or denied inpatient treatment.
Approval of this application will increase access to these important
services in our community and help provide relief from the following
current situations:

e Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments

¢ Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment
close to their communities

¢ Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing
facilities

s Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near
patients’ homes

o Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance
or travel time

Based on the patients for whom | currently provide care and counselors |
supervise, my experience in referring patients, and the growing demand
for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that we will refer $-10
patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of
the new facility.

These referrai counts have not been used to support another permit
application for any other hospital’s acute mental illness service.

[Jotary
Please contact me if you have any questions. \fmw y/ém
O///él ? )3

TONDA L. STEWART
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Public - State of Illlntus

A4S : FeeTIe fsyries
Attachment 21C

Sincerely, <

Curt Meiss, LCPC
Director of Counseling Services
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ASSOCIATES IN
BEHAVIORAL

g/ SCIENCE

December 2, 2022 Pagelof2

John P, Knlery, Administrator

Hlinols Health Facllities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2% Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr, Xniery:

My name is Karen Eby and 1 work for Assaclates In Behavioral Sctence, which is an interdisciplinary behavioral health practice that speclalizes in
inpatient psychiatric care. 1 am writing to convey my organization’s strong support for the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental Hiness
hospital in Peorla as a joint venture of US HeaithVest and the OSF Healthcare System.

There has long been a Jack of beds down-state, anywhare south of route 80, in the Peoria area and even south of that. For decades, patients have
bean transfarred hundreds of miles Into the Chicago area for Inpatient care because of the distribution of bads. Associates In Behavioral Sclence
has direct experience with this, Since 1989 we have provided Inpatient placement of psychiatric patients, both treating them ourselves in our own
hospltals and assisting our referral sources In placamant at others when ours are riat available, We have grown over the years to the point where
wa hospltalize from 150 to 220 patiants per month. We have patients referred to us from as far as Rockford and Freeport, to Kankakee, Peoria and

as far south as Springfield and Champalgn, Dozens of thern come from down-state in the Peoria area every month due ta the tack of beds and
unmet need down in that ares.

Approvel of this application will increase access to these important services in the Peoria and surrounding communities and improve the problem
of patients being stuck waiting in emergency room for beds as well as ease the difficulty for healthcare professionais to locate a bed, It will correct
the Inconvenlence, snd actually Inappropriatenass, of maoving patlents hours away for care, which also deters family and significant others
participating in trestment,

Based on the patients currently referred to us and hospitalized, we would actually feel it more appropriate to keep them dase to home rather than
to Chicago and suburbs, and will be refived to do sa In referring them to this facility. 1 estimate that we will refer at laast 11 patients per month,
transleting o 132 patients to the proposed hospital In the second year after campletion of the new facllity. As per our past records, we project
that these patients will come from 2ip codes 61523, 61528, 61547, 51569, 61503, 61515, 61530, 51415, 61433, 61482, 61542, 61411, 61438,
61455, 61470, 61534, 61546, 61554, 61571, 61607, 62367 and 62374,

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s Acute Mental llinezs service,

\Siﬁ-elv, Notarkzation:

o n - Subscribed and swom to before me b
o N

Karen Eby U

Director of Business Davelopment
Assaciates In Behavioral Science, LTD

JASON FELYTZ
Ctfclal Seal
Notary Public - State of Itilnois
#y Commission Expires Mar 1, 2026

6201 Cermak Road, 2" Floor, Berwyn, Illinols 50402 708) 788-3808

adl
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Referrals Anticipated by CEOs of Area Hospitals
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C\rE)) GRAHAM Phone {309} 647-5240

210 W. Walnut Street

Qg HEALTH SYSTEM IR = 1 20

October 24, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| am the President and Chief Executive Officer at Graham Hospital in Canton, Hlinois. | fully
support the proposal to establish @ 100 bed Acute Mental iliness hospital in Peoria, as a joint venture of
US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in
patients being deferred or denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access
to these important services in our community and help provide relief from the following current
situations:

Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments

Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities

Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes

Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Our facility routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral Health/AMI Hospitals in the
state of lllinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, |
estimate that our facility will refer 100-150 patients annually to the proposed hospital, in the second
year after completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other
hospital’s Acute Mental lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Robert G. Senneff
President & CEO
Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me IZHI, WL\
this 0? day of 2022
STt oém 4 %/( edurr

Public SmBEEﬁg{lnms Signature of Notafy
mmiselon ros
Sune 22,2026 ___ Attachment 21 D
- Seal
032
Graham Hospital + Graham Medical Group « Graham Wellness Center
Graham Home Medical Equipment = Graham School of Nursing « Graham Foundation f ’
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KATHERINE SHAW BETHEA HOSPITAL

November 1, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

Nlinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

I am the Chief Executive Officer at Katherine Shaw Bethea Hospital. | support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute
Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.

There is an unmet need in the surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients being deferred or
denied inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to these important services in our
community and help provide relief from the following current situations:

Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments

Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their communities
Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities

Local psychiatric recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’ homes

Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Our facility routinely refers/transfers adult patients to Behavioral Health/AMI Hospitals in the state of lllinois for needed
inpatient behavioral health care and services.

Based on the past referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that our facility will
refer 50 pedi/adolescent psych patients and 10 Geropsych patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after

completion of the new facility.

These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any other hospital’s Acute Mental
lliness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely, Notarization;

w 7\' 3 CA* Subscribed and sworn to hefore me
2022

this_/%— dayof
David L. Schreiner, Ph.D

President/CEQ ‘ﬂ Attachment 21D
Katherine Shaw Bethea Hospital
%mf/” / é}ﬁ/

Signature of i

437 seal NANCY (, VAROA

403 E. First St., Dixon, IL 61021-3187 | 815.288.5531 | E-mall : if OMW

ital.com
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Memorial
Health

November 21, 2022

John P. Kniery, Administrator

lllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Kniery:

| support the proposal to establish a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness hospital in Peoria as a joint
venture of US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System. There is an unmet need in the
surrounding area for psychiatric services that is resulting in patients being deferred or denied
inpatient treatment. Approval of this application will increase access to these important services
in our community and help provide relief from the following current situations:

Patients waiting for psychiatric beds in hospital emergency departments;
Patients in need of psychiatric services and unable to find treatment close to their
communities;
e Health care professionals unable to find patients beds at existing facilities;
Local psychlatnc recidivism due to lack of aftercare services near patients’' homes; and
+  Lack of family involvement during inpatient treatment due to distance or travel time

Our facility routinely refers/transfers aduit patients to Behavioral Health/AM! Hospitals in the
state of lllinois for needed inpatient behavioral health care and services. Based on the past
referrals and the growing demand for inpatient behavioral health care, | estimate that our facility
will refer 350 patients to the proposed hospital in the second year after completion of the new
facility. These referral counts have not been used to support another permit application for any
other hospital's Acute Mental lllness service.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sin?! , %Z Notarization:

Ed Atis . . Subscribed and sworn to before me

President and Chief Executive Officer this 21% day of November 2022,
Signature of Notary

Attachment 21 D

340 W. Miller St.
Springfield, IL 62702

217-788-3000 (B

a30 memorial.health @&
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1120.120 AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS
The project is being entirely funded by cash and securities. Included as documentation are:

Audited Financial Statements for US HealthVest, LLC for the years ended December 31, 2021,
and 2020

Letter from James Cha, Chief Financial Officer of US HealthVest confirming the use of
internally available funds

Letter from Christopher ). Worm, Senior Vice President, City Bank confirming the current
account balance for US HealthVest

Letter from Michael Allen, Chief Financial Officer, OSF Healthcare System,
confirming the use of internally available funds

Attachment 34

a3l
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US HealthVest

BEHAVIORAL HEALTHCARE REDEFINED

Consolidated Audited Financial Statements
and Supplemental Information for
US HealthVest, LLC

For the Years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020

Attachment 34
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TOBIN & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, PC

iINDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of:
US HealthVest, LLC
New York, N.Y.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of US HealthVest, LLC (a Delaware company) and
subsidiaries, which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, and the related
statements of operations, members’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of US HealthVest, LLC as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinicn

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Uniled States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of US
HealthVest, LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about US HealthVest, LLC's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Migstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in lhe aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial stalements.

3 Attachment 34
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepied auditing standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 10
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of US HealthVest, LLC's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signiticant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about US HealthVest, LLC's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required lo communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
ptanned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Fobin & Company.
Coxtified Public Uccountants, PC

Purchase, New York
April 11, 2022

4 Attachment 34
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US HealthVest, LLC

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2021 2020
ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and equivalents $ 14434901 $ 27,019,535

Accounts receivable, net 26,312,417 19,798,570

Inventory 575,017 668,201

Prepaid expenses 2,039,443 3,658,300
Total Current Assets 43,361,778 51,144,606
Land, Property and Equipment, net 150,998,015 154,852 431
Other Assets

Investment in non consolidaled entity 301,353 296,712

Other receivable and other assets 863,922 883,087

Goodwill 57,364,697 57,364,697
Total Other Assels 58,529,972 58,544,496

Total Assets

$ 252,889,765

$ 264,541,533

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY
Current Liabllities

Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other $ 12,326,179 $ 13,915,892
Accelerated Medicare 2,536,111 5,601,932
Retainage on construction - 97,630
Capital lease payable, current portion 3,463,789 3,020,218
Deferred gain on sale leaseback, current portion 959,971 959,971
Total Current Liabilities 19,286,050 23,595,643
Long Term Liabilities
Capital lease payable, net of current 66,817,592 69,782,350
Deferred gain on sale leaseback, net of current 9,402,902 10,362,873
Note payable, net of current 110,000,000 110,000,000
Financing Costs, net (2,310,287) {3,140,305)
Long term liabilities net of unamortized financing cost 183,910,207 187,004,918
Total Liabilities 203,196,257 210,600,561
Total Equity 52,913,652 56,537,824
Non controlling interest (3,220,144) {2,596,852)
USHV Members' Equity 49,693,508 53,940,972
Total Liabilities and Members' Equity $ 252,889,765 $ 264,541,533

236

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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US HealthVest, LLC

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Years ended December 31, 2021 2020
Revenues
Net patient revenues before provision for doubtful accounts $ 221,714611 $ 174,648,939
Less: Provision for doubtful accounts {5,680,839) {4,888,707)
Net patient revenues 216,033,772 169,760,232
Other Revenue 18,868,000 12,857,643
Net Revenues 234,901,772 182,617,875
Operating Expenses
Cost of Labor 129,008,615 110,904,771
Professional fees 18,034,382 15,974,354
Purchased services 15,438,840 12,506,983
Insurance 11,008,151 4,547,646
Supplies 9,506,318 7,399,764
Licenses, permits and fees 7,578,374 6,017,636
Rent 5,401,286 5,153,975
Contracted labor 4,328,284 2,607,062
Property and business laxes 3,828,839 2,822,312
Utilities 3,421,741 2,946,237
Recruiting costs 1,559,213 886,297
Repairs and maintenance 1,112,324 933,192
Travel and entertainment 938,654 574,757
Other operating expenses 880,349 712,659
Computer ang internet 573,951 614,194
Adverlising and markeling 137,337 82,560
Total Operating Expenses 212,756,658 174,684,399
Profit from Operations before other ltems 22,145,114 7,933,476
Management fees 664,400 350,001
Increase in equity in non consclidated entity 4,641 32,390
Depreciation expense (10,413,120) (8,540,292)
Settlements (88,500} (16,000)
Interest expense (16,739,021) (15,899,890)
Interest income 129,018 54,923
Net Loss {4,297 468) (16,085,492)
Net (profit) loss aftributable to non controlling interest {573,290) (433)
Net Loss Attributable to USHV, LLC $ (4,870,758) $ {(16,085,925)

See accompanying noles lo the financial statements

6 Attachment 34
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US HealthVest, LLC

Consolidated Statements of Members’ Equity

For the years ended December 31,

Beginning Balance, January 1, 2020 $ 72,622,883
Change in non controlling interest 433
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2021 {16,085,492)
Balance, December 31, 2020 56,537,824
Member Contributions 50,003
Change in non controlling interest 623,293
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2021 (4,297,468)
Balance, December 31, 2021 $ 52,913,652

See accompanying notes to the financial stalements

238

Attachment 34



#23-008

US HealthVest, LLC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2021 2020
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Loss $ (4,297,468) § (16,085,492)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash
Used in Operating Activities:

Depreciation 9,430,316 8,540,392
Interest expense associated with financing costs 830,018 809,418
Provision for doubtful accounts 5,447,029 4,888,707
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses 1,618,857 (1,497,639)
(Increase) Decrease in other receivable and other assets 19,165 {66,631)
Increase in accounts receivabla (11,960,876) (7,908,367)
{(Increase) Decrease in inventory 93,184 (76,528)
Increase (Decrease) in payables, accrued expenses, and other {4,655,533) 5,984,950
Net Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities (3,475,308) {5,411,190)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Capital expenditures (5,575,900} (25,480,743)
Decrease in retainage (97,630) {741,605)
Increase (decrease) in deferred gain on sale leaseback (959,971) 1,191,257
Increase in Investment in non consolidated entity (4,641) (32,380)
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities (6,638,142} (25,063,481)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Contrbuted capital 50,003 -
Repayment of line of credit - (9,774,627)
Proceeds from capital lease - 30,322,871
Repayment of capital lease (2,521,187) (2,210,486)
Financing costs incurred on debt - (111,253)
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities {2,471,184) 18,226,505
Net Decrease In Cash (12,584,634) {12,248,166)
Cash at Beginning of Year 27,019,535 39,267,701
Cash at End of Year $ 14,434,901 $ 27,019,535
Supplemental Disclosures of cash paid during the period for:
Interest Expense $ 15877971 § 15,090,472

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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US HealthVest, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 - Summary of Accounting Policies

Qraanization and Business

US HealthVest, LLC (the Company)} was formed under the laws of the State of Delaware on March
1, 2013. The purpose of the Company and its affiliates is to acquire and develop behavioral
healthcare facilities throughout the United States. As of the balance sheet date, the Company owns
multiple facilities in the following locations: Ridgeview Institute Monroe, Monroe, GA; Chicago
Behavioral Hospital, Des Plaines, IL; Ridgeview Institute, Smyrna, GA; Smokey Point Behavioral
Hospital, Marysville, WA; Lake Behavioral Hospital, Waukegan, IL; Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital,
New Lenox, IL; South Sound Behavioral Hospital, Lacey, WA; and Hendricks Behavioral Hospital,
Plainfield, IN.

Recent Developments

* In June 2020, Lake Behavioral Hospital opened its new hospital building with 146 total beds.

* In August 2020, Smokey Point Behavicral Hospital received a Certificate of Need to increase its
total number of beds by 30 to 145 total beds.

¢ In December 2020, Ridgeview Institute Monroe received a Certificate of Need to increase its
total number of beds by 23 to 111 total beds.

* In February 2021, Indiana Behavioral Innovations, LLC opened Hendricks Behavioral Hospital, a
112-bed hospital in Plainfield, IN.

* In February 2021, Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital received an approval to increase its total
number of beds to 110 beds.

* In June 2021, T Massachusetts Realty, LLC commenced providing management services for a
detox unit at Holy Cross Hospital, part of the Sinai Health System, in Chicago, IL.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the aclivities of US HealthVest, LLC, and its

subsidiaries, collectively referred to as “lhe Company”. All material intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

The activities of Southeast Massachusetts Behavioral Health, LLC; M4 Health, LLC; 2014 Heaith,
LLC; 2014 Health Realty, LLC; Vest Monroe, LLC; Vest Monroe Realty, LLC; V Colorado, LLC; RV
Behavioral, LLC; RV Behavioral Realty, LLC; Vest Seattle, LLC; Vest Seatile Realty, LLC; Vest
Thurston, LLC; Vest Thurston Realty, LLC; V Covington, LLC; V Covington Realty, LLC; Indiana
Behavioral Innovations, LLC, Indiana Behavioral Innovations Realty, LLC: New Lenox Behavioral
Innovations, LLC; New Lenox Behavioral Innovations Realty, LLC; Silver Oaks Behavioral, LLC;
Silver Oaks Behavioral Realty, LLC; and T Massachusetts Realty, LLC; collectively referred to as
“affiliates” have been consolidated with the activities of US HealthVest, LLC and are presented in the
statements of supplemental information.

Cash and Equivalents
The Company considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less
to be cash equivalents.

9 Attachment 34
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US HealthVest, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Inventory - Supplies
Inventories consist of pharmaceutical supplies and are stated at the lower of cost or market using

the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

Revenue Recognition

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) issued guidance (Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers) which provides a five-
step analysis of contracts to determine when and how revenue is recognized and replaces most
existing revenue recognition guidance in the United States of America generally accepted
accounting principles. The core principle of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize
revenue to refiect the transfer of goods and services to customers in an amount equal to the
consideration the entity receives or expects to receive. ASC 606 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2020. The Company elected to adopt ASC 606 with a date of initial application of
January 1, 2019. There was no change that resulted from adoption. This reclassification had no
effect on Net Income, and therefore, there was no adjustment to the opening balance of Members’
Equity. The Company does not expect the adoption of the new revenue standard to have a material
impact on its Net Income on an ongoing basis.

As of December 31, 2021, and 2020 Contract Liabilities consisted of unearned revenue from
Accelerated Medicare payments totaling $2,536,111 and $5,601,932, and advance payments from
Blue Cross for Illinois locations totaling $563,325 and $2,395,627.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Company reports patient service revenue at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients
and third-party payers and others for services rendered. The Company has arrangements with third
party payers that provide for payments at amounts different from the Company's established rates.
Estimates of contractual allowances are based upon payment terms specified in the related
contractual agreements. Due to retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews
and investigations, actual payments from payers may be different from the amounts estimated and
recorded. Generally, the Company bills its patients and third-party payors several days after the
services are performed or the patient is discharged from the facility. Revenue is recognized as
performance cbligations are satisfied.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patients and the portion of bills for services
considered to be the patients’ responsibility (including co-payments and deductibies). For hospitals
opened before January 1, 2019, the Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts equal
to 50% of self-pay account between 61-120 days, 75% of self-pay accounts between 121-180 days,
and 100% of all accounts receivable over 180 days old. For hospitals opened during or after 2019,
the Company established an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to 100% of all self-pay accounts
regardless of aging. The Company continually monitors accounts receivable balances and utilizes
cash collection data and historical trends to support this position. The allowance for doubtful
accounts as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 was $2,890,059 and $2,884,370, respectively. The
Company has also established an allowance for denials, and charity from payors in the amount of
$5,101,201 and $4,586,690, as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively.
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US HealthVest, LL.C

Notes to Financial Statements

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Maintenance and repairs are expensed in the period
incurred; major renewals and betterments are capitalized. When items of property are sold or retired,
the related costs are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is included in income.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
(equipment 5-7 years and building and improvements 39 years). Property and equipment are
reviewed for impairment if the use of the asset significantly changes. There were no asset
impairments for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of
cash, cash equivalents, and investments held in financial institutions. At times, such balances may
be in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Company (FDIC) limits.

The Company’s revenues are heavily related to patients participating in Medicaid, and Medicare.
Management recognizes that revenues and receivables from government agencies are significant to
the Company’s operations, but it does not believe that there is significant credit risk associated with
these government agencies.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses amounted to $137,337 and
$82,560 for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, respeclively.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value identifiable net assets
acquired in certain acquisitions. The Company evaluates goodwill for impairment on an annual basis
to determine whether impairment has occurred. When evaluating goodwill for impairment, the
Company estimates the fair value of the reporting unit. If the carrying value of a reporting unit,
including goodwill, exceeds the estimated fair value, then the identifiable assets, including
identifiable intangible assets, and liabilities of the reporting unit are estimated at fair value as of the
current testing date. The excess of the estimated fair value of the reporting unit over the current
estimated value of net assets establishes the implied value of goodwill. The excess of the recorded
goodwill over the implied goodwill value is charged to earnings as an impairment loss. Significant
judgment is required in estimating the fair value of the reporting unit and performing goodwill
impairment loss calculations. Estimations of fair values are based on several factors, including the
Company's projection of future cash flows. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Company had
not recognized impairment of goodwill.

The Company's goodwill arose from the purchases of hospitals now operating as Chicago

Behavioral Hospital, in the amount of $14,416,697; and The Ridgeview Institute (Smyrna), in the
amount of $42,948,000.
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US HealthVest, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Compensated Absences

The Company's employees earn paid time off hours {(“PTO"), which are allocated between vacation,
holiday and personalfsick days off. Paid time off is earned depending on the length of service and
job position. Employees can normally carryover no more than 40 vacation PTO hours at year end,
however, due to COVID-19, this limitation was temporarily suspended for 2020, and again for 2021,
with a deadline to use any hours in excess of 40 by March 31, 2022. Holiday and personal/sick PTQ
hours may not be carried over. Accrued compensated absences as of December 31, 2021 and
2020 were $1,837,429 and $1,630,725, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company is organized as a Limited Liability Company. In lieu of corporate taxes, the members
of a Limited Liability Company are taxed on their proportionate share of the Company’s taxable
income or loss. Therefore, no provision or liability for federal or state income taxes has been
included in the financial statements. The Company's tax returns are subject to examination by the
appropriate tax jurisdictions for a period of three years from when they are required to be filed.

FASB ASC 740 requires management to perform an evaluation of all income tax positions taken or
expected to be taken in the course of preparing the Company’s income tax returns to determine
whether the income tax positions meet a “more likely than not” standard of being sustained under
examination by the applicable taxing authorities. This evaluation is required to be performed for all
open tax years, as defined by the various statutes of limitations, for federal and state purposes.

Acquisitions, Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting for business combinations requires that the assets acquired,
and liabilities assumed be recorded at the date of acquisition at their respective fair values with
limited exceptions. Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Any excess of the
purchase price over the estimated fair values of net assets acquired is recorded as goodwilt.

Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest in the consolidated financial statements represents the portion of equity held
by noncontrolling partners in the Company’s non-wholly owned subsidiaries. As of December 31,
2021, and 2020; a portion of the equity of three of the Company's consolidating entities was
attributable to a third party with a non-controlling interest as follows:

As of December 31, 2021 2020
New Lenox Behavioral Innovations, LLC $ 309,849 § (107,812)
New Lenox Behavioral Innovations Realty, LLC 2,862,401 2,704,664
Southeast Massachusetts Behavioral Health, LLC 47,895 -
Total $ 3220145 § 2,596,852

Recent Pronouncements
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (topic 842), which will require leases to

be recorded as an asset on the balance sheet for the right to use the leased asset and a liability for
the corresponding lease obligation for leases with terms more than twelve months. This ASU is
effective for non-public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact the pronouncement may have on the
financial statements.
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US HealthVest, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2 — Investment in Non-Consolidated Entity

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company held a minority interest in the amount of $304,353
and $296,712, respectively, representing 2.7% ownership of a non-consolidated entity.

Note 3 — Retainage on Construction

The Company withholds 5-10% of payments due in connection with construction in progress. Upon
completion of work, and final inspections, retainage is released to the contractors. As of December
31, 2021, and December 31, 2020, tolal due was $0 and $97,630, respectively.

Note 4 - Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

As of December 31, 2021 2020
Land $ 844297 § 844,297
Buildings and Improvements 165,181,824 161,847,530
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 12,470,796 11,274,936
Computer Equipment and Software 5,783,853 5,031,128
Vehicles 58,489 48,760
Construction in Progress 2,380,085 146,070
Total Land, Property, and Equipment 186,719,344 179,192,721
Less Accumulated Depreciation (35,721,329) (24,340,290}
Land, Property and Equipment, net $ 150,998,015 § 154,852,431

Note 5 — Line of Credit (Secured)

On August 6, 2019, V Covington Realty, LLC entered into a construction loan agreement with
Capstar Bank, with a maximum drawdown amount of $21,000,000. The funding period on this line of
credit terminated on December 6, 2020 (the maturity date). This note requires monthly interest
payments with interest calculated at Libor plus 3.50%. The principal balance of the note will be
payable in full at the maturity date. The note requires the Company to meet and maintain certain
covenants as defined in the loan terms and was collateralized by the real estate owned by V
Covington, LLC. During the year ended December 31, 2020 this line of credit was paid off in
connection with the Sale Leaseback of the property (note 8).

Note 6 — Notes Payable

On July 2, 2019, the Company entered into a new loan agreement for a total of $110,000,000,
financed through several lenders. Proceeds from this loan were primarily used to pay off existing
loans of consolidated entities. Payments on this loan are interest only until the maturity date, July 2,
2024, at which time it will be repaid in full. The note carries interest at 3-month Libor plus 8.5%,
subject to a 1.50% Libor floor. The note requires the Company to meet and maintain certain
covenants as defined in the loan terms and is collateralized by the assets of USHV and its
subsidiaries, excluding those specifically identified in the loan terms. As of December 31, 2021, and
2020, the outstanding balance was $110,000,000, respectively.
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US HealthVest, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7 - Financing Costs

Financing costs in connection with the Company’s loans are amortized over five years using the
straight-line method. In accordance with ASC 835-30-45, the Company has presented the
unamortized portion of these costs as a reduction to long term debt on the balance sheet.
Amortization is reflected as interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Net
financing costs as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 were as follows:

As of December 31, 2021 2020
Financing Costs $4,359,274 $ 4,359,274
Less: Accumulated Amortization (2,048,987) (1,218,969)
Financing Costs, net $2,310,287 $3,140,305

Note 8 =Sale Leaseback Transactions

In January 2016, the Company closed on a $12,500,000 loan from a publicly traded REIT, carrying
interest at 11%. The loan had a one-year term with an option to purchase the building during the
term for $20,000,000. In May 2016, this option was exercised, and the proceeds from the sale paid
off the $12,500,000 loan in addition to the remaining balance on the $7,500,000 City Bank Loan.
The Company is leasing the premises from the purchaser and is treating the lease as a capital lease
from a sale-leaseback transaction. The amount due under this capital lease as of December 31,
2021, and 2020 was $15,857,830, and $16,817,187, respectively.

The Sale Leaseback transaction also resulted in a deferred gain on the difference between the
carrying value of the assets at the time of sale and the selling price in the amount of $8,886,804.
This deferred gain is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years as a reduction to the
depreciation expense associated with the property held under the capital lease. As of December 31,
2021, and 2020, the remaining deferred gain was $5,578,938 and $6,171,392, respectively. The
following details future minimum lease payments under the lease as of December 31, 2021:

For the year ending December 31,2022 $ 2,122,228

For the year ending December 31, 2023 2,164,670
For the year ending December 31, 2024 2,207,966
For the year ending December 31, 2025 2,262,126
For the year ending December 31, 2026 2,297,164
Thereatter 10,701,967
21,746,121
Less amounts representing interest {5,888,291)
Total $ 15,857,830
14 Attachment 34
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US HealthVest, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements

The book value of assets held under the capital lease was as follows:

As of December 31, 2021 2020

Buildings and Improvements $ 20,000,000 $ 20,000,000
Less Accumulated Depreciation (7,444,444) (6,111,111)

Net Book Value $ 12,555,556 $ 13,888,889

In August 2019, the Company closed on the sale of the property owned by Vest Seattle Realty, LLC
in the amount of $27,500,000. The proceeds from the sale were used in part to pay off the existing
debt of Vest Seattle Realty, LLC. The Company is leasing the premises from the purchaser and is
treating the lease as a capital lease from a sale-leaseback fransaction. The amount due under this
capital lease as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 was $25,093,097, and $26,103,025, respectively.

The Sale Leaseback transaction also resulted in a deferred gain on the difference between the
carrying value of the assets at the time of sale and the selling price in the amount of $3,463,962.
This deferred gain is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years as a reduction to the
depreciation expense associated with the property held under the capital lease. As of December 31,
2021, and 2020, the remaining deferred gain was $2,905,879 and $3,136,610, respectively. The
following details future minimum lease payments under the iease as of December 31, 2021:

For the year ending December 31, 2022 $ 2,708,284

For the year ending December 31, 2023 2,748,909
For the year ending December 31, 2024 2,790,142
For the year ending December 31, 2025 2,831,994
For the year ending December 31, 2026 2,874,474
Thereafter 20,542,649
34,496,452
Less amounts representing interest (9,403,355)
Total $ 25,093,097

The book value of assets held under the capital lease was as follows:

As of December 31, 2021 2020

Buildings and Improvements $ 27,500,000 $27,500,000
Less Accumulated Depreciation (4,441,898) {2,603,871)

Net Book Value $23,058,102 $24,896,129

In October 2020, the Company closed on the sale of the property owned by V. Covington Realty,
LLC in the amount of $30,000,000. The proceeds from the sale were used in part to pay off the
existing debt of V. Covington, LLC. The Company is leasing the premises from the purchaser and is
treating the lease as a capital lease from a sale-leaseback transaction. The amount due under this
capital lease as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 was $28,626,638, and $29,607,916, respectively.
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The Sale Leaseback transaction also resulted in a deferred gain on the difference between the
carrying value of the assets at the time of sale and the selling price in the amount of $2,048,788.
This deferred gain is amortized on a straight-line basis over 15 years as a reduction to the
depreciation expense associated with the property held under the capital lease. As of December 31,
2021, and 2020, the remaining deferred gain was $1,878,056, and $2,014,842, respectively. The
following details future minimum lease payments under the lease as of December 31, 2021:

For the year ending December 31, 2022 § 2,888,316

For the year ending December 31, 2023 2,931,641
For the year ending December 31, 2024 2,975,615
For the year ending December 31, 2025 3,020,249
For the year ending December 31, 2026 3,065,553
Thereafter 28,858,104
43,739,478
Less amounts representing interest {15,112,840)
Total $ 28,626,638

The book value of assets held under the capital iease was as follows:

As of December 31, 2021 2020

Buildings and Improvements $ 30,000,000 $30,000,000
Less Accumulated Depreciation (2,500,000) (500,000)

Net Book Value $ 27,500,000 $29,500,000

Note 9 — Equipment Under Capital Lease

In April of 2020 Vest Thurston, LLC entered into an agreement with Meridian Leasing to lease
equipment. This lease is classified as a capital lease and is included in the balance sheet as
property and equipment. The cost of the capital lease equipment was $322,871. The amount due
under this capital lease as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 was $209,866, and $274,440,
respectively.

In September of 2020 Vest Thurston, LLC entered into an agreement with Meridian Leasing to lease
equipment.  This lease is classified as a capital lease and is included in the balance sheet as
property and equipment. The cost of the capital lease equipment was $231,439. The amount due
under this capital lease as of December 31, 2021, and 2020 was $169,722, and $216,009,
respectively.

The book value of assets held under these capital leases was as follows:

As of December 31, 2021 | 2020
Equipment $ 554310 $ 322871
Less Accumulated Depreciation (174,722) {48,431)
Net Book Value $ 379588 § 274,440
16 Attachment 34
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In August of 2021 Silver Oaks Behavioral, LLC entered into an agreement with Med One Group to
lease equipment. This lease is classified as a capital lease and is included in the balance sheet as
property and equipment. The cost of the capital lease equipment was $353,743. The amount due
under this capital lease as of December 31, 2021 was $324,265.

The book value of assets held under this capital lease was as follows:

As of December 31, 2021
Equipment $ 353,743

Less Accumulated Depreciation {29,479)
Net Book Value $ 324264

Note 10 — Retirement Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k)-retirement plan {*the Plan”) for all eligible employees over 21
years of age with at least five months of service. Participants can contribute a percentage of their
compensation up to a maximum deferral of 85% (subject to limits) and receive a matching employer
contribution of 100% of deferrals up to 3% of compensation, and 50% of deferrals for the next 2% of
compensation. Participants may also receive a discretionary employer matching contribution at the
discretion of the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company incurred expenses of $1,043,211,
and $918,008 in 2021, and 2020, respectively.

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be, from time to time, subject to various claims, lawsuits, or governmental
inquiries. In these actions, plaintiffs may request a variety of damages, including in some cases,
punitive or other types of damage that may not be covered by insurance. During the years ended
December 31, 2021, and 2020 the Company paid $88,500 and $16,000 in settlements, respectively.

Note 12 - Operating Lease of Facilities

The Company leases an administrative office located in New York, through an unrelated third party.
The lease was assigned from a former entity of common ownership with an initial lease term of ten
years, which expired November 30, 2019. In September 2018, a lease agreement extension was
signed. The extension commenced December 1, 2019 and ends November 30, 2024. Rent expense
for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020 was $223,663 and $217,148, respectively.
Future minimum rental payments under this lease commitment are as follows:

December 31, 2022 $ 230,372
December 31, 2023 237,284
December 31, 2024 244,402
Total $ 712,058

The Company leases property from an unrelated third party in Lacey, WA. The lease has a term of
thirty years, expiring August 31, 2047. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, and
2020 was $1,389,122 and $1,361,885. Future minimum rental payments under this lease
commitment are as follows:
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December 31, 2022 $ 1,416,905
December 31, 2023 1,445,243
December 31, 2024 1,474,148
December 31, 2025 1,503,631
December 31, 2026 1,633,703
Thereafter 39,549,710
Total $ 46,923,340

The Company leases property from an unrelated third party in Smyrna, GA. The lease has a term of
thirty years, expiring January 5, 2047. Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, and
2020 was $3,000,000. Future minimum rental payments under this lease commitment are as follows:

December 31, 2022 $ 3,000,000
December 31, 2023 3,000,000
December 31, 2024 3,000,000
December 31, 2025 3,000,000
December 31, 2026 3,000,000
Thereafter 63,000,000
Total $ 78,000,000

Note 13 — Management Fee Income

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company received fees for managing operations of
two non-consolidated entities totaling $664,400. Of these fees $300,000 per year were derived from
an entity in which the Company hoids a minority interest.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company received fees for managing operations of
two non-consolidated entities totaling $350,001. Of these fees $300,000 per year were derived from
an entity in which the Company holds a minority interest.

Note 14 — Related Party Transactions

Vest Monroe, LLC rents the facility in which it operates from Vest Monroe Realty, LLC, totaling
$1,500,000 in both 2021, and 2020. Additionally, Silver Oaks Behavioral, LLC rents the facility in
which it operates from Silver Oaks Behavioral Realty, LLC, totaling $1,620,000 in both 2021, and
2020. All such intercompany rent is eliminated upon consolidation.

During the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020 Silver Qaks Behavioral LLC paid
management fees in the amounts of $1,312,977 and $1,159,529, respectively, to US HealthVest,
LLC. These amounts were eliminated upon consolidation.

All other intercompany balances are the result of miscellaneous operating expenses and capital
spending. All intercompany balances are eliminated upon consolidation. A table representing

outstanding intercompany balances as of December 31, 2021, before consolidation, is contained in
the supplemental schedules to this report.
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Note 15 - COVID-19 Relief Funds

CARES Act Provider Relief Fund

During 2020 the United States Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) distributed
approximately $92.5 billion to providers who bill Medicare fee-for-service in order to provide financial
relief during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. Funds were distributed to providers in three
phases:

* Phase 1 = Approximately $30 billion were allocated proportional to providers' share of 2018
patient revenue.

* Phase 2 - Approximately $18 billion were allocated 1o eligible providers including participants
in state Medicaid/CHIP programs, Medicaid managed care plans, dentists, and certain
Medicare providers.

*» Phase 3 — Approximately $24.5 billion were allocated among Providers that have already
received Provider Relief Fund payments who were invited to apply for additional funding that
considered financial losses and changes in operating expenses caused by the coronavirus.

In total, the Company, and its consolidating entities received $3,589,608 from the CARES Act
Provider Relief Fund during 2020. Of the funds received $399,438 had yet to be utilized as of
December 31, 2020, these unused funds were classified under current liabilities on the respective
consolidated entity balance sheets. The Company had until June 30, 2021 to utilize these funds.
Unused funds would have been subject to repayment. During the year ended December 31, 2021,
all funds were utilized within the specified time frame. Funds considered to be utilized have been
classified either as other income, or as reductions to related expenses or capital purchases by the
respective consolidating entities. Additional funds in the amount of $24,552 were received and
utilized during the year ended December 31, 2021.

CARES Funding for Medicaid Providers

During 2020 the lllinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services provided relief funds to
providers operating in the State of lllincis that incurred expenses, between March 1 and December
31, 2020, related to the pandemic associated with the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) Public
Health Emergency issued by the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) on January 31, 2020, and the national emergency issued by the President of the United
States on March 13, 2020.

Eligible expenses under the program consisted of necessary costs incurred due to the COVID-19
public health emergency. Examples of necessary costs included expenses related to providing PPE
for employees or customers, hand sanitizer, cleaning products, deep cleaning services, equipment
associated with establishing social distancing within a business establishment.

Eligible providers received a funding award based on a formula that was determined by provider
type, location, amount of other Coronavirus relief funds received from other sources, and other
criteria as set forth in the HFS CARES Program. In total consolidating entities operating in the State
of lllinois received $430,072 from this program in 2020 and an additional $39,401 was received in
2021. All funds received through this program in 2020 were spent on eligible expenses, and
therefore are not considered to be owed back. These funds are recognized as a reduction of the
related expenses by the respective consolidating entities. As of December 31, 2021 the Company
had $16,562 remaining in unspent funds from this program.
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Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Programs
The Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Programs, which existed before the pandemic,

are designed to help hospitals and other providers facing cash flow disruptions during an
emergency. These are loans that must be paid back, with timelines and terms for repayment. The
CARES Act significantly expanded this program to include a broader set of hospitals, health
professionals, and suppliers during the COVID-19 public health emergency. These loans are paid
out of the Medicare Hospital Insurance {Part A) and the Supplementary Medical Insurance (Part B)
trust funds.

As of May 2020, a total of $100 billion had been distributed to hospitals and other types of providers
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic through the accelerated and advance payment programs. The
vast majority of these payments ($92 billion) went to providers that participate in Part A, which pays
for inpatient hospital stays, skilled nursing facility (SNF) stays, some home health visits, and hospice
care.

The loans made under this program are an advance on reimbursement from traditional (fee-for-
service) Medicare. In total the consolidating entities received $5,601,932 in accelerated payments
under this program.

Repayment of advance funds began 12 months after original receipt. Payments to providers are
recouped at a rate of 25% for the first 11 months of the repayment period, and 50% for the following
6 months. These advance payments are reflected as current liabilities on the respective
consolidating entities balance sheets. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020 the outstanding balance
on these advanced funds was $2,536,111 and $5,601,932, respectively.

Note 16 — Subsequent Events

The Company’s future operations and financial performance may be affected by the recent COVID-
18 pandemic which has adversely affected economic conditions throughout the world. The Company
may experience a disruption in operations, decline in revenue, as well as a decline in fair value of its
investments because of this pandemic. At the date of this report, Management has not quantified the
effects of this pandemic, but will monitor the matter closely. Depending on the duration of this
pandemic, the outlook of the Company's financial conditions and results of operations cannot be
determined.

Subsequent events were evaluated through April 11, 2022, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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TOBIN & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS, BC

Independent Auditors’ Report on Supplemental Materlal

To the Members of:
US HealthVest, LLC
New York, N.Y.

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of US HealthVest, LLC, and subsidiaries
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, and our report thereon dated April
11, 2022, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial stalements, appears on
page 3. Cur audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consoclidated
financial statemenis as a whole. The consolidating information included in the following section is
presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than
to present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the individual companies,
and it is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidating information has been subjecied to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statemenis as a whole.

Tollin & Company
Cextified Fublic Aecountants, €

Purchase, New York
April 11, 2022
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HealthVest

December 6, 2022

Ms. Debra Savage, Chairwoman
Hlinois Health Facilities and

Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street - 2° Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Availability of Funds
Section 1120.120

Dear Chairwoman Savage:

I hereby certify that US HealthVest plans to fund its share of the project with internally available cash
and securities. The funds are reserved for this project; there are no other projects in the system that are
competing for these funds.

Included in this section are the most recent certified Audited Financial Statements giving support to the
statement about the availability of funds.

The letter on the following page from City Bank certifies that there is a sufficient balance in the system’s
bank to fund its share of the planned new hospital.

If you have any questions, please contact Martina Sze, Chief Development Officer, US HealthVest at 212-
243-5565 or at msze@ushealthvest.com.

Sincerely,

James Cha
Chief Financial Officer
US HealthVest

NOTARY
Mscﬁbﬂ:{- amd Euowa b pefonve
mm_“:i\m 6t d oy u—P_DtCQ.wJe-e-.,}Q_D?/Z.

QL A~

32 East 57th Street

: t 17th Floor Attachment 34
Alexia P Liatsos
NOTARY PUBLIC. STATL OF NFW YORE New York, New York 10022
Regisiiption No, 01110433232 T212.243.5565 - F212,243.1099
Qualitied w New York Couay www.ushealthvest.com 2 58
Comntissica Evpiec s 00-21° 7026
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November 4, 2022

To whom it may concern:

Reference: US Healthvest LLC and related affiliates

This letter confirms that US Healthvest is a good standing customer of City Bank Texas.

US Healthvest, LLC has been a client of this bank for the past 8 years, relationship
established August/2014. Over this period, US Healthvest, LLC has operated their
business checking accounts and their loans satisfactorily. As of today, November 4,
2022, US Healthvest, LLC and its affiliates have an account balance of $28,623,168.17 .

During the period of our relationship credit has been approved and the repayment
history satisfactory.

Feel free to call if you have any questions regarding this matter.

Sincerely,

Christopher ) Worm
Senior Vice President

cworm@city.bank
915-833-0267

915-833-9571 Fax

Attachment 34
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EALTHCARE SYSTEM

November 30, 2022

Ms. Debra Savage, Chairwoman

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Availability of Funds Section 1120.120
Dear Chair Savage:

| hereby certify that Pointcore, Inc. {a wholly-owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System) plans to fund
a portion of the project with internally available cash and securities. OSF Healthcare System is the
current owner of real property on which a joint venture entity of US Healthvest and Pointcore, Inc.
intends to build and operate a 100 bed Acute Mental lliness Hospital. OSF Healthcare System intends to
convey such real property to Pointcore, Inc., which will thereafter convey the property to the joint
venture entity.

If you have any questions, please contact Mark Hohulin, Senior Vice President, Healthcare Analytics, at
309-308-9656 or at mark.e.hohulin@osfhealthcare.org.

Sincerel

Ll —

Michael Allen, Chief Financial Officer
OSF Healthcare System

124 S.W. Adams Street

Peoria, IL 61602

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this 55&* day of T Jemisar 2022
Tondo F. M

Signature of Notary

Seal

TONDA L. STEWART
OFFICIAL SEAL
Notary Pubtic - State of lllinois

My Commission Expires Sep 18, 2024

Attachment 34
d60

800 N.E. Glen Qak Avenue, Peoria, Ilinois 61603-3200 Phone (309) 655-2850 www.osfhealthcare.org
The Sisters of the Third Order of St. Francis



#23-008

1120.130 FINANCIAL VIABILITY

The project is being funded entirely through internal resources. Borrowing is not a source of funds for
the project. Included in this section are:

The most recent Fitch Ratings report for the OSF Healthcare System.
US HealthVest does not have a bond rating.

Because all of the project’s capital expenditures are being funded internally, the applicants claim the
financial waiver and is not required to submit financial viability ratios.

Attachment 35

del



#23-008

414122, 522 PM Fitch Upgrades OSF HealthCare Systern {IL) to ‘A+'; Outlook Stable

Fitch Ratingg = : P

RATING ACTION COMMENTARY

Fitch Upgrades OSF HealthCare System
(IL) to 'A+'; Outlook Stable

Mon 04 Apr, 2022 - 2:49 PMET

Fitch Ratings - Chicago - 04 Apr 2022: Fitch Ratings has upgraded OSF HealthCare System's (OSF) Issuer Default
Rating (IDR) to 'A+' from ‘A’ Fitch has also upgraded the ratings applied to revenue bonds issued by the lllinois Finance
Authority on behalf of OSF to 'A+' from "Al

The Rating Outlook is Stable.

SECURITY

OSF's revenue bonds are secured by a security interest in the unrestricted receivables of the obligated group (OG).
The OG represents the vast majority of assets and operating revenues, Little Company of Mary (LCOM), which joined
OSF in February 2020, is a member of the OG.

ANALYTICAL CONCLUSION

The upgrade of the rating to ‘A+' reflects OSF's ability to manage through the coronavirus pandemic and challenges
associated with the acquisition of LCOM and still generate profitable operating results in fiscal 2021 and the
expectation that the system will sustain operating EBITDA margins generally in the 7% range in the long term and
continue to build liguidity. The ‘A+' also considers OSF’s broad reach over multiple markets in lllinois, with a distinct
market share lead in its core service area around Peoria, and improved balance sheet metrics. The Stable Outlook
considers Fitch's expectation that while macro trends such as labor and inflationary pressures may compress
operating margins in the near term, OSF should continue to generate operating EBITDA margins broadly consistent
with at least a midrange operating risk assessment, Fitch expects capital-related ratios should improve over time,
including in a stress scenario.

KEY RATING DRIVERS
Revenue Defensibility: ‘bbb’

Broad Reach with Market Lead in Pecria

OSF has a broad reach through multiple markets in lllinois and the system is the distinct market leader in the Peoria
area, induding for many high-end services (e.g., OSF has the only children's hospital between Chicago and St. Louis).
Nevertheless, many key OSF markets are competitive. In the Peoria area (Central Region), OSF's flagship Saint Francis
Medical Center competes with UnityPoint Health (rated AA-; UnityPoint is in discussions to sell its Peoria assets to

hitps:ffwww.fitchratings.com/research/us-public-financeffitch-upgrades-osf-healthcare-system-il-to-a-outlook-stable-04-04-2022
e Attachment 35
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AA- Carle Foundation). Excluding outmigration, OSF captures approximately 60% market share and UnityPoint less
than 40%. The OSF Children's Hospital of lllinois is the only dedicated children's hospital in the Peoria area.

OSF competes with Carle in the Eastern Region of Bloomington/Pontiac and Campaign/Urbana, where Carle is the
market leader in the Urbana area, while OSF is the leader in Bloomington/Pontiac. OSF is one of three healthcare
providers in Rockford, IL (the core of the Narthern Region), competing with University of Wisconsin Health's
SwedishAmerican Health System and Mercy Health (rated A-), where the three systems capture roughly similar
market share. The acquisition of LCOM in early calendar year 2020 introduced OSF to the competitive Chicago metro
area market.

Demographic indicators vary by local market. Population trends in many of OSF's more populous service areas are
stagnant to declining, although the service area economy is considered to be generally stable. OSF's payor mix is
consistent with a midrange assessment, with combined Medicaid and self pay less than 25% of gross revenue
(inciuding 21.5% in fiscal 2021), even though OSF has a large children's hospital (children's hospitals tend to be heavily
reliant on Medicaid).

Operating Risk: ‘bbb’
Track Record of Profitability; Margins Rebounded in 2021

QSF has a track record of profitability and the operating EBITDA margin generally averaged around 8% prior to the
pandemic. The coronavirus pandemic and the integration of LCOM in February 2020 affected OSF's margins as the
system recorded an operating loss of -1.3% and modest operating EBITDA margin of 4.0% in fiscal 2020 (margins
adjusted to move contributions from operating revenue to non-operating). Margins rebounded considerably in fiscal
2021 with a 2.9% operating margin and 7.4% operating EBITDA margin.

Fiscal 2021 results benefited from approximately $100 million of expense savings that were implemented in part in
reaction to the pandemic, as well as volume rebounds in many key areas, such as inpatient admissions (up 10% over
fiscal 2020), unique patients (up 11%), inpatient surgeries (up 5.6%), outpatient surgeries (Up 16%), and outpatient
visits (up 21%). While part of the volume rebound in fiscal 2021 is due to LCOM joining in mid-fiscal 2020 (Ascal 2021
being the first full year as part of the system), most of the volume gains are the result of same-store rebound. OSF
recorded $53 million of CARES Act grants in fiscal 2021 (following $127 millionin fiscal 2020). The Metro Region,
anchored by the former LCOM, continues to be a drag on system results, as the affiliate recorded roughly $72 million
inoperating losses in fiscal 2021, and will continue to be a focus for operational improvement for management,
including opening six urgent care centers in the market.

Fitch expects OSF's operating margins to be sustained in the long term to levels consistent with at least a midrange
assessment {e.g., operating EBITDA margin in the 7% range). O5F is facing ongoing headwinds such as labor pressures
and inflation as are all other health systems in the U.S,, and the early part of fiscal 2022 was affected by the omicron
variant coronavirus surge in late calendar year 2021 and early 2022. Consequently, operating margins may be
somewhat compressed, as management's re-casted budget shows an operating margin of 1.9% and operating EBITDA
margin of 6.1% in fiscal 2022. Nevertheless, long term, Fitch expects operating margins to be sustained with an
operating EBITDA margin generally in the 7% range {and potentially higher long term, if material improvements in the
Metro Region can be realized). Even with the aforementioned pressures, QSF recorded an operating EBITDA margin
of 6.6% in 1Q fiscal 2022 (as of Dec. 31, 2021).

OS5F's capital spending plans are manageable. Capex has been robust in recent years, as the capital spending ratio
averaged approximately 1.7x between fiscals 2017 and 2021. OSF expects nearly $800 million of capital spending

https:/iwww.fitchratings.com/researchius-public-financeffitch-upgrades-osf-healthcare-system-il-to-a-outlook-stable-04-04-2022
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between fiscals 2022 and 2024, and then capex should moderate thereafter. Capital spending is highlighted by the
Comprehensive Cancer Center in Peoria, which includes a proton beam, as well as continued investments in OSF
urgent care centers. The Cancer Center is supported by considerable philanthropy and a portion of the project is
financed by bond praceeds from a prior issuance (management notes that the project is on time and on budget).
Management does not have new money debt plans in the near term, although Fitch expects a system of OSF's scope
and reach to access the capital markets opportunistically from time-to-time as strategic plans evolve.

Financial Profile: 'a’
Strong Capital-Related Ratios Expected to be Sustained

OSF's financial profile remains strongin the context of its midrange revenue defensibility and midrange operating risk
profile assessments. Fitch expects capital-related ratios to be strong in the stress case of the forward looking scenario
analysis.

Direct debt measured nearly $1.9 billion at FYE 2021, inclusive of operating leases, which are now captured on the
balance sheet. OSF has a defined benefit {DB) Church pension plan. The DB plan was 68% funded compared to a
projected benefit obligation {(PBO) of nearly $1.4 billion at FYE 2021, Combined with direct debt, total adjusted debt
measured just over $2.0 billion at FYE 2021 (Fitch counts the portion of a DB pension plan below 80% funded when
calculating adjusted debt). Unrestricted cash and investments measured $2.7 billion {excluding Medicare advance
payments and FICA payroll deferrals), translating to cash-to-adjusted debt of 134%. Net adjusted debt-to-adjusted
EBITDA was favorably negative in fiscal 2021.

Given Fitch's expectation of operating margins, cash should continue to grow in a base case of the scenario analysis
and cash-to-adjusted debt should strengthen. Even in a stress case, cash-to-adjusted debt should rebound and exceed
150% by year four and net adjusted debt-to-adjusted EBITDA should remain favorably negative.

Asymmetric Additional Risk Considerations
There are no asymmetric risk factors associated with OSF's rating.

Liquidity measured a strong nearly 290 days cash on hand at FYE 2021 {excluding Medicare advance payments and
FICA payroll tax deferrals).

Approximately $525 million of OSF's debt is variable rate, including roughly $130 million of series 2018B&C variable-
rate demand obligation (VRDO) bonds that are supported by letters of credit (LOC) that expire in October 2023,
Maximum annual debt service (MADS) coverage measured 6x in fiscal 2021 and does not pose an asymmetric risk.
OSF has four fixed-payor interest rate swaps. The total notional amount outstanding was approximatety $210 million
at FYE 2021, at which point the net termination value was nearly negative $45 million to OSF.

RATING SENSITIVITIES

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to positive rating action/upgrade:

--Sustained improvement in operating EBITDA margin closer to 9% {or better) that could warrant a stronger operating
risk assessment; ’

--Continued improvement in liquidity, such that cash-to-adjusted debt exceeds 190% even in a stress case of Fitch's
forward-looking scenario analysis.

https:/iwww.fitchratings.com/research/us-public-finance ffitch-upgrades-osf-healthcare-system-il-to-a-outlook-stable-04-04-2022

24 Attachment 35

e



#23-008

4/4/22, 5:22 PM Fitch Upgrades OSF HealthCare System {IL) ta 'A+": Gutlook Stable

Factors that could, individually or collectively, lead to negative rating action/downgrade:

--Sustained compression i operating metrics, particularly if the operating EBITDA margin were to be maintained
below 6%;

--Compression in liquidity and capital-related ratios, particularly if cash to adjusted debt in the forward look were to
be sustained closer to 120% {or lower).

BEST/WORST CASE RATING SCENARIO

International scale credit ratings of Sovereigns, Public Finance and Infrastructure issuers have a best-case rating
upgrade scenario {defined as the 99th percentile of rating transitions, measured in a positive direction) of three
notches over a three-year rating horizon; and a worst-case rating downgrade scenario (defined as the 99th percentile
of rating transitions, measured in a negative direction) of three notches over three years. The complete span of best-
and worst-case scenario credit ratings for all rating categories ranges from 'AAA' to 'D". Best- and worst-case scenario
credit ratings are based on historical performance. For more information about the methodology used to determine
sector-specific best- and worst-case scenario credit ratings, visit https:/www.fitchratings.com/site/re/10111579.

CREDIT PROFILE

OSF is a large integrated health system headquartered in Peoria, IL. The system operates 15 acute-care hospitals in
five regions: the Central Region, centered on Peoria, IL; the Eastern Region, centered on Urbana, Danville, and
Bloomington, iL; the Western Region, centered on Galesburg, IL (and inclusive of suburban St. Louis operaticns); the
Northern Region, centered on Rockford, It (and inclusive of a small hospital in the UP of Michigan); and the Metro
Region in the southwestern Chicago suburbs. OSF's total audited operating revenue approached $3.7 billionin
audited fiscal 2021 {Sept. 30 YE).

In addition to the sources of information identified in Fitch's applicable criteria specified below, this action was
informed by information from Lumesis.

REFERENCES FOR SUBSTANTIALLY MATERIAL SOURCE CITED AS KEY DRIVER OF RATING

The principal sources of information used in the analysis are described in the Applicable Criteria.

ESG CONSIDERATIONS

Unless otherwise disclosed in this section, the highest level of ESG credit relevance is a score of ‘3" This means ESG
issues are credit-neutral or have only a minimat credit impact on the entity, either due to their nature or the way in
which they are being managed by the entity, For more information on Fitch's ESG Relevance Scores, visit
www.fitchratings.com/esg,
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Numbers in parentheses accompanying applicable model(s) contain hyperlinks to criteria providing description of
model(s).

Portfelic Analysis Model (PAM), v1.2.3 {1)

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Dodd-Frank Rating information Disclosure Form
Solicitation Status

Endorsement Policy

ENDORSEMENT STATUS

Hlinois Finance Authority {IL) EU Endorsed, UK Endorsed

DISCLAIMER & DISCLOSURES

All Fitch Ratings (Fitch) credit ratings are subject to certain limitations and disclaimers. Please read these limitations
and disclaimers by following this link: https://www.fitchratings.com/understandingcreditratings. In addition, the
following https://www.fitchratings.com/rating-definitions-document details Fitch's rating definitions for each rating
scale and rating categories, including definitions relating to default. Published ratings, criteria, and methodologies are
available from this site at all times. Fitch's code of conduct, confidentiality, conflicts of interest, affiliate firewall,
compliance, and other relevant policies and procedures are also available from the Code of Conduct section of this
site. Directors and shareholders'™ relevant interests are available at https://www.fitchratings.com/site/regulatory.
Fitch may have provided another permissible or ancillary service to the rated entity or its related third parties. Details
of permissible or ancillary service(s) for which the lead analyst is based in an ESMA- or FCA-registered Fitch Ratings

company (or branch of such a company) can be found on the entity summary page for this issuer on the Fitch Ratings
website.

Inissuing and maintaining its ratings and in making other reports (including forecast information), Fitch relies on
factual information it receives from issuers and underwriters and from other sources Fitch believes to be credible.
Fitch conducts a reasonable investigation of the factual information relied upon by it in accordance with its ratings
methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that information from independent sources, to the extent such
sources are available for a given security or in a given jurisdiction. The manner of Fitch's factual investigation and the
scope of the third-party verification it obtains will vary depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer, the
requirements and practices in the jurisdiction in which the rated security is offered and sold and/or the issuer is
located, the availability and nature of relevant public information, access to the management of the issuer and its
advisers, the availability of pre-existing third-party verifications such as audit reports, agreed-upon procedures
letters, appraisals, actuarial reports, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third parties,
the availability of independent and competent third- party verification sources with respect to the particular security
orin the particular jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety of other factors. Users of Fitch's ratings and reports should
understand that neither an enhanced factual investigation nor any third-party verification can ensure that all of the
information Fitch relies on in connection with a rating or a report will be acc+u+rate and complete. Ultimately, the
issuer and its advisers are responsible for the accuracy of the information they provide to Fitch and to the market in
offering documents and other reports. In issuing its ratings and its reports, Fitch must rely on the work of experts,
including independent auditors with respect to financial statements and attorneys with respect to legal and tax
matters. Further, ratings and forecasts of financial and other information are inherently forward-looking and embody
assumptions and predictions about future events that by their nature cannot be verified as facts. As a result, despite
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any verification of current facts, ratings and forecasts can be affected by future events or conditions that were not
anticipated at the time a rating or forecast was issued or affirmed.

The information in this report is provided “as is” without any representation or warranty of any kind, and Fitch does
not represent or warrant that the report or any of its contents will meet any of the requirements of a recipient of the
report. A Fitch rating is an opinion as to the creditworthiness of a security. This opinion and reports made by Fitch are
based on established criteria and methodologies that Fitch is continuously evaluating and updating. Therefore, ratings
and reports are the collective work product of Fitch and no individual, or group of individuals, is solely responsible for
arating or a report. The rating does not address the risk of loss due to risks other than credit risk, unless such risk is
specifically mentioned. Fitch is not engaged in the offer or sale of any security. All Fitch reports have shared
authorship. Individuals identified in a Fitch report were involved in, but are not solely responsible for, the opinions
stated therein. The individuals are named for contact purposes only. A report providing a Fitch rating is neither a
prospectus nor a substitute for the information assembled, verified and presented to investors by the issuer and its
agents in connection with the sale of the securities. Ratings may be changed or withdrawn at any time for any reason
in the sole discretion of Fitch, Fitch does not provide investment advice of any sort. Ratings are not a recommendation
to buy, sell, or hold any security. Ratings do not comment on the adequacy of market price, the suitability of any
security for a particular investor, or the tax-exempt nature or taxability of payments made in respect to any security.
Fitch receives fees from issuers, insurers, guarantors, other obligors, and underwriters for rating securities. Such fees
generally vary from US$$1,000 to US$750,000 {or the applicable currency equivalent) per issue. In certain cases, Fitch
will rate all or a number of issues issued by a particular issuer, or insured or guaranteed by a particular insurer or
guarantor, for a single annual fee. Such fees are expected to vary from U5$10,000 to US$1,500,000 {or the applicable
currency equivalent). The assignment, publication, or dissemination of a rating by Fitch shall not constitute a consent
by Fitch to use its name as an expert in connection with any registration statement filed under the United States
securities laws, the Financial Services and Markets Act of 2000 of the United Kingdom, or the securities laws of any
particular jurisdiction. Due to the relative efficiency of electronic publishing and distribution, Fitch research may be
available to electronic subscribers up to three days earlier than to print subscribers.

For Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan and South Korea only: Fitch Australia Pty Ltd holds an Australian financial services
license {AFS license no. 337123) which authorizes it to provide credit ratings to wholesale clients only. Credit ratings
information published by Fitch is not intended to be used by persons who are retail clients within the meaning of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Fitch Ratings, Inc, is registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission as a Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (the “NRSRO"), While certain of the NRSRO's credit rating subsidiaries are listed on
Item 3 of Form NRSRQC and as such are authorized to issue credit ratings on behalf of the NRSRO (see
https://www.fitchratings.com/site/regulatory), other credit rating subsidiaries are not listed on Form NRSRO {the
“non-NRSROs") and therefore credit ratings issued by those subsidiaries are not issued on behalf of the NRSRO.
However, non-NRSRO personnel may participate in determining credit ratings issued by or on behalf of the NRSRO.

Copyright & 2022 by Fitch Ratings, Inc,, Fitch Ratings Ltd. and its subsidiaries. 33 Whitehall Street, NY, NY 10004,
Telephone: 1-800-753-4824, {212) 908-0500. Fax: {212) 480-4435. Reproduction or retransmission in whole or in
part is prohibited except by permission. Al rights reserved.

READ LESS

SOLICITATION STATUS

The ratings above were solicited and assigned or maintained by Fitch at the request of the rated entity/issuer or a
related third party. Any exceptions follow below.
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ENDORSEMENT POLICY

Fitch's international credit ratings produced outside the EU or the UK, as the case may be, are endorsed for use by
regulated entities within the EU or the UK, respectively, for regulatory purposes, pursuant to the terms of the EU CRA
Regulation or the UK Credit Rating Agencies (Amendment etc.) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019, as the case may be, Fitch's
approach to endorsement in the EU and the UK can be found on Fitch's Regulatory Affairs page on Fitch's website. The
endorsement status of international credit ratings is provided within the entity summary page for each rated entity
and in the transaction detail pages for structured finance transactions on the Fitch website. These disclosures are
updated on a daily basis.
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1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

As confirmed in the letters in section 1120.120, both US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare Systern
are funding their respective 80% and 20% commitments to the project with internal resources of cash
and securities.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing
There is no borrowing related to the project capital costs.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
See following table of capital construction costs for the clinical and non-clinical components of
the project. Also included in this section is a copy of the table Project Costs and Sources of Funds, and

accompanying narrative explanation of the line items of cost.

D. Projected Operating Cost
Table follows in this section.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs
Tahle follows in this section.
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C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
COST AND SQUARE FOOT BY DEPARTMENT

Department A | 8 c | o E | °F G H As Is
Cost / Sq Ft DGSF DGSF Const $ Mod $ Total Cost Sq Ft
New Mod New Circ % Maod Circ % {AxC) {BxE) {G+H)
CLINICAL
AM)| beds 5410 41,166 S 16,878,060 S 16,878,060
Intake $410 1,441 $ 590,810 $ 590,810
Physical Therapy 5410 630 $ 258,300 $ 258,300
Outpatient Program $410 1,778 $ 728,980 $ 729,980
Pharmacy 5410 435 $ 178,350 $ 178,350
Medical Records 5410 460 $ 188,600 $ 188,600
Dining $410 2,477 $ 1,015,570 $ 1,015,570
Clinical subtotal $410 48,387 $ 19,838,670 $ 19,839,670
NON-CLINICAL
Lobby, waiting, weception $400 905 5 362,000 $ 362,000
Public toilets $400 112 5 44,800 5 44,800
Administration, conf room $400 6,582 $ 2,632,800 $ 2,632,800
Lockers and lounge 5400 298 S 119,200 S 119,200
Storage $400 1,227 5 450,800 S 490,800
Kitchen 5400 2,417 5 966,800 S 966,800
Mech, bldg syst, housekeeping 5400 1,251 [ 500,400 $ 500,400
Circulation 5400 2,878 $ 1,151,200 $ 1,151,200
Subtotal Non-clinical $400 15,670 S 6,268,000 $ 6,268,000
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION $407.55 64,057 $ 26,106,670 $ 26,106,670
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Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, denation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must be

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Preplanning Cosls $297,680 $71,020 $368,600
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $22,661 $7,339 $30,000
Site Preparation $377,687 $122,313 $500,000
Off Site Work $679,837 $220,163 $900,000
New Construction Contracts $19,838,670 $6,268,000 $26,106,670
Modernization Contracts
Contingencies $1,983,867 $626,800 $2,610,667
Architectural/Engineering Fees $1,388,707 $428,760 $1,827,467
Consulting and Other Fees $264,381 $85,619 $350,000
Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction contracts) $642,068 e $850,000
Bond Issuance Expense (project related)
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project related)
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Costs to Be Capitalized
-7 $225,000 $525,000 $750,000
- artwork $12,500 12,500 $25,000
- signage $11,334 $3,669 $15,000
Acquisition of Building or Other Property {excluding land)
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $25,744,288 $8,589,116 $34,333,404
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $25,744,288 $8,589,116 $34,333,404
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issues {project related)
Mortgages
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS

b ", AUST BE PRO\

N F

e
-

$25,744,288

EETE

D AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

$8,589,116 $34,333,404

prr———

]

e T e e ot - - - >
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Narrative Descriptions of Line Items

Item 1. Preplanning Costs - $368,600

Market analyses, feasibility studies and background work, real estate analysis and site selection; Phase 1
cultural and environmental assessments; initial traffic and parking studies; legal and zoning
investigation.

Preplanning costs assigned to clinical uses total $297,580. This amount is 1.3% of $22,464,605, the total
of $19,838,670 for clinical construction plus $1,983,867 clinical contingency plus $642,068 clinical
equipment. As a result, it meets the State standard, under 1.8%.

Item 2. Site survey and soil investigation - $30,000

Soil testing and geotechnical work; property survey.

Item 3. Site Preparation - $500,000

Site work includes earthwork and grade leveling, utility infrastructure installation, irrigation and
drainage systems, retention pond configuration, asphalt paving, and landscaping; access road
construction.

Item 4. Off-site work - $900,000

This budget includes the project’s contribution to public improvements including new roadways on the
parcel of which Lot 2 (the project site) is part, including turn lanes, signage and signalization.

The total site related work items 2, 3 and 4 is $1,430,000, of which $1,080,185 is assigned to clinical.
$1,080,185 is 4.9% of the total $21,822,537, the sum of clinical construction {$19,838,670) plus clinical
contingency (51,983,867). It meets the State standard, under 5.0%.

Item 5. New Construction Contracts - $26,106,670

Construction of a two story building of approximately 64,000 sq ft is $26,106,670. Cost includes
foundation and slab, core and shell, TPO roofing, doors and windows, thermal and moisture protection,
fixed equipment (other than medical equipment referenced below), interior buildout and finishings, and

contractor’s overhead. Electrical, plumbing and heating and air conditioning systems are included.

Of the total construction cost, $19,838,670 is allocated to clinica! uses.
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Item 7. Contingencies - $2,610,667

Contingencies are allowances for unforeseen circumstances, such as delays in shipping and receipt of
materials and supplies that affect the construction schedule, escalation above anticipated pricing of
materials and labor, or site conditions resulting in plan modification.

The total construction contingency is 10% of the total construction cost. The clinical construction
contingency of $1,983,867 is 10% of clinical construction costs.

Item 8. Architectural and Engineering Fees - $1,827,467

A/E fees include the functional program and space plan, preliminary design, schematic design, design
development, construction document services, bidding and negotiation, and construction administration
services. Site related architectural services are also included in this amount. The costs of A/E services
are 1,827,467, of which 51,388,707 is allocated to clinical uses.

For clinical construction, A/E services of 51,388,707 amounts to 6.4% of the total $21,822,537 for clinical
construction plus clinical contingency. This amount is consistent with the State standard’s range of 5.52
to 8.28% for hospital facility projects with construction and contingency totaling under $25,000,000.
Item 9. Consulting and Other Fees - $350,000

This work includes legal fees related to the joint venture, utilities during construction, and builder’s risk

insurance policy premiums. It also includes regulatory and permit fees, including Certificate of Need
consulting and IDPH fees, as well as commissioning fees.

Item 10. Moveable Equipment not in construction contracts - $850,000

The total amount for equipment and furnishings is $850,000, of which $642,068 is associated with
clinical services.

Clinical area furnishings include patient room beds and wardrobes, seclusion room beds, tables, chairs
and sofas, loveseats and side tables for therapy spaces, consult rooms and day rooms. Equipment for
patient areas include TV sets with protective enclosures, and washers and dryers for patient clothing.
Furnishings include tables and chairs for waiting areas, conference rooms, and administrative and staff

areas, desks and work stations.

Item 14, Other Costs to be Capitalized - $790,000

Information technology includes computers, switches, cabling $750,000

Artwork for lobby and public areas, waiting, exam rooms $25,000

Directional signage and signs for functional areas $15,000
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4T



D. Project Operating Costs

Estimated Project Start Up Operating Cost
{first full year 2026)  $6,000,000

Project Direct Operating Expenses — 2 years
after project completion (Year 2027)

Project FY 2027

Total Operating Costs

$23,249,769

Equivalent Patient Days

30,732

Direct Cost per Equivalent Patient Day

$757

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

Projected Capital Costs — 2 years after project
completion (Year 2027)

Project FY 2027
Equivalent Patient Days 30,732
Total Project Capital Cost $34,333,404
Useful Life 39
Total Annual Depreciation $880,344
Depreciation Cost per Equivalent Patient Day $28.65

218
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SECTION X. Safety Net Impact Statement

1. The project’s material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the

impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

Health safety net services have been defined as services provided to patients who are low-income and
otherwise vulnerable, including those uninsured and covered by Medicaid. {Agency for Healthcare
Research and Quality, Public Health Services, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, “The
Safety Net Monitoring Initiative,” AHRQ Pub. No 03-P011, August, 2003.}

The project is the establishment of a 100-bed behavioral hospital providing Acute Mental lliness
inpatient care and outpatient services Under a joint venture agreement, US HealthVest and Pointcore,
Inc, a wholly-owned subsidiary of OSF Healthcare System, will own and operate the behavioral health
programs.

OSF Healthcare System provides several services in HSA 2 that are considered safety net services. These
include emergency medical care, outpatient behavioral health, outpatient clinic services,
pharmaceuticals and other medical services. These services do not cover their costs, and are subsidized
by revenues generated from inpatient care, including medical/surgical, comprehensive physical
rehabilitation and obstetrics, as well as diagnostic services. The joint venture being established by US
HealthVest and Pointcore, Inc will enhance the ability to subsidize and strengthen safety net services.

The following table shows that 14 census tracts in Peoria and West Peoria rank among the highest in the
United States on a social vulnerability scale from 0 (least vulnerability) to 1 {highest vulnerability). The
Index is a tool developed and used by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and incorporates
factors such as high poverty, unemployment, minority status, crowded households, low percentage of
vehicle ownership, and disability in measuring social vulnerability. A significant number of the more than
600 persons who came to the emergency department last year at OSF Saint Francis Medical Center with
behavioral health needs reside in these census tracts.

CDC's Social Vulnerability Index {5V} for

14 census tracts in Peoria and West Peoria

Census Tract SVt index Census Tract SVI tndex
1 0.9516 13 0.9913
2 0.8173 15 0.8386
3 0.8476 16 0.9424
5 0.9743 21 0.9028
6 0.7955 25 0.8067
9 0.9873 41.02 0.9529
12 0.9596 50 0.9105

These 14 census tracts are home to about 26,000 persons. Residents in these neighborhoods struggle to
meet challenges associated with poverty and access to health care. They have special behavioral health
needs and will be the focus of coordinated efforts by the proposed new behavioral hospital with
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agencies providing social services in these neighborhoods. Moreover, Peoria County as a whole
achieved an SVI score of 0.6131, indicating an overall moderate to high level of vulnerability in the larger
geographic area.

Importantly, Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will play a significant role in addressing racial and health
care disparities in these and other underserved communities. Both organizations have made significant
commitments to care for the indigent.

US HealthVest

US HealthVest ranks high among healthcare systems in its mission of caring for all patients.
US HealthVest’s system of Chicago hospitals treats thousands of Medicaid patients each year. Nearly
60% of the payor mix at Chicago Behavioral Hospital is Medicaid.

Eliminating health disparities is fundamental to the well-being, productivity and viability of the entire
nation. However, this is impossible to achieve unless every entity does its part. US HealthVest does its
part in many ways. Its behavioral hospitals have no boundaries for who can access services. As a
community service to help individuals of all ages and ethnic backgrounds the hospitals provide a
completely free assessment to anyone needing help. If US HealthVest cannot provide the help needed
or an appropriate level of care, it takes the next steps to help individuals find community services that
meet their clinical needs, financial capabilities, and diverse cultural needs.

US HealthVest’s facilities provide individualized treatment programs that take into consideration the
diverse backgrounds of individuals. As shown in the following table, USHV staff, themselves, and USHV
providers are very diverse in racial and ethnic foundations. When and if there is a case beyond HSHV
capabilities, such as a language barrier, language lines and interpreters are utilized.

Beyond typical psychiatric and chemical dependency care, US HealthVest has embraced specialized
programs that address the diverse needs of specialized populations. For example, Specialized Woman’s
Program, Specialized Men’s Program, Detox, Dual Diagnosis, Faith Based Care and Military Care. All
these programs attract diverse populations and are intended to provide the much-needed care.

US HealthVest recognizes that practical issues such as the lack of financial resources for transportation
are critical impediments to access to healthcare. Transportation should not be a factor that deters
someone from receiving needed psychiatric treatment. US HealthVest effectively removes this disparity
in access to care. To address this disparity, USHV hospitals contract with certified healthcare
transportation companies to provide free transportation for patients to and from treatment in USHV
facilities. At the inpatient level of care, patients are typically brought by ambulance but may not have
the means to return home at discharge. US HealthVest hospitals provide this transportation to return
home, whether close by or hundreds of miles away. There is assistance for families and individuals who
may not have the means to travel to the hospital to participate in the patients care (e.g. family session).
For routine outpatient care, USHV provides transportation to patients enrolled in outpatient
programs, within a radius. If a patient is participating in the Intensive Outpatient or Partial
Hospital Programs that require daily, Monday through Friday, attendance, USHV will also
transport them to and from care every day.
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US HealthVest hospitals all form relationships with municipal, county and state organizations that serve
diverse populations with the highest health disparities, developing collaborative treatment relationships
for the clients of these agencies.

OSF Healthcare System

Over 20% of inpatients at OSF Saint Francis Medical Center, for example, are Medicaid; charity care as a
percent of net revenue in 2020 was 1.7%, exceeding the Statewide average for hospitals of 1.4%. OSF
upholds the principle that all people have a right to needed health care, and the hospitals are open to
persons of every faith and ethnic background, regardless of ability to pay. There are a range of financial
assistance programs based on patients’ needs.

OSF Saint Francis Medical Center has an established Community Council, its community advisory board.
In collaboration with the Board, OSF Saint Francis Medical Center partners with local churches and social
service agencies through the Faith Community Nurse team to reach patients where they live. This led to
the development of the OSF Street Medicine program, which is directly addressing disparities in health
care. OSF has organized to address disparities, raising the priority of services to the indigent within the
organization. Through the work of the Medical Director of Community Care at OSF Saint Francis Medical
Center, there are three areas of special priority need: addiction, mental health and wound care. The
Faith Community Nurse team handles a lot of referrals to medical providers, mental health providers,
services for food and housing, and services for harm reduction.

OSF has spearheaded initiatives to bring access to care, food and other necessities into local
neighborhoods of special need. The work includes community gardens, helping to address food deserts
and other causes of poor health. In Peoria, the harvests from two Gardens of Hope amounted to more
than 12,000 pounds of fresh fruit and vegetables given to families and individuals living in poor
neighborhoods, to local food banks, and to community agencies.

Some of this work is highlighted in the attached community benefits report issued September, 2021 by
OSF Saint Francis Medical Center. Highlights of the Community Benefits report are:
- OSF Saint Francis Medical Center provided a total of $195.8 million in uncompensated community
henefit, including unreimbursed $54.7 million in Medicare and $30.8 million in Medicaid.
- Other OSF Saint Francis Medical Center unreimbursed health care services of $21.8 million.
- $13.6 million given as financial assistance in 2021.
- OSF Saint Francis Medical Center donated $2.6 million to local agencies in 2021.

The entire OSF system of 15 hospitals, the multi-speciaity group practice, and the homecare service
provided more that $600 million in community benefit services in 2021.

Meadowview Behavioral Hospital

As referenced in previous sections, thousands of patients in the service area are forced to travel long
distances to access behavioral health services due to bed capacity. This new hospital will provide
patients with safe and high-quality behavioral health services closer to home. The lack of access to care
leaves patients with two choices: 1) travel far from home, or 2) forego care, which is inhumane and
undignified. Forcing patients to travel long distances adds stress, complication and cost to patients
seeking mental health services and can exacerbate and worsen. Peoria Behavioral Hospital will provide
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access to care to all patients regardless of ability to pay and regardless of race, economic or social
status.

The U.S. population gets more diverse each year. By 2044, it is projected that more than half of
all Americans will belong to an ethnic group other than non-Hispanic White.

Commitment to addressing diversity, equity and inclusion is broad within both US HealthVest and OSF
system organizations — in hiring practices and human resources programs {for training, advancement
and development of leadership skills), governance, and community involvement. These practices and
programs apply especially to treating a diversity of patients, and being especially attentive to addressing
populations with health care and social disparities.

Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will positively impact essential safety net services in the community by
working with healthcare providers, clinicians and social service agencies who struggle with meeting the
growing needs for behavioral health care. Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will operate 24 hours per
day / 7 days a week to respond to crisis situations. It will also provide free initial assessments to best
determine treatment required. It is committed to collaborating with every area agency's safety net
service protocols. The hospital will serve all patients, without regard for ability to pay. The proposed
hospital seeks to maximize the efforts of the entire behavioral health provider system by collaborating
to achieve the best outcomes for residents of the Planning Area and beyond.

The payor mix of the AMI service is projected to be as follows:

Medicare: 28%
Medicaid: 55%
Commercial: 15%

Self Pay / Other: 2%
TOTAL 100%

In addition, the new hospital will provide a similar amount of charity care as US HealthVest and the OSF
Healthcare System currently provide in their facilities throughout lllinois.

2. The project’s impact on the ability of another provider or healthcare system to cross-subsidize safety
net services, if reasonable known to the applicant.

The project will complement the three AMI programs in place in HSA 2. These are at UnityPoint Health -
Methodist Hospital in Peoria, and UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital, and OSF Saint Elizabeth Medical
Center in Ottawa. The proposed service is designed to respond to meet the needs of area residents who
leave HSA 2 for care, residents who are referred out of the area for care but are unwilling or unable to
travel or have their families travel to facilities located in the Chicago area or other distant locations, and
for patients who need specialized psychiatric care that will be available because of the critical mass at
the proposed 100 bed AMI hospital. In the past three years, out of a total of 1,401 adult referrals
requested from OSF Saint Francis Medical Center, a total of only 11 patients were admitted to
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UnityPoint Health — Methodist Hospital and 18 to UnityPoint Health - Proctor Hospital for AMI care. As a
result, the impact of a new program would affect only a small number of admissions at those facilities.
The project will have no impact on another hospital’s ability to provide safety net services in this area.

Meadowview Behavioral Hospital will provide services that support the work of healthcare providers
and clinicians in the communities in the Planning Area. Through the process of free initial assessments,
the hospital will match a person’s specific mental health needs with community services. Traditional
outpatient settings do not provide free assessments and do not provide specialized services for specific
populations. Using the US HealthVest model in place in other major metropolitan areas, will offer
specialized services for women, veterans, a faith-based program, and a private crisis stabilization unit.
The hospital will not duplicate traditional outpatient services. Rather, Meadowview Behavioral Hospital
will integrate into the existing network of providers and supplement the inpatient services now in place
in the area.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providersin a
given community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Discontinuation of a clinical service is not a component of the proposed project.

4. Additional information on Safety Net Services.

A. For the three fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity
care provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by the hospital applicants shall be in accordance
with the reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the Illinois Community Benefits Act. Non-
hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with the appropriate methodology
specified by the Board.

B. For the three fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to
Medicaid patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner
consistent with the information reported each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding
“Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and “Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by
Payor Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual
Hospital Profile.

See the following tables for US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System.
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US HealthVest Hospitals in lllinois

Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital

1. The following chart sets forth the amount of charity care provided by Silver Oaks
Behavioral Hospital in the last three years (as reported on its Annual Hospital Questionnaires).

2019 2020 2021

Number of 251 54 72
Inpatient
Charity Care
Patients

Number of 0 0 | 1
Outpatient
Charity Care
Patients

Total Number 251 54 73
of Charity Care
Patients

Inpatient 498,464 184,471 640,880
Charity Care
Charges

Outpatient e S T I -
Charity Care
Charges

Total Charity 498,464 186,810 641,666
Care Charges

Inpatient Cost 498,464 184,471 640,880
of Charity Care

Qutpatient Cost 0 2,339 786
of Charity Care

Total Cost of 498,464 186,810 641,666
Charity Care
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2. The following chart sets forth the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients by Silver
Oaks Behavioral Hospital in the last three years (as reported on its Annual Hospital
Questionnaires).

2019 2020 2021
|
Number of 2,052 408 549 '
|
|

Inpatient
Medicaid
Patients

Number of 1,654 281 422
Outpatient
Medicaid
Patients

Total Number 3,706 G g 689 971
of Medicaid
Patients

Net Inpatient 1,529,635 9. 644,453 2,084,439
Medicaid
Revenues

Net Outpatient 302,728 448,130 794,822
Medicaid
Revenues

Total Net 1,832,363 10,092,583 2,879,261
Medicaid
Revenues

Chicago Behavioral Hospital

3. The following chart sets forth the amount of charity care provided by Chicago Behavioral
Hospital in the last three years (as reported on its Annual Hospital Questionnaires).

2019 2020 2021
Number of 13 15 246
Inpatient
Charity Care
Patients
Number of 0 2 2
QOutpatient
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Charity Care
Patients

Total Number

Patients

of Charity Care

13

17

Inpatient
Charity Care
Charges

37,202

Outpatient
Charity Care
Charges

49,812

1,872

782,314

854

Total Charity
Care Charges

37,202

Inpatient Cost

of Charity Care

50,784

783,168

37,202

49,812

782,314

Outpatient Cost
of Charity Care

1,872

854

Total Cost of
Charity Care

37,202

50,784

783,168

#23-008

4. The following chart sets forth the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients by Chicago
Behavioral Hospital in the last three years (as reported on its Annual Hospital Questionnaires).

2019

2020

2021

Number of
Inpatient
Medicaid
Patients

112

3,800

3,906

Number of
Outpatient
Medicaid
Patients

398

2,783

3,106

Total Number
of Medicaid
Patients

510

6,583

7,012

*83
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Net Inpatient
Medicaid
Revenues

1,158,848

12,589,560

25,001,799

Net Outpatient
Medicaid
Revenues

Total Net
Medicaid
Revenues

43,507

1,202,355

Lake Behavioral Hospital

5. The following chart sets forth the amount of charity care provided by Lake Behavioral
Hospital in the last three years (as reported on its Annual Hospital Questionnaires).

458,970

13,048,530

703,560

25,705,359

2019

2020

2021

Number of
Inpatient
Charity Care
Patients

0

33

121

Number of
Outpatient
Charity Care
Patients

Total Number
of Charity Care
Patients

33

124

Inpatient
Charity Care
Charges

271,410

198,030

108,162

Outpatient
Charity Care
Charges

3,373

11,934

Total Charity
Care Charges

271,410

201,403

120,086

a8y
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Inpatient Cost 271,410 198,030 108,152
of Charity Care
Outpatient Cost 0 3,373 11,934
of Charity Care
Total Cost of 271,410 201,403 120,086
Charity Care
6. The following chart sets forth the amount of care provided to Medicaid patients by Lake

Behavioral Hospital in the last three years {as reported on its Annual Hospital Questionnaires).

2019

2020

2021

Number of
Inpatient
Medicaid
Patients

789

Number of
Qutpatient
Medicaid
Patients

Total Number
of Medicaid
Patients

1,226

1,720

1,895

2,157

789

2,946

Net Inpatient
Medicaid
Revenues

Net Cutpatient
Medicaid
Revenues

2,639,158

4,520,933

4,062

12,016,444

286,362

Total Net
Medicaid
Revenues

2,925,520

290,319

4,820,252

ass

470,574

12,487,018 |
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Safety Net information per PA 96-0031
For OSF Healthcare System
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) 2019 2020 2021
Inpatient 1,031 1,231 945
Outpatient 20,261 22,945 28,323
Total 21,292 24,176 29,268
Charity {cost In dollars)
Inpatient] $17,583,796 $18,862,733| $17,740,857
Qutpatient] $19,122 296 $22,422 102 $22,532,449
Total $36,706,092 $41,284,835] $40,273,306
MEDICAID
[Medicaid (# of patients) 2019 2020 2021
Inpatient 14,371 14,074 15,608
Outpatient 374,009 307,481 427,556
Total 388,380 321,555 443,164
[Medicaid {revenue)
Inpatient $222,287,288 $253,442,281 $274,688,101
Qutpatient $172,028,785 $131,986,088] $201,739,577
Total $394,316,073 $385,428,369] $476,427,678]
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SECTION XI CHARITY CARE

Charity Care information is provided for US HealthVest and OSF Healthcare System as follows:
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CHARITY CARE - US HealthVest Hospitals in Illinois

#23-008

CHARITY CARE — Chicago Behavioral Hospital

2019 2020 2021
Net Patient Revenue 36,193,744 34,245,557 42,992,243
Amount of Charity Care (charges) 37,202 50,784 783,168
Cost of Charity Care 37,202 50,784 783,168

CHARITY CARE - Lake Behavioral Hospital

2019 2020 2021
Net Patient Revenue 11,188,817 20,806,705 25,060,608
Amount of Charity Care (charges) 271,410 201,403 120,086
Cost of Charity Care 271,410 201,403 120,086

CHARITY CARE - Silver Oaks Behavioral Hospital

2019 2020 2021
Net Patient Revenue 8,112,734 12,750,198 27,443,576
Amount of Charity Care (charges) 468,464 186,810 641,666
Cost of Charity Care 498 464 186,810 641,666

a8%
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CHARITY CARE - OSF Healthcare System

2019 2020 2021
Net Patient Revenue $2,410,772,560 $2,383,901,200 $2,978,991,756
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $180,316,461 $201,864,109 $195,002,654
Cost of Charity Care $36,706,092 $41,284,835 $40 569,889

CHARITY CARE - OSF Saint Francis Medical Center

2019 2020 2021
Net Patlent Revenue $1,165,697,011 $1,105,603,908 $1,263,651,673
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $80,086,733 $92,237,752 $77,331,719
Cost of Charity Care $15,536,208 $17,755,767 $15,266,387

2’49
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SECTION XI —SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

Flood Plain

290



#23-008

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- 0612022 - Edition
SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 5§00-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-6 (EO B), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
determine If the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood Hazard
Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is
planned or promoted, the propesed project mests the requirements of the Exacutive Order, including compliance with
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

I, Applicant 3SF ShNT FRANCIS MEDICAL CERTER 530 NE GLEN OAK AVENLE

(Name) (Address)
PEDRIA I blo3'7 309 - 6552000
{City) (State) (ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
2. Project Location: 4000 \W00d sace Rb. (APPRoX) PEORIA 1L
{Address) (City) (State)
PEORIN
(County) (Township) (Section)

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map Service

Center website (https://msc.fema.goviportalihome) by sntering the address for the property In the Search bar. If
a map, like that shown on page 2 Is shown, select the Go fo NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can print a

copy of the floodplain map by selscting the E fcon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon [9'
and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

if there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerlal photo. You will
then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a FIRMstte tool
to create a pdf of the floodplain map.,

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes___ No ZS ?

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county ar the
local community building or planning department for asslstance.
If the determination Is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number:_/T0S%30I25 B Effective Date: Oé/ ‘D'/ 1983
Name of Officlal 3 . |0¢ Scb m it Tile: _Tn House Consubant
Business/Agency: Cx\«;’ of Pepcia Address:_ 2505 M Dres Ln.
Peoria TL lelleO2 214~ 494 -88DD
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) {Talaphone Number)

Signature; %&Ma&& Date: _1( / 3/ ol
NOTE; Thi§ finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-year

floodplaln as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property willi or will not he
flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.

If you need additional help, contact the lilinols Statewlde Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428
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